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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 17 JULY 2020 

CHAIRPERSON:  Good morning Ms Hofmeyr,  good morning 

everybody.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Good morning Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  see that  you seem to be opt imist ic that  i t  

is not  going to be so cold.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Today.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  am trying to add something to the 

prospect  so… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Let  us cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.   Mr Mothibe when we 

concluded matters yesterday we had been looking at  the 

press coverage f rom the Business Day in relat ion to the 

Ernst  and Young rev iew and I  had asked you whether you 

could assist  in  looking through the working f i les in 

ant ic ipat ion of  today and whether you were able to f ind any 

media art ic les that  had been col lected by your team under 

the 2016 audi t  procedures.   Were you able to f ind those? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  I  looked at  the f i le I  could not  – I  20 

would not  – was not  able to ident i fy any – any of  those.   

Safe to say Chair  as I  d id indicate yesterday the col lect ion of  

the review of  media reports i t  is not  a requi rement in terms 

of  the other standards.   I t  is one of  the part ies that  we had 

and there are also a number of  other  ways that  we do 
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accumulate audi t  evidence.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  then the facts are Nkonki  your jo int  

audi t  partner for the previous year  col lected extensive media 

art ic les each month of  the year as part  of  the audi t  

procedure but  your PwC team in the subsequent year  did not 

do that .   Is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  Nkonki  did that  as part  of  thei r  own 

procedures and in keeping wi th  PwC i t  is part  of  our 

procedures,  we did look at  that  in the previous year.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes and in  your year,  the 2016 year ending 10 

31 March 2016 you did not .   

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  we did not  do that .   We used other way 

– methods of  procedures to accumulate audi t  evidence and 

to determine our r isk assessment.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  was i t  not  a designed part  of  your  audi t  

procedures that  you would col lect  media art ic les? 

MR MOTHIBE:   No Chair  i t  was not  part  of  exact  procedures 

i t  was an audi t  [? ]  procedure that  we had – would be.   As I  

indicated i t  is not  a requirement of  the ISIS that  one reviews 

media reports.    20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Mr Mothibe I  accept  subject  to something I  

am going to come to in relat ion to reportable i r regular i t ies 

that  i t  may not  be a requirement of  the ISIS but  your own 

audi t  procedures that  EGA that  we looked at  indicated that  

you would on a monthly basis and regular ly check media 
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art ic les,  did i t  not? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  that  EGA was – is  not  par t  of  the 

standard EGA’s that  are in the PwC audi t  guide.   I t  is an 

addi t ional  step that  we had added.  So i t  is – as I  ind icated i t  

is not  a standard requirement Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  Ms Hofmeyr makes i t  c lear  to you 

that  she understands the part  about  i t  not  being a 

requi rement and maybe – and maybe one should say a 

requi rement fa l l ing under a certain category maybe.  But  she 

is saying or at  least  part  of  what I  th ink she is saying is as a 10 

matter of  fact  you have Nkonki  who had been doing that  and 

i f  I  am not  mistaken you said yoursel f  yesterday and – but  

you must  te l l  me i f  I  misunderstood i t  is a good pract ice to  

do that .   And I  th ink her – her rea l  enqui ry is s ince i t  is a  

good pract ice to do this since another f i rm was doing i t  why 

did you not  do i t?   Ms Hofmeyr you – is that  part  of  what you 

are looking for? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.  Chair  the only aspect  I  added is  

that  we looked at  that  EGA the Evidence Gathering Act iv i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Which has been designed in their  own 

audi t  procedures.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i t  st ipulated that  media art ic les would 

be looked at .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   As a source.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  actual ly I  th ink that  was the last  – last  

point  she was asking.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To say but  i f  i t  is in that  Evidence 

Gathering document.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Act iv i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh act iv i ty i t  – i t  says you are supposed to 

do i t .  10 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  might  not  be seen as maybe an essent ia l  

requi rement but  you are expected to do i t .  

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  as I  indicated i t  is an extra step that  

we added.  I t  is not  only – on the standard EGA requi rements 

i t  is not  there.   I t  was an ext ra step that  we added and I  th ink 

Chair  I  d id agree to that .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.  And then you did not  fo l low in the 

2016 audi t  your own step? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  that  step was not  there in the 2016 20 

f i le.   So i t  is not  – i t  would not  be ent i re ly correct  to  say we 

did not  fo l low that  because i t  was not  in the – in the f i le –  

the step did not  exist .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  when you say i t  was not  in the f i le you 

are not  suggest ing that  at  that  t ime that  was not  one of  the 
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steps in terms of  which in terms of  the f i rm’s pol icy you were 

supposed to take.   You are not  saying that  i t  was int roduced 

af ter.   You are not  saying that  or are you – that  step? 

MR MOTHIBE:   I  am not  too sure I  understand the Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  That  step of  media gather ing.   I  am 

saying – I  am asking whether you mean that  at  that  t ime 

when you did this audi t  you mean that  th is step had not  been 

introduced by PwC as – as part  of  what you would do.  

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  what you are saying? 10 

MR MOTHIBE:   Yes Sir  – Chai r  as I  indicated Chai r  in 2016, 

we – i t  was an extra step that  we added i t  is not  part  of  the 

mandatory steps that  is included in our own process.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes when was i t  int roduced – this media 

step? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  i t  was not  in t roduced i t  was an ext ra 

step that  we added because of  what we considered to be a 

necessary process to gather evidence or to understand.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  when was i t  –  when was i t  added? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Had i t  been – had i t  been added already at  

the t ime you were doing this audi t?  

MR MOTHIBE:   No Chair  i t  had not  been added Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was i t  added af terwards? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  I  do not  know – Chair  as I  ind icated i t  
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is not  part  of  the process i t  was an extra step that  as a team 

we thought we should add to help us in the r isk – wi th the 

r isk gather ing – r isk assessment process so i t  has never  

been added.  I t  is an ext ra step that  the team took.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.   I  am t rying to get  us to a point  

where we are on the same place.   So that  is  why I  was now 

using the word – the verb,  added because that  is the verb 

you used.   Now I  am going to use took.   Now when did you 

as a team take this decision to have this step as an ext ra 

step?  When was that? 10 

MR MOTHIBE:   As I  indicated Chai r.   For the 2015 year we 

decided to add that  step,  that  ext ra step in our f i le.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOTHIBE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So at  the t ime when you were doing the 

audi t  in 2015 or  for the 2015/2016 f inancial  year  was i t  

there?  Had you taken the step to add this ext ra step? 

MR MOTHIBE:   In  2015 yes Chair  i t  was there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .    

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then in 2016 you d id not  fo l low that  20 

step Mr Mothibe.   Could we have just  a clear answer to that  

quest ion? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Yes the step was not  added in 2016.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Was not  fo l lowed? 

MR MOTHIBE:   No,  no i t  was not  added on the f i le.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Mr Mothibe.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,  no.    

MR MOTHIBE:   I  th ink Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay let  – let  us put  th is.   The step is 

media gather ing i f  we give i t  an acronym, is that  r ight? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja news gather ing through the media.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   That  is the step.  

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   So did you do that  in  the 20 – or the 

2015/2016 f inancial  year? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  we d id that  in the 2015 f inancial  year  

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You did? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   2015/2016 f inancial  year? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chair  sorry just  so we get  the f inancia l 20 

years r ight .   As I  understand i t  you d id i t  for the f inancial  

year ending 31 March 2015, is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You did not  do i t  for the year ending 31 

March 2016? 
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MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i t  was the year 31 March 2016 when 

PwC took over the pr imary performance responsib i l i ty for 

SCM compl iance,  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Yes that  area was al located to  us in 2016 

Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Whereas the previous year i t  

had been Nkonki ’s performance responsibi l i ty,  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Mr Mothibe I  said that  I  keep promising I  

am going to  come to the reportable i r regular i t ies ’ gu ides 

reference to the need to look at  press report ing or th i rd-party  

sources.   You indicated yesterday i f  I  recal l  your  evidence 

that  you were aware of  that  requirement  of  the I rba guide for  

reportable i r regular i t ies.   Did I  have your evidence correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  I  am – al ive to the requirements of  the 

I rba Guide on reportable i r regular i t ies.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So I  do not  then suggest  we need to go 20 

there but  just  to refresh your memory.   What the guide says 

– fel l  f ree to pul l  i t  up i f  you want to  but  I  do not  suggest  i t  is  

necessary for  you to go there Chai r.   I t  is in DD19C at  page 

129.   I t  is  a  sect ion of  the I rba reportable i r regular i t ies guide 

for audi tors and i t  says at  paragraph 7.1.3:  
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“The audi tor also considers matters which come to the 

audi tor ’s knowledge f rom thi rd party sources.   For instance,  

cr iminal  charges,  al legat ions of  non-compl iance raids,  press 

coverage of  suspicious or  suspicions or enqui r ies di rected to 

the audi tor would be informat ion which the audi tor  should 

consider in determining whether reportable i r regular i ty  

exists. ”  

 Mr Mothibe I  would l ike to then draw your at tent ion to  

another art ic le that  your team fai led to consider in the audi t  

for  the year ending 31 March 2016.  And that  is a part icular ly  10 

important  art ic le  because i t  t raverses in qui te extensive 

detai l  the concerns that  were happening wi thin the 

management of  SAA towards the end of  2015.   I t  is speci f ic  

about  the Swiss Port  contract  and what appears f rom the 

face of  the art ic le to be very concerning events happening 

around i t .   That  is an art ic le you wi l l  f ind in Exhibi t  DD19C 

which is in your f i rst  f i le at  page 132 point  21.1.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Is i t  132 point  21.1? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed, Chair  and I  am going to t ry today 

not  to ever go to a fourth point  i f  I  can possibly help i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Because i t  is terr ib ly di ff icul t  to f ind the 

pages.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So Mr Mothibe this is an art ic le – a money 
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web art ic le that  you wi l l  see i f  you just  f l ip through i t  spans a 

tota l  of  four pages and i t  is ent i t led SAA Def ies Nat ional  

Treasury and DTI  Instruct ion.   CFO resigns.   Board persists  

wi th 30% procurement set  aside and i t  is dated 17 November 

2015.   I  would l ike to f lag a few points in th is  art ic le because 

had your team been doing this media checking i t  would have 

come across some of  these pert inent  i tems in  th is  ar t ic le.   I  

am reading f rom the middle of  the f i rst  page and asked by 

i ta l ic ized words.  

“The SAA board is pers ist ing wi th  efforts to have 30% of  i ts 10 

procurement cont racts set  aside for  t ransformat ion partners.   

In def iance of  express instruct ions by Nat ional  Treasury and 

the Department of  Trade and Indust ry to stop this pract ice.   

Against  th is background tensions between board and top 

off ic ia ls who cont inued to war against  unlawful  pract ices is  

reaching breaking point .   This has become clear  f rom a 

money web invest igat ion into efforts to amend the SAA 

ground handl ing contract  wi th Swiss Port  Internat ional .  

 So that  is the int roduct ion and then I  wi l l  f lag a few 

other important  points over the page at  132.21.2 I  wi l l  p ick i t  20 

up at  the second paragraph:  

“Money Web has since learnt  that  both Nat ional  Treasury and 

the DTI wrote to  the SAA board in September to advise i t  

that  SAA’s 30% requirement does not  comply wi th the BBBEE 

Act  the codes of  good pract ice or the procurement legal  
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f ramework. ”  

 And then you can cl ick and actual ly see the let ter  

that  Nat ional  Treasury sent  to the SAA board or c l ick on the 

second l ink and go and read the le t ter  f rom the DTI.   I f  we 

go on there is an indicat ion of  some of  the content  of  the 

let ter.   On September 13 DTI act ing BBBEE commissioner 

Zondwa Ntul i  wrote:  

“SAA should not  proceed to implement the 30% set  aside 

unt i l  approval  is appl ied for f rom the Min ister of  Trade and 

Indust ry. ”  10 

 And on September 28 Chief  – sorry Treasury Chief 

Procurement Off icer Kenneth Brown wrote:  

“The resolut ions of  the board to set  aside the 30% in i ts 

current  form is not  supported by any procurement legal  

f ramework and must be stopped with  immediate effect . ”  

 I t  goes on:  

“From emai l  correspondence that  Money Web has seen 

between SAA head of  Supply Chain Management  Doctor 

Masimba Dahwa, Kwinana and Chief  – a SAA Chief  f inancial  

off icer  Wolf  Meyer i t  is however clear that  Kwinana was 20 

dr iv ing the amendment of  the Swiss Port  cont ract  to include 

a 30% BEEE partner f rom November 1. ”  

 I f  we move on a l i t t le bi t  further down under the 

heading Changing Contract  Dates we read:  

“ In the correspondence Dahwa points out  that  changing the 
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commencement date of  the Swiss Port  cont ract  f rom the 

or ig inal  date in 2011 to 2015 could be chal lenged legal ly. ”  

 And then the second paragraph: 

“Kwinana responds by brushing this concern aside and 

asking whether Dahwa wi l l  implement the board resolut ions 

on the matter. ”  

 I t  goes on:  

“Meyer to whom Dahwa reports and who a lso serves on the 

board then takes over and wri tes a long response about the 

Swiss Port  agreement as wel l  as our Engen board 10 

memorandum.  He warns in detai l  against  several  aspects of  

the proposed amendment at  Swiss Port  agreement that  

would not  be – that  would be non-compl iant  wi th  Supply 

Chain pr inciples,  the Publ ic Finance Management  Act  and 

good governance.”  

 And then i f  we skip to the penul t imate paragraph:  

“Meyer concludes by stat ing SAA is  current ly exposed to and 

cannot afford an audi t  report  containing f indings of  

governance t ransgressions. ”  

 And a last  aspect  of  the art ic le I  would just  l ike to 20 

f lag for  your at tent ion is over  to  the fol lowing page at  page 

132.21.3.   There is a reference there to a response that  Ms 

Kwinana gave to Money Web when they were prepar ing th is 

report  at  least  th is art ic le and i t  is in the second paragraph.   

She is quoted there as saying:  
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“That  she had said that  the Swiss Port  f i le was brought to 

the board for  approval  and that  the prospected 

t ransformat ion partner Ganicron [?]  Pty Ltd was brought  by 

Swiss Port . ”   

Chair  I  am just  go ing to pause there.   Some of  those 

facts about the Swiss Port  cont racts are st i l l  going to  be 

t raversed in the evidence of  Mr Ndzeko who is st i l l  

scheduled to appear before the commission and whom we 

had not  got  to receiving his evidence in February.   And Mr 

Mothibe just  to ment ion Doctor Dahwa who is referred to in  10 

this art ic le is somebody who has previously been given – 

who has previously given evidence before this  commission 

and he spoke about a fateful  Fr iday evening at  which he was 

put  under eight  hours of  pressure to sign the very Swiss Port  

contract  wi th th is  30% set  aside and persistent ly re fused to 

do so on the basis that  i t  would be unlawful .  

So that  is the background Mr Mothibe that  your team 

I  submit  would have benef i t ted f rom i f  i t  had considered that  

media art ic le.   Wi th hindsight  do you regret  that  they did not  

consider i t?  20 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  as Ms Hofmeyr has indicated in terms 

of  the – the guidance on ident i fy ing reportable i r regular i t ies 

we consider matters that  come to our at tent ion even i f  they 

come f rom the media.   This mat ter had not  come to our  

at tent ion f rom the work that  we had done and therefore we 
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would not  have been able to consider i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  the quest ion is a di fferent  one as I  

understand i t .  

MR MOTHIBE:   Yes Chair  I  am – I  was going to give the 

ground Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Al r ight .  

MR MOTHIBE:   And had the informat ion come to our  

at tent ion do our audi t  would certainly have taken a view on 

that  and fol lowing i t  through Chai r.   Because there are 

issues there at  r isk anyway.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I f  you had fol lowed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Apologies Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease you wi l l  just  have to raise your  

voice.   

MR MOTHIBE:   I  shal l  do so Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have asked them to switch off  the air  

condi t ioner so that  one – I  wi l l  see whether we wi l l  be as 

cold as we were yesterday and two hopeful ly,  I  can hear you 

bet ter.   P lease just  repeat  the points you were making and 20 

ra ise your voice.  

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  just  – the closing one Chair  to say that  

had the informat ion come to our at tent ion we would have – 

we would have ra ised red f lags and would have responded 

on that  Chai r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Mr Mothibe do you accept  that  th is art ic le  

sets out  important  informat ion about what was going on at  

SAA? 

MR MOTHIBE:   The art ic le does set  out  important  

informat ion Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you agree that  those let ters that  

Nat ional  Treasury and the DTI  wrote to SAA would have been 

something you ought  to have considered i f  you had been 

aware of  th is coverage? 

MR MOTHIBE:   There has been of  interest  to us Chai r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And do you accept  that  i f  you had 

implemented the procedure in the f inancial  year ending 31 

March 2016 to consider media reports th is would l ike ly have 

come to your at tent ion? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  as I  indicated despi te the fact  that  i t  is 

not  a requirement  of  the – of  the standards had i t  been there 

Chair  and had the team ident i fy the art ic le i t  would have 

been of  interest  to  us Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   How easy would i t  have been for your  team 

to come across th is art ic le i f  they had done the gather ing of  20 

informat ion f rom media art ic les?  Would there have been – is 

there any – big chance that  you might  not  have come across 

i t ,  do you know? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Having i ts – bearing in mind i ts source who 
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publ ished i t  and so on? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  I  cannot say whether i t  would have 

been easy or not .   Safe to say Chair  we – there is a big 

[ indist inct ]  of  media art ic les out  there and i f  they had 

searched Chai r  i t  may have come up as part  of  the search.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You might  wish to take that  fur ther  Ms 

Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  – and you may have been intending to  

anyway.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i t  is also important  to see what the 

chances are that  they would have missed i t  i f  they had done 

this exercise.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  would l ike to  suggest  the chances are 

extremely sl im Chai r.   And the reason I  say that  is because 

in the six  pages that  comprise the media reports that  they 

picked up for the previous f inancial  year  there are numerous 

reports f rom both News24 and Fin24 and I  stand corrected 

but  my understanding is Fin24 does publ ish the Money Web 20 

art ic les.   So i t  was clear ly on the ir  radar to col lect  these 

part icular news i tems.  I  suspect  you can assist  me Mr 

Mothibe the way that  they might  have done i t  is a general  

rev iew each month.   I t  seems to be monthly that  they pul l  out  

important  media reports that  come from – that  re late to SAA,  
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is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  I  am not  too sure i f  they can 

necessari ly say i t  is  a  monthly process but  I  just  say i f  you 

go into the internet  and you search.   You wi l l  get  – you might 

get  qu i te  a lot  but  I  would – they did not  do that  on a monthly  

basis,  no Chai r.   This is not  how they approached i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chair  I  must  ind icate I  asked my learned 

f r iend Ms Armstrong to check me on my assumpt ion that  

Fin24 publ ishes for Money Web that  is not  the case.   But  

there are numerous publ icat ions in  the six pages of  media 10 

reports f rom the previous year and so my proposi t ion to Mr 

Mothibe stands.   I  put  to you Mr Moth ibe that  i t  is very 

unl ikely that  an art ic le wi th th is in-depth at tent ion to SAA 

publ ished onl ine by Money Web would not  have been an 

art ic le  that  came to the at tent ion of  your  team i f  they were 

doing this work.   What is your response to that?   

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  as Ms Hofmeyr said ear l ier in 

rev iewing the previous years a lot  of  them Fin24,  News24 

and there is not  much f rom Money Web any.   So Chair  I  th ink 

I  can say Chai r  do a – done a search and whether i t  wi l l  be 20 

picked up or not  Chai r  I  cannot – I  honest ly cannot say 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did your team or would your team have 

taken notes of  how Nkonki  had done this before – in the year  

before and maybe checking the sources that  they had used 
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or would that  not  be something that  your team would have 

checked?  I  am just  th inking that  i f  somebody else has been 

doing a job the previous year and you come in you might  

wish to see how they went about  th ings and i f  you came 

across the fact  that  they have also used – they gathered 

informat ion f rom the media you might  look at  the sources 

that  they were using – you know looking at  al l  the main 

newspapers or TV or  whatever and then saying,  wel l  are we 

going to do the same, look at  the same sources or we 

choose some of  the sources?  Or you might  see that  for 10 

example maybe Business Day appeared to have been very 

helpful  to  your predecessors and therefore you might  wish to 

– to ensure that  Business Day or the Star is one of  those 

that  you look at? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  off  the top of  my head I  would not  th ink 

that  i t  would be one of  the steps they would have taken.   

Chair  the work that  [ indist inct ]  we performed have been 

subject  to  a considered view and we important ly focus on the 

signi f icant  issues f i rst  before you look…  And in my 

experience Chai r  i f  you fol low through a process, I  would not  20 

think that  th is would necessari ly be that  high up on the l ist .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm;  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.   Mr Mothibe you c lar i f ied 

for  us yesterday that  you only saw the board resolut ion 

re lat ing to th is contract  at  some point  between Apri l  and 30 
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September 2016,  is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   My recol lect ion Chair  is that  the – there was 

a rev iew of  board minutes which had been delegated and I  

had access to ext ras of  those board minutes and the ful l  

resolut ions Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Apologies but  somebody in  your  team 

would have looked at  i t ,  is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Somebody in my team would have looked at  

some of  the board minutes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes but  I  understood your evidence 10 

yesterday to be you had received this part icular board 

minute – at  least  resolut ion related to th is  decision.   Did I  

have your evidence correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  yes I  d id receive i t  Chair  as Ms 

Hofmeyr indicated but  the review was then delegated Chai r,  I  

d id not  do the review mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And the person who was doing the review 

in your team would that  be the person who was looking at  al l  

re levant  board minutes and board resolut ions? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r  I  would have to look at  the f i le 20 

because i t  would have been more than one person because 

there is di fferent  minutes that  we had access to and Chai r  

they would have looked at  samples of  those as there – as 

and when requi red Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You see i f  that  team was doing this  work in 
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rev iewing the minutes and the resolut ions and were 

communicat ing wi th each other I  want  to suggest  to you that  

they would have not iced that  when the board usual ly takes 

procurement decisions the resolut ion talks about  the process 

that  has been fol lowed.  I t  ta lks about  the BAC 

recommendat ion because the usual  procurement process is  

coming f rom BAC to the board and then the board conf i rms 

whether i t  approves or disapproves the BAC’s decision.   Is  

that  something you are fami l iar wi th in the governance 

st ructure at  SAA? 10 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then they would have found this  

resolut ion of  the 14 March 20 – sorry 14 March 2016 and 

would have seen that  i t  reads qui te di fferent ly.   So I  would 

l ike to take you to i t .   I t  is at  page 132 in the same bundle 

that  you are busy in DDC at  132.43,  43.    

MR MOTHIBE:   I  have i t  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you have that  Mr Mothibe? 

MR MOTHIBE:   I  have i t  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So this is a resolut ion of  the SAA board of  20 

di rectors and i t  is  ent i t led Request  for  SAA board to approve 

the terms and condi t ions for the Swiss Port  SAA contract  and 

note the cont ract  durat ion per iod effect ive f rom 1 Apr i l  2016 

unt i l  31 March 2021 for ground handl ing services and cargo 

serv ices to be rendered at  Johannesburg,  Cape Town, 
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Durban,  Port  El izabeth and East  London.  I t  says the board 

by Round Robin 2016/ -  I  th ink that  is B05 as of  14 March 

2016 resolved too.   And then the resolut ions are as fol lows:  

Approve the contract  to be entered into wi th Swiss Port  SA 

for the durat ion of  f ive years commencing on 1 Apri l  to 31 

March 2020 and then i t  st ipulates what i t  covers and then… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do not  th ink you ment ioned the year  or  

af ter Apri l  and the 31s t .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh apologies sounds l ike.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And I  th ink you said af ter March 2020 

instead of  2021.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Apologies let… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  we are looking at  the same 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR:   My error.   Let  me go again.   So what they 

resolved to do was to approve the contract  to be entered into 

wi th Swiss Port  South Afr ica for  the durat ion of  f ive years,  

commencing on 1 Apri l  2016 to 31 March 2021, covering 20 

ramp handl ing,  PAU’s,  wheelchai rs ,  GPU’s and air  s i te crew 

transport  to be rendered at  Johannesburg,  Cape Town, 

Durban,  Port  El izabeth and East  London with the fol lowing 

condi t ions.  

A.  Swiss Port  South Af r ica to acqui re al l  the GPU 
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equipment that  has been purchased by SAAT.  

(That  is South Af r ican Ai rways Technical) .  

B.  Swiss Port  South Afr ica to enter into a contract  

wi th a BBBEE company that  has representat ion of  

black women,  youth,  mi l i tary veterans and disabled 

persons f rom which Swiss Port  wi l l  purchase al l  

their  equipment required for the SAA cont ract .  

 And 2 reads:  

“To note the feedback of  the negot iat ions and 

approve the execut ion of  the contract  wi th Swiss Port  10 

South Af r ica. . . ”  

 Mr Mothibe,  I  want to put  i t  to you that  i f  your  team had 

looked at  th is resolut ion,  i t  would have stuck out  as di fferent  

to the ordinary resolut ions where the board takes a decision 

on procurement  because i t  t raverses none of  that  

procurement procedure that  you would usual ly f ind in  such a 

resolut ion.   Do you accept  that? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  having not  seen or at  least  al l  the 

other resolut ions,  I  am not  too sure I  can necessari ly  

comment on that  Chai r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l ,  you accepted ear l ier what the 

procurement process was in SAA.  Is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i f  I  say to you,  you must  take i t  as 

assumed for th is,  that  other resolut ions of  the board when 
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that  procurement process is fo l lowed, is speci f ic about  “We 

approve the BAC recommendat ions which record that  the 

award of  the tender should go to whoever”.  

 I f  that  is what the standard resolut ion looks l ike and a 

member of  your team gets th is resolut ion,  do you accept  that  

th is resolut ion would read d i fferent ly? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  wi l l  be correct .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i f  your team had been reading the 

Moneyweb art ic le,  then the reference to the BBBEE company 

that  is going to be get t ing a port ion of  th is contract ,  might  10 

have raised a f lag for i t ,  might  i t  not? 

MR MOTHIBE:   I f  we had sight  of  the art ic le.   Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  that  art ic le was explaining how 

Nat ional  Treasury and the DTI had demanded that  SAA seize 

wi th immediate affect  i ts endeavours to set  aside 30% of  i ts  

contract  outside of  the procurement  f ramework.   Did you see 

that  in the art ic le? 

MR MOTHIBE:   In that  art ic le as shared wi th us today here.   

Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Now Mr Mothibe,  you have 20 

indicated that  there were no processes fol lowed in the 

f inancial  year ending 31 March 2016 to review media.   I  

accept  that .    

 But  can you tel l  me what your processes are for deal ing 

wi th subsequent events that  comes to your  at tent ion af ter 
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the end of  an audi t  year that  you are doing the audi t  on? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  the Audi t  Standards requi re that  we 

consider al l  subsequent events that  impact  the numbers of  

the f inancial  year that  the present  f inancial  year,  to the 

extent  that  what has not  yet  s igned . . . [ indist inct ]   

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  i f  something comes to your  at tent ion,  

despi te  the fact  that  your team was not  looking at  the media 

reports,  but  i f  somewhere between 1 Apri l  2016 and 

30 September 2016,  when you signed the audi t  report  about  

th is cont ract  and the concerns about i t ,  would that  have 10 

requi red your at tent ion? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  wi l l  be correct  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Did th is cont ract  and i ts i r regular i ty come 

to your at tent ion in that  per iod? 

MR MOTHIBE:   I t  d id not  come to my at tent ion Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Did you in the course of  your processes 

look at  what Internal  Cont rol  wi thin SAA was saying about  

the cont ract  that  i t  entered into? 

MR MOTHIBE:   I  am not  too sure I  understand the quest ion 

Chai r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Apologies.   The Internal  Cont rol  

Department wi thin SAA would regular ly review i ts own 

processes,  would i t  not? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  should be correct  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And d id you look at  Internal  Contro ls when 
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you were doing your audi t  work? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  when we.. .  f rom the audi t  o f  South 

Afr ican Ai rways and as part  of  the requi rements of  the 

standards,  we did an assessment at  company level ,  looking 

at  the issues Chai r  relat ing to governance,  management,  

competency and the cont rols that  they have in place.  

 And we have,  af ter  review Chai r,  consider that  and we 

could not  al low Internal  Cont rols and their  approach 

adopted.   South Afr ican Airways was a substant ive audi t  

approach Chai r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And did you ever ask for the Internal  Audi t  

Team’s own f indings on regular i ty,  procurement and contract  

management to be fed through to your team? 

MR MOTHIBE:   The Internal  Audi t  Reports Chai r  were 

provided to us.   I t  is  one of  the audi t  steps that  we undertake 

and they were a lso included in the minutes of  the Audi t  

Commit tee.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So were you aware of  the Internal  Audi t  

Team’s report  on the 15t h of  September 2016 that  found that  

the Swiss Port  contract  had been concluded i rregular ly  20 

because no compet i t ive process was fol lowed? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  I  am try ing to recal l  Chair  i f  in 

September 2016 we had received those minutes Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No,  you were f i l ing on the 

30t h of  September.   Should you not  have contented yoursel f  
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that  those documents had been made avai lable to you before 

you signed off?  

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  we reviewed what was made avai lable 

to ourselves and what were requested.   Hence,  Chair  I  am 

trying to recol lect  whether or not  that . . .  at  the t ime of  the 

year,  we had access to those minutes.  

 Chai r,  the. . .  one of  the biggest  issues that  occupied us 

as we got  to close to signature of  the Audi t  Opinion then i t  

occupied both partners and both audi t  teams, t ime was 

needed.. .  the chal lenge around who i t  concerns.  10 

 Where we cr i t ica l  . . . [ indist inct ]  stage Chai r  where we 

part  of  rais ing . . . [ indist inct ]  because we obviously just  

something always had wi th the cash-f low issues and the 

. . . [ indist inct ]  status.  

 And Chai r,  15 September Chai r  i f  memory serves me 

r ight  Chai r,  I  cannot recal l  having read those minutes but  I  

stand to be corrected Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l ,  let  me just  take you to them.  I t  is the 

report  that  you f ind,  i t  is next  to the . . . [ ind ist inct ]  report .   You 

wi l l  f ind at  page. . .  in the same bundle,  DD19C at  page 20 

132.53.1.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You might  confuse the reader of  the 

t ranscr ipt  in due course.   You have now been referr ing to the 
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bundle as 19C.  [ laughs]   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chai r,  the f i le is  actual ly 19C but  that  is  

because of  the method we used yesterday and I  am sorry i t  

does not  accord wi th what is  on your  spine.   So 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  but  what I  am saying is.   I  th ink i t  is  

more accurate i f  you say exhibi t  rather than bundle 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .because . . . [ intervenes]   10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   No,  no.   That  is where the error is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .when you say bundle,  people wi l l  look on 

the spine.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh,  that  is f ine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Absolutely Chai r.   I  do apologise.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And to correct  the record.   I t  is EXHIBIT 

DD19C at  page 143.53.1.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   So this is an excerpt  of  the repor t  f rom a 

member of  Internal  Audi t  to. . .  wel l ,  the Head of  Procurement 

at  that  stage at  SAA, Mr Lester Peter.   That  is where we 

have picked i t  up in an emai l  c i rculated on the 

15t h of  September 2016.  I  wi l l  take you to that  in a moment 
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Mr Mothibe.  

 But  th is is the report  that  is at tached to that  emai l  and 

what i t  is headed there at  the top of  the page at  page 

132.53.1 under the paragraph 11.1 is,  “Contravent ion of  

Treasury Regulat ions and SAA SC and Pol icy (Swiss Port  

Contract )” .  

 And the audi t  f ind ing rat ing is high.   And then what th is 

document does is,  that  i t  sets out  the legal  requirements,  

Treasury Regulat ion 16A.6.1.   I t  records the resolut ion of  the 

board in that  block that  says f inding.    10 

 And then i f  you go over the page to page 132.53.2,  you 

wi l l  see in the block thi rd f rom the bot tom that  is ent i t led 

“Risk/ Impl icat ion”.  

 What the Internal  Audi t  Team of  SAA had determined 

was the r isk related to th is contract .   I t  reads as fol lows:  

“None-compl iance wi th the Treasury Regulat ions wi th 

departments t rading ent i t ies,  const i tut ional  

inst i tut ions and publ ic ent i t ies of  March 2005.. . ”  

 And the next  bul let  reads “Exclusion of  Compet i t ive Bids 

or Pr ic ing”.   And you wi l l  see in the next  block of  that  table,  20 

there is a heading “Route Course”.    

 And they ident i fy that  the route course is that  SAA Port  

and Swiss Port  could not  agree on the t ransformat ion aspect  

of  the contract .  

 And then under the sect ion headed “Recommendat ion”  
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r ight  at  the bot tom, the f i rst  bul let  reads:  

“The services should have been procured through a 

compet i t ive bidding process in l ine wi th the DOA 

Approval  and Report ing Process. . . ”  

 So do I  take i t  Mr Mothibe that  you d id not  see that  

report  before you s igned your audi ted opinion on the 

30t h of  September 2016? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  that  wi l l  be correct .   I f  my memory 

serves me r ight ,  the last  audi t  commit tee meet ing that  we 

had was somet ime in August  and I  would not  have been 10 

aware of  th is . . . [ indist inct ]  minute before I  s igned.  

 And as I  d id indicate Chair  that  we. . .  at  that  t ime we 

were al l  invested in t ry ing to get  . . . [ indist inct ]  comfort  on the 

growing concerns . . . [ indist inct ]  o f  South Af r ican Airways 

because i t  was qui te a big cr i t ical  issue at  the t ime Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you accept  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  may have missed something.   Is th is. . .  

does this come f rom PwC report? 20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   This comes f rom.. .  no.   From the Internal  

Audi t  Team within SAA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So they were reviewing thei r  own tender 

compl iance . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   . . .and in September 2016, that  internal  

audi t . . .  Internal  Control  Team . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   . . .  is saying,  th is . . . [ ind ist inct ]  [coughing]  

did not  fo l low procurement processes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And my quest ion to Mr Mothibe was,  did i t  

come to his  at tent ion?  And he has indicated in  h is evidence 

i t  d id not .   I  th ink further,  in fa i rness Chai r.    10 

 Mr Mothibe,  you make the point  that  your last . . .  the last  

Audi t  and Risk Commit tee meet ing had occurred in August .   

So this comes later.   I t  is 15t h of  September 2016.   So i t  was 

not  brought to your at tent ion in the August  meet ing.   Is that 

r ight .  

MR MOTHIBE:   I f  memory serves me r ight ,  that  is correct .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Would i t  be correct  to say,  had i t  been 

avai lab le much ear l ier,  there is no way you would have 

missed i t?  20 

MR MOTHIBE:   I f  i t  had been avai lable ear l ier Chai r,  we 

would not  have missed i t  and i t  is one of  those i tems that  

would had to then be reported under none-compl iance wi th 

laws and regulat ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  my logic says to me.  I f  your External  
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Audi tors to an ent i ty,  i t  is  to be expected but  I  could be qui te 

wrong.   I t  could be expected that  you would look at  whatever  

the Internal  Audi tors have been doing.   See what they can 

give you.   What they have picked up.    

 Obviously,  assess i f  they have,  you know, picked up 

everything that  should be picked up.   St i l l  do your job 

independent ly but  i t  could assist .   I f  you ignore what they 

have done, could miss something qui te important .  

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  we do engage with Internal  Audi t  

. . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOTHIBE:   . . .on their  work.   They assist  us in ident i fy ing 

areas of  r isks where we should be focussing on because. . .  

So yes,  Chai r.   Internal  Audi t  is . . . [ indist inct ]  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Is an important  step? 

MR MOTHIBE:   . . . that  we did talk . . . [ indist inct ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i f  that  would come to your at tent ion,  

would you have conf ident ly resolved that . . .  th is R 1,8 bi l l ion 

contract  const i tuted i r regular expendi ture? 20 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  i t  would not  have resul ted in an 

i rregular  expendi ture because the cont ract  had just  been 

entered into.   So i f  there has been none-compl iance wi th law 

and regulat ions in that . . .  in the supply chain,  management 

process not  been fol lowed.   
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 I t  is only when they start  expanding on that  that  i t  

becomes i rregular  expendi ture.   So that  would have been.. .  

because the cont ract  is f rom 1 Apri l  2016 the subsequent  

year.    

 In that  year,  i t  then becomes i r regular expendi ture.   So 

at  the end,  i t  would only have been none-compl iance wi th 

laws and regulat ions.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Is expendi ture not  incurred when the 

l iabi l i ty is incurred for the ent i ty? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  i f  I  read this correct ly.   This is a  10 

contract  that  takes. . .  whose term starts on the 1s t  of  Apri l .   

So i t  is a commitment to procure senses(?) f rom Swiss Port .  

 So what they wi l l  do is.   Depending on the contract ,  

whether i t  be on a monthly  basis,  they wi l l  then issue 

invoices.  

 So i t  is only when the. . .  i f . . .  when the expense is then 

incurred that  that  becomes i rregular  expendi ture.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  the l iabi l i ty. . .  there is  a l iabi l i ty  for  f ive 

years on a st ipulated bases and that  l iabi l i ty was incurred 

when the contract  was concluded on the 15t h of  March 2016.  20 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  i t  is not  a l iabi l i ty Chai r.   I t  is a  

commitment.   I t  only becomes a l iabi l i ty when the serv ices 

have been provided and al l  set t lement then i t  is an expense 

but  . . . [ indist inct ]  Chair  the matter(?) is not  a l iabi l i ty in terms 

of  the account ing f ramework is a commitment.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Just  to see i f  one can look what appears to  

be a di fference in approach between yoursel f  and Ms 

Hofmeyr.   Are you saying f rom an audi tor ’s  point  o f  v iew a 

l iabi l i ty,  which Ms Hofmeyr is  ta lk ing about and the 

commitment which you are talk ing about.  

 You are saying you cannot ta lk about  an i rregular  

expendi ture f rom an audi tor ’s point  of  v iew or  as you 

understand i t  the posi t ion unclear or there has been.. .  unt i l  

there has been payment,  unt i l  there has been expendi ture on 

that  commitment  or that  l iabi l i ty.   Is that  what you are 10 

saying? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chai r.   I t  cannot  be an 

i rregular expendi ture because there has been no spent .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because there has been no expendi ture as 

yet .  

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So each year  of  those f ive years when 

payments were made in terms of  the contract ,  i t  would then 

have const i tuted i rregular expendi ture,  correct? 20 

MR MOTHIBE:   Yes,  f rom the t ime that  i t  becomes 

expendi ture,  yes.   I t  then becomes i rregular expendi ture.   In  

the subsequent  years we were not  audi tors Chair  

. . . [ indist inct ]   

ADV HOFMEYR:   And Mr Mothibe,  i f  we can then go through 
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the elements of  the reportable i r regular i ty obl igat ion on you 

as the audi tor in  respect  of  th is Swiss Port  Contract .   You 

remember the f i rs t  is that  there is an unlawful  act .    

 I  understand your  evidence to be that  you have al ready 

accepted that  th is  contract  was entered into in a manner that  

was not  compl iant  wi th the PFMA.  Is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is the case Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i t  would then have const i tuted an 

unlawful  act ,  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  i t  is an unlawful  act .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And was i t  commit ted by a person 

responsible for the management of  an ent i ty. . .  of  the ent i ty.  

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  i t  was commit ted by the board which 

was management before governance of  ent i ty Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then af ter remaining three al ternat ive 

requi rements for the reportable i r regular i ty.   I  would l ike to  

focus on the mater ia l  breach of  judiciary duty aspect .  

 Mr Mothibe,  we have looked at  the media art ic les that  

f lagged th is 30% set-aside pol icy which was in the view of  

Nat ional  Treasury and the DTI an unlawful  step for the 20 

company to take.   You accepted that  was what the media 

report ing at  the t ime, correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   I f  one looks at  the art ic le.   That  is  what. . .  

that  is correct  Chai r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   And you may have not iced in that  art ic le  
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that  Mr Meyer who was the CEO.. .  CFO at  the t ime at  SAA, 

had warned part icular ly  about  the r isks for SAA i f  i t  would 

cont inue to embark on this pol icy because i t  would have 

damaging consequences for the reputat ion of  the ent i ty,  as 

wel l  as,  potent ia l ly expose i t  to adverse Audi t  Opinions.   Did 

you see that? 

MR MOTHIBE:   I  saw i t  in the art ic le Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And you d id not  ever actual ly see those 

Nat ional  Treasure and the Department of  Trade and Indust ry 

let ters?   10 

 Because there you have ear ly informed the Commission 

that  you were charged with discipl inary proceedings by the 

Regulatory Board of  Audi tors.  

 And you have consented to accept ing breaches of  the 

Audi tors Code and your obl igat ions under the Audi t ing 

Professions Act .   Is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  that  is correct .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i f  we go to your supplementary 

statement,  you wi l l  f ind i t  in EXHIBIT DD19B which is in the 

f i rst  f i le that  we are st i l l  working in and you wi l l  p ick i t  up at  20 

page 30.2.   Three,  zero point  two.    

MR MOTHIBE:   I  have i t  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  have got  i t  too.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So at  paragraph 7,  you are referr ing to the 

draf t  charges that  you received f rom IRBA and you are 
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explain ing here the basis for your  enter ing into a consent  

order wi th IRBA.  Did that  consent order inc lude an 

acknowledgement  of  the fact  that  you have breached 

re levant  provisions? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  the consent order is  in relat ion to 

what I  considered to that . . .  Chair,  we should have as 

audi tors disclosed a none-compl iance wi th law and 

regulat ions in the Audi t  Opin ion.  

 I t  was immediately(?) ident i f ied when we performed our  

work and reported to management and that  we also reported 10 

to the Audi t  Commit tee.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So what you f i rst  accept  is that  your fa i lure 

to disclose mater ia l  none-compl iance wi th Legislat ion and 

Internal  Cont rol  def ic iencies for the year 2014 and 2015.  Is 

that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And you accept  that  you do not  d istance 

yoursel f  f rom your  obl igat ions as a jo int  audi tor for those two 

years or be i t  that  Nkonki  performed the audi t  work on those 

aspect ,  correct? 20 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  that  wi l l  be correct .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And you have a lso accepted that  there was 

none-compl iance wi th legislat ions in Internal  Control  in the 

2016 year.   Is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  that  is correct .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   And the consequences of  those 

concessions Mr Mothibe is that  the Audi t  Opinions for  al l  

three of  those years were incorrect .   Is that  r ight? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  what. . .  and maybe to put  i t . . .  

emphasise Chai r.   That  when you carry out  the audi t ,  there 

were two parts.    

 The f i rst  part  Chair  is the audi t  in terms of  the 

Internat ional  Standards of  Audi t ing,  where we were having a 

look at  the numbers to show that  we. . .  the f inancial  

statements fai r ly presented . . . [ indist inct ]  operat ions for the 10 

per iod under review and the cash-f lows.  

 Chai r,  that  work was performed and we were able to  

obtain suff ic ient  comfort  numbers in  the f inancial  statements 

were properly(?)  disclosed Chair  and that  there was no 

mater ia l  mistake in those numbers Chai r.  

 The area where this concern audi t  re lates to Chai r.   I t  

re lates purely on the compl iance s ide of  the audi t  in that  we 

have ident i f ied areas of . . .  or areas where there were 

deviat ions f rom requi red . . . [ ind ist inct ]  processes which 

should have been elevated to the . . . [ indist inct ]  20 

 As I  indicate Chai r,  we did raise these matters wi th the. . .  

wi th management  and wi th the Audi t  Commit tee but  we 

omit ted to inc lude them in the Audi t  Opinion.  

 So Chai r,  in a nutshel l ,  the Audi t  Opinion as far as i t  

re lates to the fai r  presentat ion of  the numbers Chai r,  we st i l l  
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stand by that .  

 Chai r,  we are happy that  we have done suff ic ient  work.   

I t  is only as i t  re lates to the compl iance of  laws and 

regulat ions that  we could have did(?) more Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Mr Moth ibe,  I  t ry to make a note of  exact ly 

how you put  i t  in your answer.   You said the aspects of  

compl iance wi th  legis lat ion accept  and Internal  Cont rol  

should have been elevated to the Audi t  Opinion.   Did I  get  

that  r ight? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is what I  am saying Chai r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  want  to put  i t  to you that  i t  is worth and i t  

s imply should have been elevated and i t  was not  elevated 

but  that  suggests there was something that  should have 

been there that  was not .  

 In fact ,  what was there was false because you gave a 

clean bi l l  of  heal th on compl iance wi th Legislat ion and 

Internal  Cont rol .  

 So the outside reader of  th is audi tor ’s  report  for 2016,  

gets a false impression of  the state of  compl iance wi th  

Legislat ion and Internal  Control  at  SAA.  Do they not? 20 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  i t  is important  to note that  at  one 

never give assurance on the Internal  Cont ro ls.   We would not  

do that  Chai r.   Nei ther. . .  i f  you look at  Audi t  Opinions of  any 

enterpr ise,  the audi tor never gives assurance on Internal  

Controls.    
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 You give input  where on controls that  you have reviewed 

speci f ic areas that  re lates to do audi t  work or areas that  we 

were audi t ing.   One can never give Chai r  assurance on 

Internal  Cont rols Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Mr Mothibe,  that  was not  my quest ion.   My 

quest ion was,  when an outside reader of  your 2016 audi t  

report  reads:  

“We have performed procedures to obtain ev idence 

that  the publ ic ent i ty has compl ied wi th appl icable 

laws and regulat ions regarding f inancial  matters,  10 

f inancial  management  and other  related matters and 

we did not  ident i fy any instances of  mater ia l  none-

compl iance wi th speci f ic matters in appl icable laws 

and regulat ions set  out  in the genera l  not ice. . . ”  

 They would get  the wrong impression because there 

were,  as I  understand your concession,  mater ia l  none-

compl iances wi th appl icable laws and regulat ions,  were there 

not? 

MR MOTHIBE:   There were . . . [ indist inct ] . . .  there were i tems 

that  were ident i f ied Chair  . . . [ ind ist inct ]  as I  ta lked to ear l ier.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  what  do you say to the suggest ion by 

Ms Hofmeyr that  whoever would read the audi t  report  would 

therefore be mislead by that?  What  do you say to that? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  to the extent  that  the reader would be 

looking at  the compl iance law and regulat ions part  of  i t  
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. . . [ indist inct ]  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR MOTHIBE:   The. . .  what were d isclosed was not  accurate 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And what you disclosed in relat ion to  

Internal  Cont rol  was also not  accurate,  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  as we indicated. . .  as we have 

indicated in our . . . [ indist inct ]  audi t ,  we bel ieve that  af ter 

going through the review Chai r  we could have included more 10 

in terms of  . . . [ indist inct ]  in that  regard 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   Let  us talk  about  when the errors in  

our  audi t ing came to your at tent ion because what is 

noteworthy Mr Mothibe is that  i t  is only in  your  

supplementary statement before this Commission that  you 

have indicated your  acceptance of  these def ic iencies in your  

audi t  work.   

 Now I  want to probe with you why you did not  make that  

known earl ier on in the process?  Because the evidence of  

the audi tor general  was that  when the audi tor general  moved 20 

in for  the 2016/2017 audi t  year,  they took steps to  engage 

with you and your  col league,  Ms Masasa about the work that  

you have done.  

 And in the course of  those interact ions,  the evidence of  

Mr Sokombela for the Audi tor General  was that ,  the 



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 43 of 255 
 

def ic iencies in your approach to Supply Chain Management 

were brought to your at tent ion.   Do you accept  that? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  when we engaged with Mr Sokombela,  

we. . .  h is off ice performs work on procurement and contact  

management on a regular basis.  

 And i f  I  can use the word,  they were experts in that  area 

and they give that . . .  in looking at  the work that  were 

performed, they would l ike to do a b i t  more work Chai r.  

 Compl iance. . .  procurement and contract  management  is  

a compl icate scene(?).   I t  is that  where . . . [ indist inct ]   10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Mr Mothibe,  I  want to suggest  to  you that  i t  

was not  s imply that  there was s l ight  disagreement or a  

di fference between the manner in which you had approached 

Supply Chain Management and the approach taken by the 

audi tor general .  

 And I  want to refer you to an emai l  that  Mr Sokombela 

prepared,  recording the outcome of  meet ings that  he had 

wi th you and Ms Masasa.   And for  that  purpose, Chai r  and 

Mr Mothibe,  we need to move to a new set  of  f i les which is  

Mr Sokombela ’s f i les.  20 

 But  Chai r,  I  th ink just  before the tea adjournment,  maybe 

i t  is convenient  for us to take i t  now and then we can get  the 

new f i les arranged for you so that  we do not  have to  take the 

t ime later.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  let  us do that .   We wi l l  take the tea 
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adjournment now.   Shal l  we resume at  twenty-f ive-past  which 

is f i f teen minutes? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Certainly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or just  how.. .?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  maybe hal f -past  wi l l  be f ine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe hal f -past  so that  . . . [ intervenes]     

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you,  Chai r.   Just  for a bi t  more t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  Yes,  okay.   Alr ight .   We wi l l  take the 

tea adjournment  and resume at  hal f -past  eleven.   We 

adjourn.  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS :  

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  thank you.   Le t  us  

proceed.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   What  we d id  over  the  

break i s  jus t  made ava i lab le  to  you the  f i les  conta in ing  Mr  

Sokombela ’s  ev idence.   Now h is  ev idence is  conta ined in  

EXHIBIT DD20.   There  a re  four  f i l es  in  DD20 and  we have  

asked tha t  what  ge ts  p laced before  i s  DD20D.   So,  Mr  

Moth ibe ,  i f  you  w i l l  take  a t  DD20D and …[ in tervenes ]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  see on th i s  f i l e  i t  says  23  and then 

on the  f i rs t  page ins ide  i t  says  3 .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  i s  incor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  says  EXHIBIT  DD20C on the  ins ide  bu t  

ou ts ide  i t  i s  20D.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r ,  jus t  so  tha t  I  can check the  

number ing ,  what  page number  does i t  commence w i th in  the  

f i le?  

CHAIRPERSON:    The f i rs t  page is  1296.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  no t  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  no t  the  cor rec t  one?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  we must  have the  las t  one.   A l r igh t ,  

no ,  I  m igh t  jus t  have moved my pages s l igh t ly .   What  I  

need to  take  you  to  i s  page –  le t  me jus t  see here .   Page 

1804.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    1804?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   My learned f r iend ind i ca ted  to  me 

i t  shou ld  be  in  the  f i le  in  f ron t  o f  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    1804 are  the  two emai l s .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  the  cor rec t  one?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  i s  the  cor rec t  page.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So i t  i s  the  cor rec t  bund le  bu t  there  

m ight  be  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    There  is  some page a t  the  f ron t  tha t  20 

shou ld  no t  be  the re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  we w i l l  sor t  tha t  ou t  over  lunch,  i f  we 

may?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Mr  Moth ibe ,  do  you have page 1804? 

MR MOTHIBE:    I  have i t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   So I  was suggest ing  to  you  

before  the  break ,  Mr  Moth ibe ,  tha t  there  was not ,  as  we 

unders tand the  records o f  the  meet ings be tween the  AG’s  

o f f i ce  and yourse lves and Nkonk i  Inc ,  a  smal l  dev ia t ion  

be tween the  approach tha t  your  t eams took to  the  supp ly  

cha in  management   and the  approach tha t  the  Aud i to r-

Genera l  was  tak ing  to  i t  and the  reason why I  say  tha t  i s  

because what  you f ind  a t  page 1804 is  in  the  bo t tom o f  the  10 

page,  bo t tom ha l f  o f  the  page,  an  emai l  f rom Mr  Po lan i  

Sokombela ,  he  is  the  aud i to r  a t  the  Aud i to r -Genera l ’s  o f f i ce  

who gave ev idence before  the  Commiss ion ,  i t  i s  an  emai l  

sent  on  Wednesday 13 September  2017 to ,  amongst  

o thers ,  yourse l f ,  is  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you w i l l  see  i f  you  go  to  the  

beg inn ing  tex t  o f  the  emai l  he  reco rds  there :  

“Dear  Pu le  and Thuto”  

Thuto  i s  a  re ference to  Ms Masasa,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    He then records :  

“Our  meet ing  da ted 5  September  2017 re fers . ”  

And he goes on and says:  

“We have s ince  v is i ted  PwC and Nkonk i  on  the  11  
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September  2017  to  re look a t  the  aud i t  f i l e  in  an  

a t tempt  to  reso lve  s ign i f i can t  mat te rs  t ha t  were  no t  

ev ident  on  f i le  regard ing  SAA open ing  ba lances. ”  

And then he says :  

“Be low is  the  de ta i led  feedback o f  our  rev iew. ”  

And i f  you then go a f te r  because there  are  numerous top ics  

he  t raverses,  a i rc ra f t  par ts ,  fu rn i tu re  and equ ipment ,  

e tce te ra ,  bu t  then i f  you  go over  to  page 1806 you get  

towards the  end o f  h is  emai l  and  you w i l l  see  jus t  above 

the  las t  paragraph o f  h is  emai l  wh ich  is  jus t  be low ha l fway  10 

down the re  is  a  head ing  Share  Trus t  and then entered  

under  tha t  i s  the  tex t :  

“No ev idence o f  aud i t  work  per fo rmed on the  share  

t rus t . ”  

And then comes  the  sentence I  want  to  d raw to  your  

a t ten t ion ,  there  is  record ing  there :  

“Regard ing  SCM we agreed tha t  there  was not  much  

work  tha t  was per fo rmed in  your  f i le . . . ”  

And under l ined:  

“ . . .we w i l l  no t  re ly  on  th is  work . ”  20 

Do you d i spute  the  record  tha t  Mr  Sokombela  p laces there  

in  h is  emai l?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  as  I  in i t ia l l y  ment ioned before  we 

went  in to  the  tea  break,  we d id  have in te rac t ion  w i th  Mr  

Sokombela  and in  tha t  d iscuss ions he  d id  ind ica te  tha t  the 
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o f f i ce  o f  the  AG is  an  exper t  when  i t  comes to  the  aud i t  o f  

a  supp ly  cha in ,  p rocurement  and cont rac t  management  and  

there fo re  they wou ld  be  ab le  to  do  – i f  I  can –  because 

they exce l  in  tha t  a rea ,  they wou ld  be  do ing  b i t  more  work  

in  tha t  a rea ,  Cha i r,  and tha t  i s  how the  d iscuss ions and the  

speed o f  d iscuss ions were  –  in  our  sess ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  the  quest i on  is ,  do  you d i spute  the  

–  what  Mr  Sokombela  i s  p lac ing  on  record  here?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  tha t  s ta tement  does not  necessar i l y  

fu l l y  capture  what  we had d iscussed.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  maybe Ms Hofmeyr  you want  to  

take  h im po in t  by  po in t  fac tua l l y?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  indeed.   So when he s ta tes  tha t  

they wou ld  no t  re ly  on  your  work  i s  tha t  fa lse?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  he  d id  ind i ca te  tha t  they wou ld  want  

to  do  much more  work  tha t  we had per fo rmed.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So is  i t  fa lse  tha t  he  sa id  he  wou ld  no t  

re ly  on  your  work?  

MR MOTHIBE:    The emai l  says  tha t ,  Cha i r,  bu t  in  our  

d iscuss ions,  Cha i r,  the  d iscuss ions were  more  to  say they 20 

were  exper ts  in  the  area,  they exce l  and there fo re  they  

wou ld  to  do  much more  work ,  Cha i r.   A t  th is  s tage,  Cha i r,  

when I  rece ived th is  emai l  –  because one re f lec ted  on the 

sp i r i t  o f  the  d iscuss ions in  the  de fence(?)  08 .52  I  d id  no t  

take  th is  on  fu r ther,  Cha i r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  tha t  –  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  unders tand  

what  your  las t  comment  means.   Does tha t  mean  you d id  

no t  respond to  say you are  wrong,  Mr  Sokombela?  

MR MOTHIBE:    I  d id  no t  respond,  Cha i r,  to  th is .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And is  tha t  because you accepted  i t? 

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  as  I  ind ica ted ,  I  re f lec ted  on the 

sp i r i t  o f  the  d iscuss ions tha t  we had w i th  Mr  Sokombela  

and as  I  ind i ca ted  tha t  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  AG does th is  k ind  

o f  work  on  a  regu lar  cont inuous bas is  and tha t  he  wou ld  

cer ta in ly  want  to  do  much more  than what  we had 10 

per fo rmed.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  go  s t ra igh t  to  the  po in t .   Mr  

Sokombela  seems to  be  say ing  here  or  seems to  be 

suggest ing  tha t  PwC d id  no t  do  the i r  job  in  regard  to  

cer ta in  mat te rs  and in  regard  to  th is  par t i cu la r  one.   I s  tha t  

your  unders tand ing  o f  what  he  is  say ing  as  we l l?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  d id  no t  do  i t  p roper ly?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  i f  I  read i t ,  Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you can have a  look a t  i t  to  sa t is fy  20 

yourse l f  because  you need to  re f lec t  be fore  you say you 

agree w i th  my unders tand ing  or  you do not  agree.  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  I  am not  i n  fu l l  agreement  w i th  the  

Cha i r ’s  unders tand ing  because i f  you l ook a t  i t ,  Cha i r,  i t  

says  tha t  we have not  done much  work .   Not  in  the  sense  
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tha t  we d id  no t  do  any work ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOTHIBE:    And I  th ink  impor tan t ly,  Cha i r,  i f  we had  

not  done any work ,  we not  have been ab le  to  ident i f y  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no ,  I  do  no t  th ink  anybody is  

say ing  you d id  no t  do  any work ,  as  such.  

MR MOTHIBE:    Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Nobody i s  say ing  tha t .   In  regard  to  th is  

par t i cu la r  task  tha t  he  i s  ta lk ing  about  under  Share  Trus t ,  10 

tha t  sentence:  

“Regard ing  SCM we agreed tha t  there  was not  much  

work  tha t  was per fo rmed. ”  

So he is  no t  say ing  you d id  no t  do  any work  a t  a l l  bu t  I  

th ink  he  is  say ing  you d id  ve ry  l i t t le  o r  a  l i t t le ,  maybe not  

very,  bu t  l i t t le  work .   And then he,  in  te rms o f  what  they  

cou ld  see in  your  f i le ,  and he says in  e f fec t  whatever  you 

d id  was such tha t  they were  no t  go ing  to  re ly  on  i t  and tha t  

suggests  to  me tha t  what  you d id  was not  go ing  to  be  

usefu l  to  them.    20 

In  o ther  words,  they cou ld  no t  bu i ld  upon what  you  

had done,  they had to  l i ke  s ta r t  a f resh in  te rms  o f  tha t  

aspect .   That  i s  my unders tand ing  o f  what  he  says when he 

says i t  was agreed tha t  you had not  done much work  and 

we w i l l  no t  re l y  on  th is  work .   Do you ag ree w i th  tha t  
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in te rpre ta t ion  o f  what  he  is  say ing? 

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  the  way tha t  the  Cha i r  pu t  tha t  i s  

acceptab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  am sor ry,  I  d id  no t  hear  tha t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    I  sa id ,  Cha i r,  the  way tha t  you in te rpre ted  

–  you ment ioned i t  now tha t  he  looked a t  the  work  tha t  we  

had per fo rmed,  compared i t  to  how –  he  probab ly  wou ld  

have compared i t  to  the  amount  o f  work  tha t  he  wou ld  

per fo rm and sa id  he  wou ld  l i ke  to  –  he  wou ld  no t  re ly  on  

tha t .   And,  Cha i r,  you ment ioned tha t  he  wou ld  s ta r t  a f resh.   10 

Cha i r,  the  norm wou ld  a lways be  tha t  he  w i l l  s t i l l  have to  

per fo rm h i s  own work  anyway,  Cha i r.  Even p lac ing  re l iance  

does not  mean tha t  he  w i l l  no t  do  any work  a l togethe r.   He  

w i l l  s t i l l  have pre fer red  to  pe r fo rm  some work  to  –  be  the  

op in ion  tha t  we  wou ld  have g iven wou ld  re la te  to  our  

f inanc ia l  year  and he wou ld  have to  do  work  to  sa t is fy  

h imse l f  –  tha t  in  h is  f inanc ia l  year.   So he wou ld  a lways  

have had to  pe r fo rm h is  own work  anyway,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  in  te rms o f  what  he  says  here .  

MR MOTHIBE:    Ja ,  no… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Apar t  f rom what  may be happen ing  in  

p rac t ice ,  in  te rms o f  what  he  says here ,  i t  seems to  me 

tha t  he  is  say ing  whether  i t  i s  because o f  how l i t t le  work  

was tha t  you d id  or  whether  i t  i s  because o f  the  qua l i t y,  

maybe poor  qua l i t y  o f  the  work ,  whatever  reason,  he  



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 52 of 255 
 

conc ludes tha t  I  cannot  re ly  on  th is  work .   That  i s  my 

unders tand ing  o f  what  he  says.  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  I  had agreed to  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You agreed to  tha t .  

MR MOTHIBE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Mr  Moth ibe ,  a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  your  

ev idence yesterday I  have i t  tha t  you accepted tha t  when 

an ex te rna l  aud i to r  l i ke  PwC comes in to  aud i t  a  s ta te-

owned enterp r ise  i t  does tha t  in  a  sense on beha l f  o f  the  10 

aud i to r  genera l .   D id  I  have your  ev idence cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Because the  Aud i to r -Genera l  i s  the 

de fau l t  aud i to r  fo r  s ta te  owned enterp r ises ,  co r rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  tha t  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  now in  your  ev idence you have  

emphas ised tha t  the  Aud i to r -Genera l  has par t i cu la r  

exper t i se  in  an  area and I  want  to  pu t  i t  to  you tha t  tha t  i s  

no t  an  answer  to  l im i t  o r  reduce your  ob l iga t ions as  

ex te rna l  aud i to rs  o f  s ta te  owned enterpr i ses  because you 20 

s tand in  fo r  the  Aud i to r -Genera l .   Do you accept  tha t  you 

must  do  as  much as  they must  do  when they aud i t  s ta te  

owned ente rpr i ses?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  jus t  a  co r rec t ion ,  Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  

say  tha t  the  Aud i to r -Genera l  was an exper t ,  I  th ink  I  sa id  
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tha t  when we engaged w i th  Mr  Sokombela ,  he  sa id  tha t  

they were  exper ts  and they do  th i s  on  a  cont inuous bas i s ,  

Cha i r.   I  th ink  tha t  c la r i t y,  I  th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t ,  Cha i r,  bu t  

I  d id  no t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine  bu t  I  may have heard  

what  Ms Hofmeyr  heard  a t  some s tage,  I  thought  you sa id  

ear l ie r  in  e f fec t  tha t ,  you see,  the  AG’s  o f f i ce ,  when i t  

comes to  aud i t ing  pub l i c  en te rp r ises  they are  the  exper ts  

o r  they have the  requ i red  exper t i se ,  they are  the  exper t s  

and my unders tand ing  o f  what  you were  say ing  was tha t  10 

you were  suggest ing  tha t  look ,  you  shou ld  no t  be  su rpr ised  

i f  when the  AG’s  o f f i ce  comes in  they ident i f y  cer ta in  th ings  

tha t  we might  no t  have ident i f ied .   Maybe tha t  i t  no t  what  

you in tended but  tha t  was my unders tand ing .   I  thought  

tha t  you sought  to  say,  you know,  those peop le  do  –  or  

aud i t  pub l i c  en te rpr ises  a l l  the  t ime,  they are  exper t s  so  

we are  no t  surpr ised i f  they  see cer ta in  th ings where  we 

might  no t  have done th ings as  we l l  as  they wou ld  have  

done.   That  was my impress ion  bu t  th is  i s  the  oppor tun i ty  

fo r  you to  c la r i f y  i f  tha t  was not  what  you in tended to  say.  20 

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  I  sa id  ear l ie r  to  c la r i f y  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOTHIBE:    Because i f  I  –  what  I  w i l l  say  i s  tha t  when  

we engaged w i th  Mr  Sokombela ,  when we spoke about  –  

we spoke about  the  issues o f  supp ly  cha in  and cou ld  have  
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ment ioned tha t ,  he  ind i ca ted  tha t  he  d id  do  tha t  on  a 

cont inuous bas is ,  they are  exper ts .   They sa id  tha t ,  Cha i r,  

i t  was not  my –  th is  i s  what  I  was put t ing  fo rward  to  the  

Commiss ion ,  Cha i r,  and I  cer ta in l y  agree tha t ,  Cha i r,  when 

we per fo rm work  on  the  aud i t ,  Cha i r ,  we do our  work ,  we  

shou ld  do  i t  p roper ly  and d i l igent ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  whatever  exper t i se  the  AG’s  

o f f i ce  may have you are  no t  suggest ing  tha t  when you,  as  

PwC,  come in  and do an aud i t  o f  a  pub l i c  en terpr ise  on  

beha l f  o f  the  AG’s  o f f i ce  you are  no t  suggest ing  tha t  you  10 

are  no t  ab le  as  PwC to  per fo rm to  the  same s tandards.   

That  i s  no t  what  you are  say ing .  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  tha t  i s  no t  what  I  am say ing ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .    

MR MOTHIBE:    We wou ld  no t  accept  an  appo in tment  i f  we  

cou ld  no t  de l i ve r  i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  he lp fu l  because I  was 

go ing  to  say PwC is  a  very  b ig ,  you know,  aud i t ing  f i rm and 

one wou ld  no t  expect  tha t  in  te rms  o f  the  qua l i t y  o f  i t s  work  

tha t  i t  wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  –  i t  shou ld  no t  be  judged on  20 

any s tandard  tha t  any aud i t ing  f i rm or  even the  AG’s  o f f i ce  

cou ld  be  judged on.   Okay,  Ms Hofmeyr,  I  may or  may not  

have he lped.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  indeed you have.   Thank you ,  Cha i r,  

I  am indebted.   Mr  Moth ibe ,  tha t  was an emai l  re fe r r ing  to  
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a  meet ing  tha t  you had had on the  5  September.    

I f  I  unders tand i t ,  there  was a  fu r ther  meet ing  tha t  

was he ld  on  the  18  January  2018  and I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  

you to  the  m inutes  o f  tha t  meet ing ,  i t  i s  in  the  same f i le ,  

tha t  i s  EXHIBIT DD20D a t  page 1825.   So i t  i s  a  l i t t le  b i t  

fu r ther  on  in  the  f i le .   You w i l l  see  tha t  f i rs t  page ind ica tes  

m inutes  o f  a  meet ing ,  meet ing  w i th  p redecessor  aud i to rs  

da ted  15 January  2018 and i f  you  look a t  the  a t tendees i t  

i s  re f lec ted  tha t  you were  a t tendance.   Can you conf i rm  

tha t?  10 

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And can you jus t  –  do  you reca l l  th is  

meet ing ,  what  was the  pu rpose o f  the  meet ing?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Th is  was,  Cha i r ,  the  meet ing  a f te r  the  AG 

had comple ted  h i s  aud i t  o f  South  A f r i can A i rways and the  

a im o f  the  meet ing ,  Cha i r ,  they  were  tak ing  us  th rough the  

f ina l  resu l ts ,  he  ra ised a  number  o f  qua l i f i ca t ions tha t  they 

inc luded in  the  aud i t  op in ion  and,  i f  I  reca l l ,  Cha i r ,  i t  was  

cour tesy  meet ing  f rom the  AG because a t  tha t  s tage,  Cha i r ,  

they  were  –  were  about  to  s ign  o f f  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  20 

and they had to  go  and present  to  par l iament .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And i f  I  unders tand i t  as  i t  i s  recorded 

under  i tem 3  on  page 185 the  main  pu rpose o f  the  meet ing  

was to  d i scuss,  amongst  o thers ,  the  aud i t  ou tcomes o f  SAA 

which  may have  regressed s ince  the  AGSA – tha t  i s  
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re fe r r i ng  to  the  Aud i to r -Genera l  o f  South  A f r i ca ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  wh ich  may have regressed s ince  the  

Aud i to r -Genera l  took over  the  aud i t  in  the  2016/2017 

f inanc ia l  year .    

The fac t  tha t  there  may have been quest ions f rom 

the  users  o f  SAA AFS,  tha t  i s  aud i ted  f inanc ia l  s ta tements ,  

tha t  m ight  be  asked why the  op in ion  regressed and to  t ry  

to  fo rmula te  an  answer  to  tha t  quest ion  togethe r  as  the  10 

AGSA and prev ious aud i to rs ,  tha t  i s  PwC and Nkonk i .   I s  

tha t  a  fa i r  reco rda l?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r ,  i f  my memory  se rves me r igh t ,  

Cha i r ,  yes ,  we had a  meet ing  and the  ou tcomes  o f  the  

aud i t  were  shared w i th  us  and then –  I  th ink  bus iness 

execut ive  was Mr  Eugene Zungu,  he  is  the  na t iona l  leader ,  

because was respons ib le  fo r  s ign ing  the  aud i t  op in ion .    

The idea was to  fami l ia r i se  PwC and Nkonk i  o f  the  

f ina l  ou tcomes and tha t  they were  ready fo r  s ignatu re ,  they  

were  go ing  to  pa r l iament .   I  was no t  a  meet ing  to  –  fo r  PwC 20 

or  Nkonk i  to  g ive  input  because  the  aud i t  was a l ready 

f ina l i sed and they were  meant  to  go  and present  to  

par l iament .    

 So i t  was a  cour tesy  fo r  them to  share  the  ou tcomes 

o f  the  aud i t .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  to  share  the  ou tcomes but  a lso  to  

d iscuss w i th  you the  l i ke ly  quest ion ing  tha t  wou ld  come as 

a  consequence o f  the i r  aud i t  f ind ings because  o f  th is  

reg ress ion  tha t  had taken p lace .   I s  tha t  no t  so ,  Mr  

Moth ibe?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  in  the  meet ing  the  d iscuss ion  

focused on what  was the  ou tcome o f  the  meet ing .   The  

meet ing  d id  no t  las t  –  i f  my memory  se rves me r igh t ,  Cha i r,  

I  th ink  –  I  am t ry ing  to  th ink  back,  Cha i r,  i f  you  –  p robab ly  

about  an  hour  o r  so ,  Cha i r,  o r  a  ha l f .   As  I  ind ica ted  i t  was 10 

a  cour tesy  meet ing  because they  had f ina l i sed the  aud i t ,  

they  were  go ing  to  par l iament .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  the  Aud i to r -Genera l  was concerned,  

was i t  no t ,  tha t  s takeho lders  wou ld  have a  number  o f  

quest ions to  ask  o f  the  prev ious  aud i to rs  based on what  

the  Aud i to r -Genera l  had found in  i t s  aud i t  o f  the  2016/2017  

year.   I s  tha t  no t  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  w i l l  be  cor rec t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes and so  they in  fac t  d iscussed w i th  

you what  they thought  the  b ig  a reas were  tha t  s takeho lders  20 

who rece ived the  Aud i to r -Genera l ’s  aud i t  repor t  fo r  tha t  

year  wou ld  l i ke l y  ra ise  because there  was th is  d isc repancy  

between the  c lean aud i ts  tha t  had been rece ived fo r  f i ve  

years  and now a  qua l i f ied  aud i t  op in ion .   I s  tha t  a  fa i r  

summary?  
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MR MOTHIBE:    That  w i l l  be  a  fa i r  summary,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  I  am emboldened in  pu t t ing  tha t  

summary to  you because i t  i s  ac tua l l y  a  paraphrase o f  what  

you see on the  next  page a t  page  1826.   I f  you  tu rn  over  

the  page a t  1826 ,  what  the  m inutes  record  the re  f rom the  

second paragraph is  tha t :  

“What  was d iscussed was key mat te rs  to  no te  tha t  

may be asked by  the  s takeho lders .   They inc lude,  

amongst  o thers . . . ”  

And then the re  is  a  l i s t  o f  what  you a t  tha t  meet ing  w i th  the  10 

Aud i to r -Genera l  were  d i scuss ing  wou ld  be  the  l i ke l y  i ssues  

ra ised.   The f i rs t  i s :  

“ I r regu lar  expend i tu re  has s ign i f i can t ly  inc reased. ”  

The second is :  

“Why the  aud i t  ou tcome has regressed f rom a  c lean  

aud i t  to  a  qua l i f ied  aud i t  op in ion . ”  

And the  th i rd  i s :  

“Why the  s ign i f i can t  mat te rs  repor ted  by  the  AGSA 

in  2016 and 2017 aud i t  were  no t  repor ted  i n  p r i o r  

years . ”  20 

And then there  is  a  re ference to  the  S ta te  Capture  repor t ,  

Cha i r,  and the  par t i cu la r  in te res ts  i n  the  TNA Media  

cont rac t  bu t  tha t  i s  a  mat te r  tha t  we have t raversed 

ex tens i ve l y  e lsewhere .    

But  those th ree  i tems,  tha t  i r regu la r  expend i tu re  
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has  s ign i f i can t ly  increased,  tha t  there  wou ld  be  quest ions 

about  why the  aud i t  ou tcome had  regressed f rom a  c lean  

aud i t  to  a  qua l i f ied  aud i t  op in ion ,  why the  s ign i f i can t  

mat te rs  repor ted  by  the  Aud i to r -Genera l  were  no t  repor ted  

in  p rev ious years ,  d id  th is  cause  you concern  when you  

were  a t  th is  meet ing  and you saw such a  d i f fe ren t  ou tcome 

fo r  the  Aud i to r -Genera l ’s  repor t  as  compared w i th  yours?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  in  apprec ia t ing  tha t  the  Aud i to r -

Genera l  came th rough to  SAA more  than a  year  a f te r  we  

had been there ,  Cha i r,  some o f  the  issues tha t  wou ld  be  10 

ra ised were  pecu l ia r  to  the  years  under  the i r  rev iew and 

not  necessar i l y  i ssues tha t  re la ted  to  the  year  tha t  we 

aud i ted .    

I f  I  g ive  an  example ,  Cha i r,  one o f  the  concerns tha t  

they had re la t ing  to  –  or  [ ind is t inc t ]   was re la t ing  to  the  

va lua t ion  o f  a i r c ra f t .   In  the  year  tha t  we aud i ted ,  Cha i r,  we 

d id  some work  in  tha t  a rea  and we  were  comfo r tab le  in  the  

ou tcomes o f  tha t  aud i t  p rocess.    

The o f f i ce  o f  the  AG had a  cha l l enge in  the  year  

tha t  the  per fo rmed the  work ,  Cha i r,  so  i t  was very  we l l   20 

unders tood tha t  some o f  these issues were  pecu l ia r  to  the  

per iod  tha t  they aud i ted ,  Cha i r .  

A lso  impor tan t ly ,  Cha i r ,  in  tha t  –  and even when  

you ta lk  to  the  issues o f  i r regu la r  expend i tu re .   Concerns 

were  ra ised tha t  the  number  had increased s ign i f i can t ly .   I t  
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i s  impor tan t  to  no te  tha t ,  Cha i r ,  th roughout  our  tenure ,  a t  

South  A f r i can A i rways as  aud i to rs .    

The Aud i to r -Genera l  was pa r t  o f  the  aud i t  

commi t tee  meet ings,  they s tay  inv i tees,  they had access to  

a l l  the  repor ts  tha t  were  pu t  together ,  they had a  good 

unders tand ing  o f  what  was t ransp i r ing ,  Cha i r ,  and a t  no  

t ime were  the re  any concerns ra i sed,  Cha i r ,  th is  on  the  

ou tcomes o f  ou r  aud i ts .    

So,  Cha i r ,  the  issues a re  ra ised in  the  meet ing  and 

a lso  some o f  the  qua l i f i ca t ions are  pecu l ia r  to  2017.   As  I  10 

ind ica ted ,  Cha i r ,  we are  s t i l l  comfor tab le  tha t  a f te r  we 

per fo rmed ou r  aud i t  in  te rms o f  the  ISAs,  Cha i r ,  the  

In te rnat iona l  S tandards on  Aud i t ing ,  the  numbers  fo r  the  

years  2014,  2015 and 2016 are  correc t .   The f inanc ia l  

s ta tements  were  f ree  o f  mate r ia l  m iss ta tement .    

Cha i r ,  we have  made a  concess ion  re la t ing  to  

i ssues re la t ing  to  compl iance w i th  laws and regu la t i ons and 

i r regu lar  expend i tu re  wh ich  is  an  issue tha t  was –  tha t  has 

been ident i f ied  in  th is  meet ing ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you  see,  Mr  Moth ibe ,  th is  i s  qu i te  20 

an  impor tan t  pa r t  o f  the  Commiss ion ’ s  invest iga t ion ,  the  

ro le  o f  aud i to rs  in  the  d i f fe ren t  SOEs tha t  the  Commiss ion  

has been focus ing  on .   Indeed,  we may a lso  be  look ing  a t  

the  ro le  o f  lawyers  as  we l l .    

 Now wi th  regard  to  aud i to rs ,  when  I  heard  ev idence 
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about  what  had been happen ing  a t  SAA – was i t  ear l ie r  th is  

year  o r  las t  year?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bo th .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  can  te l l  you ,  Mr  Moth ibe ,  tha t  one o f  

the  quest ions tha t  came to  my mind and,  I  p robab ly  

a r t i cu la ted  i t  a t  the  hear ing ,  was tha t  when I  was to ld  tha t  I  

th ink  f rom 2011 or  i s  i t  2010?  2011,  2012 f inanc ia l  year  

fo r  SAA up to  I  th ink  2016 tha t  th roughout  tha t  tha t  per iod  

the  aud i to rs  who were  do ing  the  work  gave SAA a  c lean b i l l  

o f  hea l th .    10 

I  sa id  bu t  how cou ld  i t  be  in  the  l igh t  o f  what  I  was  

hear ing?  How is  i t  poss ib le  tha t  year  in ,  year  ou t  fo r  four  

years ,  f i ve  years  aud i to rs  cou ld  no t  f ind  anyth ing  wrong  

when on what  I  am hear ing  there  were  ser ious i r regu la r i t ies  

tha t  were  happen ing ,  how is  i t  poss ib le  tha t  they  d id  no t  

p ick  these th ings up?   

 So I  am jus t  g iv ing  you my react ion  a t  the  t ime.   I  

am not  an  aud i to r .    

MR MOTHIBE:    I  apprec ia te  i t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am not  an  aud i to r  bu t  I  jus t  want  to  say 20 

i f  you  fee l  tha t  PwC dur ing  those years  tha t  i t  was aud i t ing  

SAA tha t  we are  look ing  a t  d id  a  good job  or  tha t  whatever  

i t  d id  does not  deserve  cr i t i c i sm,  fee l  f ree  to  de fend i t ,  th is  

i s  your  oppor tun i ty  to  do  so .   I t  may be tha t  some o f  the  

th ings tha t  someone l i ke  me who is  no t  an  aud i to r  i s  
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surpr i sed by  are  th ings tha t  I  am surpr ised by  because I  

am not  an  aud i to r.  

 I f  I  was an aud i to r  maybe I  wou ld  unders tand bet te r  

bu t  i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  you make sure  tha t  these th ings are  

exp la ined i f  they  are  exp l i cab le  in  a  proper  way,  bu t  as  I  s i t  

here  what  i s  in  my mind is  s t i l l  the  quest ion  tha t  I  asked 

ear l ie r  th is  year  o r  las t  year  to  say how was i t  poss ib le  tha t  

fo r  four  yea rs  or  more  aud i to rs  cou ld  no t  p ick  up  a t  leas t  

some o f  these th ings because I  do  unders tand tha t  aud i to rs  

work  on  the  bas is  o f  samples  and so  on ,  so  I  am jus t  g iv ing  10 

you th is  p i c tu re  so  tha t  you jus t  re f lec t  p roper l y  on  what  

you –  how you –  what   you w i l l  de fend,  what  you w i l l  no t  

de fend w i th  an  unders tand ing  o f  where  I  am coming f rom 

which  m ight  o r  m ight  no t  be  the  same perspect ive  tha t  Ms  

Hofmeyr  has.  

MR MOTHIBE:    Thank you Cha i r  I  apprec ia te  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  you cou ld  cont inue to  answer  the  

quest ions tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  can  put  to  you bu t  i f ,  in  

response to  the  remarks  I ’ ve  made,  there ’s  someth ing  you  

want  to  say,  fee l  f ree  to  say i t .   I f  you  say you ’ l l  wa i t  fo r  20 

the  quest ion ,  tha t ’s  f ine .  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  thank you Cha i r  I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  I  do 

apprec ia te  where  the  Cha i r  i s  coming f rom,  Cha i r  the  

issues tha t  have  been ident i f ied  a t  South  A f r i can A i rways 

as  I  p rev ious l y  ment ioned Cha i r,  dur ing  our  tenure  we d id  
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look  a t  p rocurement  and cont rac t  management ,  we d id  

ident i f y  dev ia t i ons.   We sought  responses f rom 

Management  to  unders tand how –  what  has happened so  

tha t  we can appropr ia te ly  repor t  on  tha t .   We e leva ted the  

mat te rs  w i th  those charged w i th  governance,  the  Aud i t  

Commi t tee  th roughout  ou r  tenure  a t  South  A f r i can A i rways,  

Cha i r.   What  we have inc luded,  Cha i r,  in  our  supp lementa ry  

s ta tement  i s  tha t  we acknowledge tha t  we shou ld  have 

probab ly  –  we  shou ld  have inc luded these  –  tha t  

compl iance mat te rs  in  the  Aud i t  repor t  as  requ i red  in  the  10 

paragraph under  compl iance w i th  laws and regu la t ions  

Cha i r.   So,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  know tha t  we d id  the  

work ,  we ident i f ied  these issues Cha i r,  i t  i s  the  repor t ing  

e lement  r igh t  a t  the  end where ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  judgement ,  

Cha i r,  we got  incor rec t  and tha t  i s  the  supp lementary  

submiss ion  tha t  we have made to  the  Commiss ion ,  Cha i r.   

Cha i r  as  I  emphas ised ear l ie r,  these mat te rs  re la te  to  the 

compl iance s ide  on  the  numbers ,  Cha i r,  we pe r fo rmed 

su f f i c ien t  work ,  we d id  proper  assessment ,  ident i f ied  

cer ta in  a reas tha t  requ i red  a t ten t ion ,  we fo l lowed  20 

substant ive  aud i t  approach because we cou ld  no t  re ly  on  

the  cont ro ls ,  Cha i r  and we were  ab le  to  ge t  comfor t  that  

the  numbers  inc luded in  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tement  fa i r l y  

p resent  the  pos i t ion  a t  South  A f r i can A i rways Cha i r  and  

tha t  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  were  f ree  o f  mater ia l  m is takes 
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made.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Mr  Moth ibe  you ’ re  aware  tha t  Mr  

Sokombela ’s  ev idence was tha t  once they ’d  looked back 

and rece ived your  aud i t  f i l es  and looked a t  the  work  tha t  

you ’d  done,  they cou ld  no t  re ly  on  the  c los ing  ba lances you 

had determined i t ,  fo r  the  31  March 2016 year  as  the i r  

open ing  ba lance fo r  the i r  aud i t ing  purposes?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  as  pa r t  o f  the  rev iew o f  open ing  

ba lances we –  the  o f f i ce  o f  AG engaged w i th  us  and they 

requested  access to  our  f i l es  t o  ge t  an  unders tand ing  o f  10 

the  numbers .   There  were  areas where  they fe l t  they  cou ld  

no t  re ly  on  open ing  ba lances because they fe l t  they  cou ld  

no t  per fo rm some o f  the  work  tha t  we had done.   We 

engaged w i th  Mr  Sokombela  and shared w i th  h im the  fac t  

tha t  –  remember  we had been aud i to rs  o f  South  A f r i can  

A i rways fo r  a  number  o f  years  and in  cer ta in  a reas –  

because we ’ve  been do ing  them for  consecut ive  years .  We 

a lso  took comfo r t  on  the  work  tha t  was per fo rmed in  

p rev ious years  i n  some o f  the  key areas and he ,  in  h is  

d iscuss ions w i th  us ,  was on ly  –  and r igh t ly  so  I  suppose  20 

Cha i r,  he  was on ly  p repared to  look  a t  the  2016 f i le  and  

not  look  a t  a l l  the  o ther  f i l es  because,  Cha i r,  had tha t  been 

poss ib le  we def in i te ly  wou ld  have been ab le  to  ge t  comfor t  

on  those numbers  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  mean,  I ’m  not  sure  i f  tha t  answered the  
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quest ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  maybe you  might  have to  repeat .   

Jus t  l i s ten  ca re fu l l y  to  the  quest ion  Mr  Moth ibe .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    A re  you aware  tha t  the  ev idence  o f  Mr  

Sokombela ,  be fore  th is  Commiss ion ,  was tha t  he  cou ld  no t  

re ly  on  your  c los ing  ba lance fo r  the  pu rposes  o f  h is  

open ing  ba lance?  

MR MOTHIBE:    I ’m  aware  o f  Mr  Sokombela ’s  ev idence in  

tha t  regard .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you d isagree  w i th  h is  approach?  

MR MOTHIBE:    There  were  e lements  in  the  d iscuss ions 

where  we d id  no t  f ind  each o ther  Cha i r,  bu t  i t  i s  the  

approach o f  the  Aud i to r  Genera l ,  Cha i r,  I  cannot  quest ion  

the  way they pe r fo rmed the i r  work  Cha i r,  I ’m  no t  in  a  

pos i t ion  to  do  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Mr  Moth ibe  i f  you  wou ld  tu rn  to  page 

1826 we were  l ook ing  a t  the  aspects  tha t  the  Aud i to r  

Genera l ’s  o f f i ce  had sa id  s takeho lders  wou ld  be  in te res ted  

in  and then in  the  m idd le  o f  the  page,  I  hadn ’ t  qu i te  go t  to  20 

i t  ye t ,  there ’s  another  recorda l  o f  what  the  Aud i to r  

Genera l ’s  o f f i ce  no t i f ied  you o f ,  i t  reads as  fo l lows:  

“The prev ious aud i to rs  were  no t i f ied  tha t  there  is  a  

huge r i sk  on  SCM,  tha t  s tands fo r  Supp ly  Cha in  

Management ” ,  
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 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    “And SCOPA might  need answers  f rom  

the  prev ious aud i to rs  on  why th i s  mat te r  was no t  

repor ted  in  p r i o r  years .   The prev ious aud i to rs  need 

to  p repare  themse lves,  espec ia l l y  on  SCM i f  they ’ re  

ca l led  to  do  a  presenta t ion  by  SCOPA or  

Par l iament ,  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    I  see  tha t  Cha i r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  th is  was in  a  meet ing  o f  January  o f  

2018 where  i t  was brought  to  your  a t ten t ion  tha t  there  was 

a  huge r i sk  on  Supp ly  Cha in  Management ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And when you s tar ted  engag ing  w i th  the  

Commiss ion ,  do  you reca l l  tha t  the  Commiss ion  i nd ica ted  

to  you tha t  one  o f  the i r  key  a reas o f  focus was SCM 

compl iance?  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  why d idn ’ t  you,  in  your  f i rs t  20 

in te rac t ions w i th  the  Commiss ion ,  come c lean and say,  yes  

there  were  de f ic ienc ies  on  SCM,  we d id  no t  adequate ly  

check fo r  whethe r  SAA was comp ly ing  w i th  re levant  laws 

and regu la t ions?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  when the  Commiss ion  s ta r ted ,  i t  
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was a f te r  the  o f f ice  o f  the  AGS and o f  the i r  op in ion ,  and we  

–  a f te r  tha t ,  Cha i r,  the  Regu la tor  had accessed the  repor t  

and was mak ing  enqu i r ies ,  invest iga t ing  the  PwC and  

Nkonk i  w i th  regards to  work  tha t  they had pe r fo rmed.   A t  

tha t  s tage,  Cha i r,  we were  happy,  we were  comfor tab le  tha t  

what  we had done wou ld  have been su f f i c ien t .   I t  was on ly  

when the  regu la tor  comple ted  h is  work ,  and in  fac t  Cha i r,  

i t ’s  on ly  th is  year  in  March tha t  when we looked a t  the  

input  f rom the  Regu la tor  and we took tha t  and read tha t  

w i th  Mr  Sokombela ’s  ev idence tha t  we accepted tha t  th is  i s  10 

an  area tha t  wou ld  have requ i red  –  we shou ld  have had  

…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You rea l i sed tha t ,  tha t ’s  an  a rea where  

you fe l l  shor t?   

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  Mr  Moth ibe  in  September  o f  2017 

the  Aud i to r  Genera l  sa id  he  wou ld  no t  re ly  on  your  work  on  

SCM,  in  January  o f  2018 the  Aud i to r  Genera l  sa id  t here  is  

a  huge r i sk  on  Supp ly  Cha in  Management  and SCOPA is  

l i ke ly  to  be  ask ing  quest ions o f  how we cou ld  have gone 20 

f rom a  c lean aud i t  op in ion  to  a  qua l i f ied  aud i t  op in ion  in  

the  space o f  one year  and desp i te  a l l  o f  tha t ,  i s  i t  your  

ev idence befo re  th is  Commiss ion ,  tha t  you on ly  came to  

rea l i se  tha t  there  was Supp ly  Cha in  Management  

de f ic ienc ies  in  your  work ,  by  March o f  th is  yea r?  
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MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r  as  I  ind ica ted  befo re  Cha i r,  the  

issue tha t  was,  aga in  was there  the  lack  o f  repor t ing  o f  the  

issues tha t  were  ident i f ied  when  we per fo rmed work  on  

Supp ly  Cha in  Management  Cha i r,  i t  i s  no t  tha t  i t  was not  

per fo rmed i t  i s  the  fa i lu re  to  repor t  these dev ia t ions in  the  

aud i t  op in ion ,  i t ’s  no t  to  say tha t  no  work  was pe r fo rmed  

ear l ie r  Cha i r  and  I  th ink  Cha i r,  the  quest ion  tha t  has come 

f rom SCOPA is  tha t  th is  –  the  op in ions say there ’s  no  – 

there ’s  no t  enough compl iance.   Subsequent  to  tha t  there  

is  a  lo t  o f  non-compl iance,  what  has happened,  what  i s  the  10 

gap and tha t  i s  where  we acknowledge,  Cha i r,  tha t  much as  

we had done the  work  we had fa i led  to  repor t  tha t  to  the  

shareho lders  Cha i r  and tha t  i s  tha t  las t  l ink  tha t  was 

outs tand ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I sn ’ t  tha t  leg  a  very  impor tan t  leg? 

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r  i t  i s  an  impor tan t  leg  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  the  way you tes t i f y  a round i t ,  

and I  th ink  tha t  has been the  case  in  regard  to  o the r  a reas  

where  you acknowledged tha t  you  fe l l  sho r t ,  one gets  the  

impress ion  tha t  you are  t ry ing  to  g ive  the  impress ion  tha t  20 

where  you fe l l  shor t  in  re la t ion  to  someth ing  impor tan t ,  you 

say –  you emphas ise ,  we  d id  the  work ,  where  we fa i led  or  

we fe l l  sho r t  i s  repor t ing  tha t ,  as  I  unders tand i t  and  I  th ink  

you concede  tha t  repor t ing  i s  very  impor tan t  i sn ’ t  i t ,  i t  i s  

par t  o f  your  job  and i t ’s  ve ry  impor tan t  i s  i t  no t?  
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MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r  I  unders tand where  the  Cha i r  –  

where  Cha i r  i s  coming f rom,  I  th ink  i t  i s ,  fo r  me,  a lso  very  

impor tan t  to  recogn ise  tha t  work  was per fo rmed Cha i r,  I  do  

apprec ia te  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :   Yes.     

MR MOTHIBE:    I  th ink  Cha i r,  I  needed to  c la r i f y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you d idn ’ t  in tend to  say,  i t ’s  no t  

impor tan t .  

MR MOTHIBE:    Def in i te ly  Cha i r  tha t  was never  my 

in ten t ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.   

MR MOTHIBE:    I  do  apprec ia te  ou r  ro le…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  jus t  want  to  p ick  up  on the  po in t  tha t  

the  work  was pe r fo rmed.     Mr  Moth ibe  you accept ,  in  your  

supp lementary  s ta tement  tha t  there  were  l im i ta t ions  p laced  

on the  scope o f  your  aud i t  because o f ,  fo r  examp le ,  the 

lack  o f  tender  f i les ,  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r  I  do  agree w i th  tha t  inso far  as  i t  

re la tes  to  Supp ly  Cha in  and Cont rac t  Management .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  then the  work  tha t  you pe r fo rmed 

cou ld  no t  adequa te ly  de termine,  fo r  example ,  whether  the  

amount  s t ipu la ted  fo r  i r regu lar  expend i tu re  in  the  f inanc ia l  

s ta tements  was accura te ,  cou ld  i t?  

MR MOTHIBE:   Cha i r,  tha t  shou ld  be  cor rec t  Cha i r.   
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ADV HOFMEYR:    I ’d  then l i ke  to  look  a t  what  the  Aud i to r  

Genera l ’s  repor t  fo r  the  2017 f inanc ia l  year  gave  as  i t ’s  

impor tan t  e lemen ts  and how they  dea l t  w i th  aspects  l i ke  

i r regu lar  expend i tu re  and then I ’m  go ing  to  compare  tha t  to  

the  aud i t  repor t  fo r  the  2016 year  wh ich  you s igned o f f  on  

and to  do  tha t  exerc i se ,  Cha i r  and  Mr  Moth ibe ,  we ’ l l  need 

to  go  –  and i f  your  reg is t ra r  can  jus t  ass is t ,  jus t  to  g ive  

you,  Cha i r  Exh ib i t  DD2B,  we ’ve  been work ing  in  D you can 

put  i t  away now I  won ’ t  go  back there  we ’ re  go ing  to  

Exh ib i t  2…[ in te rvenes] .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  you do tha t…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  we take th is  o f f  ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  ac tua l l y  th ink  I  need to  be  in  D,  so  

p lease keep D bu t  p lease go-ahead Cha i r,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t ’s  go  back Mr  Moth ibe  to  page 

1826,  tha t ’s  the  las t  page you were  look ing  a t  I  th ink  – oh  

you have put  i t  away,  ja  le t ’s  go  back page 1826,  tha t ’s  the  

m inutes  o f  the  meet ing  be tween yourse l ves and the  AG.  

MR MOTHIBE:    I  have got  i t  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  now tha t  sentence tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  

read to  you ear l ie r  on  i n  the  m idd le  o f  the  page,  the  

prev ious aud i to rs  were  no t i f ied  tha t  there ’s  a  huge  r i sk  on  

SCM and SCOPA might  need answers  f rom – i t  must  have 

in tended to  say there ’s  a  huge r i sk  tha t ,  on  SCM SCOPA 
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m igh t  need answers ,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  p robab ly  how i t  shou ld  

read,  f rom the  prev ious aud i to rs  on  why th is  mat te r  was not  

repor ted  in  p r io r  yea rs .   That  suggests  tha t  the  non-

repor t ing  was not  conf ined to  one year,  you agree? 

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  how many years  d id  the  non-

repor t ing  in  regards to  th is  aspect  re la te  to?  

MR MOTHIBE:    S i r  I  was a  v is ion  par tne r  fo r  th ree  years .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Three years  yes,  so  they say there ’s  a  

huge r i sk ,  tha t  seems to  me tha t  they a re  ta lk ing  about  10 

someth ing  regarded as  rea l l y  ve ry  ser ious in  the  fa i lu re  to  

do  work  tha t  PwC was supposed  to do ,  i s  tha t  the  same 

unders tand ing  you get  f rom th is ,  a t  leas t  the i r  perspect ive?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r  I  wou ld  say –  I  wou ldn ’ t  say  fa i lu re  

to  do  work  bu t  ra ther  to  say fa i lu re  –  I  wou ldn ’ t  say  i t ’s  a  

fa i lu re ,  I  th ink  f rom …[ ind is t i nc t  16 .39 ]  they  lack  to  

unders tand why there  has been such a  de ter io ra t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes  bu t  a f te r  they had sa id  th is ,  I  

wou ld  have thought  tha t  you wou ld  have taken t ime to  look  

a t  th is  aspect  and PwC’s  ro le  o r  fa i lu re  to  repor t  and you 20 

wou ld  have made an assessment  to  see whether  there  i s  

jus t i f i ca t ion  in  any cr i t i c i sm o f  PwC’s  work  in  re la t ion  to  the  

fa i lu re  to  repor t  in  th is  regard ,  d id  you do tha t  a f te r  

becoming aware  what  they were  say ing ,  d id  you re f lec t  and 

say,  rea l l y  d id  we –  can we be cr i t i c i sed or  can we not  be  
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c r i t i c i sed on th is?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r  a t  the  t ime Cha i r  the  v iew tha t  we  

were  tak ing  is  tha t  we had done su f f i c ien t  work  Cha i r,  and  

i f  there  was a  need fo r  us  to  appear  be fore  SCOPA Cha i r,  

we shou ld  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  appear  and exp la in  what  we  

have done.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now you may have taken tha t  v iew 

before  you heard  what  the  AG was say ing  bu t  a f te r  the  AG 

had sa id  th is ,  d id  you cont inue w i th  tha t  pos i t ion  a f te r  

re f lec t ing  or  d id  you not  re f lec t  and look a t  the  work  aga in  10 

and s t i l l  to  the  same pos i t ion?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  a t  tha t  s tage Cha i r,  i f  I  reca l l  the  

manager  o r  sen ior  manager  who was respons ib le  fo r  

per fo rm ing th is  work  had prev ious l y  worked fo r  the  o f f i ce  o f  

the  AG and in  tha t  regard  Cha i r,  one had comfo r t  tha t ,  w i th  

h is  background we shou ld  be  ab le  to  cover  a l l  the  cr i t i ca l  

a reas,  there  was a  comfo r t  tha t  I  had a t  leas t  Cha i r,  to  the  

ex ten t  tha t  th is  w i l l  re f lec t  the  2016 f inanc ia l  yea r  tha t  we 

aud i ted ,  the  2014 and 2015 f inanc ia l  yea rs  where  these 

areas were  ment ioned by  Nkonk i  Cha i r,  there  had been th is  20 

fa i r l y  …[ ind is t inc t  19 .17 ]  a t  o ther  b ig  en terp r ises  Cha i r.  

The v iew was tha t  we shou ld  be  ab le  to  demonst ra te  tha t  

we had done su f f i c ien t  work  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  was the  v iew – d id  you accept ,  a t  

tha t  s tage tha t  you had not ,  as  PwC repor ted  what  you  
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shou ld  have repor ted  o r  were  you –  d id  you th ink  t ha t  you  

had repor ted  a t  a  fac tua l  leve l .   When the  AG sa id  there  

was th is  huge r i sk  tha t  SCOPA might  need answers  f rom 

you on why th is  mat te r  was not  repor ted  in  p r io r  years ,  no t  

in  one year,  in  pr io r  years ,  was your  v iew tha t ,  fac tua l l y,  

you had not  repor ted  or  was your  v iew tha t  you had 

repor ted  and I  don ’ t  even know whether  i t ’s  a  v iew,  I  th ink  

i t ’s  fac tua l?   Had you repor ted  in  p r io r  years  on  th is  mat te r,  

a t  leas t  now you accept  tha t  you have not  repor ted ,  I  th ink ,  

you accept  bu t  as  a t  the  t ime o f  th is  meet ing ,  d id  you 10 

accept  tha t  you had not  repor ted  th is  mat te r  in  the  pr io r  

years?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  apo log ies ,  I ’m  t ry ing  

to…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Try ing  to  go  back bu t…[ in te rvenes] .  

MR MOTHIBE:    Try ing  to  go  back  Cha i r,  so…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No I  unders tand but  tha t ’s  why I  was  

say ing  to  you,  I  wou ld  have expected you,  when the  AG’s  

o f f i ce  says th is  about  you r  work ,  tha t  the  least  you  wou ld  

do  is  go  back and say,  i s  there  someth ing  tha t  we have  20 

missed,  le t  us  check,  d id  we do ou r  work  proper l y?  

MR MOTHIBE:   And I  th ink ,  Cha i r  –  hence I  say  Cha i r,  par t  

o f  the  comfor t  tha t  one had was tha t  we had a l loca ted  th is  

par t  o f  work  to  somebody who had,  in  fac t ,  spent  t ime in  

the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Aud i to r  Genera l  and tha t  they 
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unders tood…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  check ing  whether  you had repor ted  

th is  o r  no t  wou ld  be  an easy th ing  isn ’ t  i t ,  i t  shou ldn ’ t  even  

take  ten  m inutes ,  I ’d  imag ing  you ’d  jus t  go  to  the  repor ts  

and check o r  i s  i t  more  compl i ca ted  than somebody tha t ’s  

no t  an  aud i to r,  l i ke  me,  th inks?  I s  i t  no t  a  mat te r  o f  ge t t ing  

those aud i t  repor ts  fo r  those years  and check ing  whethe r  

you had repor ted  or  no t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r  I  do  be l ieve  we knew what  we had  

repor ted ,  i t  was based on the  work  tha t  had been 10 

per fo rmed,  Cha i r,  and as  I  d id  ind ica te ,  unders tand ing  what  

we had repor ted  we were  comfor tab le  a t  tha t  s tage tha t  the  

work  per fo rmed suppor ted  what  had been repor ted  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  my quest ion  is ,  here  the  AG is  

say ing  there ’s  a  huge r i sk  tha t  SCOPA might  need answers  

f rom you on why th is  mat te r  was not  repor ted  in  p r io r  

years ,  so  I ’m  say ing  when the  AG says tha t ,  the  f i rs t  th ing  

s i t t ing  in  tha t  meet ing  tha t  shou ld  have c rossed your  m ind 

is ,  d id  we not  repor t  in  the  pr io r  yea rs  and you ’d  e i ther  

know tha t  you d id  repor t  i t  o r  d idn ’ t  repor t  o r  i f  you  d idn ’ t  20 

know you wou ld  want  to  go  and check a t  the  ear l ies t  

oppor tun i ty,  maybe a f te r  the  meet ing  to  say,  d id  we repor t  

th is ,  because i f  you d id  no t  repor t ,  the  next  th ing  is ,  i s  i t  

someth ing  we shou ld  have repor ted  and i f  we – i f  i t  i s  

someth ing  tha t  we shou ld  have  repor ted  and we d idn ’ t  
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repor t ,  then i f  we must  take  respons ib i l i t y  we must  take  

respons ib i l i t y  i f  we can defend i t  then we ’ l l  de fend i t .  So 

my quest ion  is ,  a t  tha t  s tage d id  you know whethe r  you had  

repor ted  th is  dur ing  those years  o r  no t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r  l i ke  I  sa id  I  was aware  tha t  we had  

not  repor ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You were  aware  tha t  you had not  

repor ted?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and a t  tha t  s tage d id  you  th ink  i t  10 

was someth ing  tha t  you shou ld  no t  have repor ted?  

MR MOTHIBE:    And I  th ink  Cha i r,  what  I  was a l lud ing  to  

was tha t ,  based on the  work  tha t  had been per fo rmed,  the  

leve l  o f  peop le  t ha t  had per fo rmed and the  exper ience o f  

peop le  tha t  had per fo rmed,  we were  comfor tab le  tha t  we  

had done enough work  to  suppor t  what  i s  in  the  aud i t  

repor t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  okay,  le t  me make sure  we  

unders tand each  o the r.   As  I  say  I ’m  not  an  aud i to r,  you  

are  an  aud i to r,  as  I  unders tand there  a re  cer ta in  th ings  20 

tha t  must  be  repor ted .  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  a re  cer ta in  th ings tha t  don ’ t  need  

to  be  repor ted .  

MR MOTHIBE:    Yes Cha i r.   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Now the  AG says,  here  is  someth ing  tha t  

shou ld  have been repor ted  in  p r io r  yea rs  bu t  was not  

repor ted ,  accord ing  to  the  –  tha t ’s  how I  unders tand  th is .  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r  I  unders tand i t ,  maybe  s l igh t ly  

d i f fe ren t ly  Cha i r  i n  tha t  when the  AG per fo rmed h is  work  on  

Supp ly  Cha in  Management ,  he  had ident i f ied  de f ic ienc ies  

wh ich  he  then was repor t ing  and the  amount  o f  de f ic ienc ies  

ident i f ied  compared to  the  fac t  tha t  no th ing  was repor ted  in  

the  prev ious year,  as  recorded ea r l ie r  Cha i r,  why i s  there  

such a  b ig  d i f fe rence.  So Cha i r  i t ’s  no t  to  say  maybe,  10 

because he had  repor ted  we shou ld  have repor ted  bu t  

ra the r  why is  there  such a  d i f fe ren t ia t ion  and my v iew then  

was,  the  work  tha t  we have per fo rmed suppor ted  – i f  the 

AG Cha i r,  has repor ted  i t  was repor ted  based on the  work  

tha t  he  has pe r fo rmed and there fo re  i t  suppor t s  the  k ind  o f  

repor t  we had g iven Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You see,  what  I ’m  look ing  a t  i s ,  whether,  

when someth ing  was po in ted  out  to  you a t  tha t  meet ing  as  

I  unders tand i t ,  as  need ing  answers ,  whether  a t  tha t  s tage 

there  was a  bas i s  fo r  you to  th ink  you d id  have a  proper  20 

answer  because you sa id  you thought  you were  sa t is f ied  

tha t  you had done the  job  and you  cou ld  answer,  tha t ’s  how 

I  unders tand you  but  I  th ink  you  are  agree ing ,  and you  

must  te l l  me i f  I  m isunders tood you,  you are  ag ree ing  tha t ,  

as  a  mat te r  o f  fac t  you ought  to   have repor ted  in  those  
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years  bu t  you d id  no t  repor t ,  you accept  tha t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Yes Cha i r,  tha t  i s  what  i s  in  the 

supp lementary  s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  you accept  tha t  as  o f  today as  

you s i t  there ,  my next  quest ion  is  whether,  a t  tha t  t ime 

when the  AG sa id  th is ,  you knew as a  mat te r  o f  fac t  tha t  

you had not  repor ted  or  you d id  no t  know? 

MR MOTHIBE:    I  knew a t  tha t  t ime tha t  I  had not  repor ted  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And d id  you th ink  you had an acceptab le 10 

answer  fo r  no t  hav ing  repor ted?  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And what  was tha t  answer?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r  i t  i s  based on the  work  tha t  we have  

been per fo rmed tha t  we had emp loyed somebody in  tha t  

a rea  who had exper ience in  pe r fo rming th is  k ind  o f  work  

and the  resu l t  tha t  were  fed  th rough to  us ,  we d id  cons ide r,  

we app l ied  our  judgement  and a t  tha t  s tage we d id  no t  

be l ieve  tha t  they  shou ld  be  –  we  d id  no t  be l ieve  tha t  i t  

shou ld  be  in  the  aud i t  op in ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  –  so  is  your  –  was your  answer,  a t  

tha t  t ime tha t  you wou ld  say,  we were  no t  supposed to  

repor t  du r ing  those –  to  repor t  th is  mat te r  dur ing  those 

years  or  was your  answer,  we accept  tha t  we shou ld  have  

repor ted  bu t  we  have an exp lanat ion  why we d id  no t  
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repor t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r  a t  the  t ime ,  based on what  we had  

done and the  judgement  we had app l ied  a t  the  t ime Cha i r,  

we d id  no t  th ink  we shou ld  have repor ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You d id  no t  th ink  you shou ld  have  

repor ted .  

MR MOTHIBE:    A t  tha t  t ime Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r.   So jus t  to  c la r i f y,  fo r  

the  who le  o f  2018 you he ld  the  v iew tha t  SAA had compl ied  10 

w i th  re levant  laws and regu la t ions  fo r  the  th ree  years  tha t  

you aud i ted  them,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Based on the  work  tha t  we had done and  

the  judgement  tha t  we had app l ied .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then in  2019 you cont inue to  ho ld  

tha t  v iew,  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    As  I  ind ica ted  Cha i r,  the  work  was  sub jec t  

to  invest iga t ion ,  however,  and Cha i r  a t  th is  s tage we –  

when we hand led  the  f i le ,  we be l ieved tha t  we had done  

su f f i c ien t  Cha i r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry  Ms Hofmeyr  maybe fo r  the  benef i t  

o f  the  t ranscr ibe rs  you can jus t  spe l l  tha t  abbrev ia t ion  o f  

IRBA for  them.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    O f  Course ,  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    O the rwise  they ’ l l  w r i te  someth ing  

…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t ’s  I -R-B-A ,  thank you.   So,  we c la r i f ied  

2018 you he ld  the  v iew tha t  SAA had compl ied  w i th  laws  

and regu la t ions,  2019 you were  te l l ing  us  tha t  an  

invest iga t ion  by  IRBA s tar ted ,  so  what  was your  pos i t ion  in  

2019,  had SAA compl ied?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r  when the  i nvest iga t ion  was –  there  

was –  IRBA,  pu t  to  us  quest ions,  we responded,  they came 10 

back and asked more  quest ions there  were  areas where  we 

had –  were  ab le  to  g ive  them responses,  Cha i r  and i t  was 

on ly  –  tha t  p rocess was on ly  f ina l i sed th is  year  in  March.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  i s  the  answer  tha t  dur ing  the  

invest iga t ion  by  IRBA you cont inued to  be l ieve  tha t  SAA 

had compl ied  w i th  leg is la t ion  un t i l  the  ou tcome o f  the  IRBA 

invest iga t ion  tha t ’s  when you were  conv inced tha t  you 

shou ld  have repor ted?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r  a t  th is  s tage,  Cha i r  we sa id there 

was no mater ia l  non-compl iance Chai r.   So Chai r  the  – that  20 

is  a lways absolute assurance but  we said – we said to  our  

v iewers that  there  was no mater ia l  non-compl iance Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then the commission received Mr  

Sokombela ’s  ev idence in  March and I  –  as I  understood 

your  ev idence ear l ier  that  he lped to focus the mind.   Sor ry 
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they received Mr  Sokombela ’s  ev idence in  February and 

then that  he lped to focus the mind and by March of  2020 

you accepted that  those ind icat ions that  there had been 

compl iance were incorrect .   Is  that  r ight?  

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r  a f ter  –  we got  responses f rom the 

Regulator  and the i r  v iew was the Regulator ’s  v iew was that  

we had not  compl ied and the v iew f rom the [ ind is t inct  

00:00:49]  was that  to  me concerned and af ter  reading the  

Regulator ’s  response we looked at  o ther  in format ion Mr 

[ ind is t inct  00:01:00]  and chai r  the v iew that  we took was 10 

that  there was probably a non-compl iance which we had 

ident i f ied but  had not  inc luded in  the audi t  op in ion and we 

should have done that .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Moth ibe in  fa i rness to  you I  th ink I  

must  put  th is  for  your  response.   That  passage of  events 

suggests at  least  to  me and I  inv i te  your  comment  on th is  

that  for  two years unt i l  the shoe star ted to  p inch,  unt i l  the  

publ i c  exposure of  the def ic ient  audi t ing work by  PwC – 

PwC was content  not  to  come c lean about  the errors i t  had 

made.   And i t  was only when there  was publ i c  d isc losure in  20 

the cour t  a t  th is  – in  the course o f  th is  commission ’s work  

that  you then had another  th ink and have made the 

concessions that  you have made.   Do you have a response 

to that?  

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r  the concession was made a f ter  the  



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 81 of 255 
 

rev iew by our  Regulator.   Chai r  the process was ongoing  

and Chai r  one does not  want  to  an t ic ipate outcomes of  a  –  

of  a  process.   Secondly  Chai r  we do know that  the  

processes unfor tunate ly  i t  does take a b i t  o f  t ime Chai r  and 

when we in i t ia l l y  issued our  opin ions,  we appl ied our  mind 

we appl ied our  judgment  on the  outcomes Chai r.   As I  

deemed – I  have a l ready ind icated Chai r  these mat te rs were 

ident i f ied and they were e levated to  the Audi t  Commit tee 

and Management  so i t  was not  a  – I  am not  sure  i f  I  am 

using the r ight  words that  Ms Hofmeyr says a  fa i lure  10 

because work was per fo rmed i t  is  easi l y  ident i f ied so – and 

I  do not  want  to  –  and I  th ink Chai r  as  you ment ioned ear l ie r  

I  do not  want  to  make i t  sound l ike  i t  is  not  a  –  i t  is  a  

repor t ing [ ind is t inct  00:02:57]  but  that  is  where we fe l l  shor t  

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hm.  What is i t  that  the Regulator said 

that  you had not  been aware of  that  made you accept  that  

there had been a fai lure in a certain respect  on PwC’s part?  

In other words what was new that  they said which you had 

not  thought about  that  – that  made you see things di f ferent ly  20 

af ter the outcome of  thei r  invest igat ion? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  the Regulator went through the – 

requested our f i les went through a thorough process and i t  

was Chai r  the Regulator ’s v iew was that  the i tems that  he 

ident i f ied would not  require a judgment Chair  which we have 
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– the views that  we should have reported them – the matters 

would have been mater ia l  because the – I  am try ing to use 

the r ights words Chai r.   An indicat ion when we could not  get  

– when we could not  receive the – in some of  the areas the 

f i les that  we were looking for which would – should have said 

that  the – there is mater ia l  non-compl iance and should have 

been reported Chai r.   And the Regulator also read i t  wi th the 

– the Audi tor Generals Guide on how they approach these 

matters Chai r.   And i t  was that  – the problem Chair  was that  

the judgment – the [ indist inct  00:04:49]  judgment Chai r  got  i t  10 

wrong we should have reported these matters where we did 

not  report  them Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You know you said ear l ier on please Ms 

Hofmeyr do not  forget  your l ine.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Not  at  al l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You said ear l ier on and you have 

emphasised that  you ident i f ied did you say the non-

compl iances? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Yes Chair  which are non-compl iance.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  did you not  report  that? 20 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And the reason why you did not  report  

them is that  you did not  th ink they were mater ia l  non-

compl iances? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  at  th is stage… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  r ight? 

MR MOTHIBE:   At  that  stage Chai r  that  is what we thought.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  that  stage? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  Now my logic suggests that  i f  you have 

ident i f ied the non-compl iances and you do not  repor t  them, 

we should look at  when is a non-compl iance mater ia l  and 

when is i t  not  mater ia l .   How could you have thought that  

these non-compl iances were not  mater ia l?  Can you deal  

wi th that  for  my benef i t?  When is i t  mater ia l  – when is i t  not  10 

mater ia l?  Why did you take the view at  that  t ime that  in th is  

case these non-compl iances wi th legislat ion were not  

mater ia l?  

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  as I  ind icated Chair  we – we only 

looked at  those matters Chair  because the judgment that  we 

had appl ied and Chair  as I  th ink I  ment ioned I  d id refer to 

that  in there Chai r  that  one of  the biggest  th ings that  

occupies one’s minds when we came to sign the [ indist inct  

00:06:52]  was the work we were doing around a going 

concern at  – at  South Afr ican Ai rways that  took up a lot  of  20 

t ime Chai r  dur ing and af ter hours Chair  and there was i f  I  

could say Chai r  one of  the biggest  th ings that  occupied our 

minds i t  was the most  [ indist inct  00:07:18]  th ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  –  but  wi l l  not  – that  wi l l  not  answer the 

quest ion of  what  is mater ia l  and what is not  mater ia l  is i t  



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 84 of 255 
 

not? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  I  th ink what I  am [?]  Chair  we have 

had heavy focus in that  area.   The – and we not  appl ied a 

judgment.   One might  have focussed so much on this area 

Chair  that  – and that  is where – one we have erred in  

applying our minds correct ly in determining whether or not  

those i tems were mater ia l  enough to be included in the audi t  

opinion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  you cannot use the fact  that  you 

spent  most  of  your t ime focussing on a certain par t  of  the 10 

work and not  a certain other  part  of  the work as just i f icat ion 

for saying,  we thought that  other part  was not  mater ia l .   That 

does not  seem to be logical ly to me.  You can use i t  seems 

to me your pre-occupat ion wi th that  other part  of  the work to  

say I  am sorry I  d id not  get  t ime to do that  other work 

because my focus was on that  other.   That  I  can understand.  

MR MOTHIBE:   But  Chair  I  thought that  is what  I  was 

re laying Chair  i f  i t  d id not  come out .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Okay.   No.   But  i f  that  is what 

you meant that  is  f ine but  i t  does not  answer my quest ion.   20 

My quest ion is,  you said you were aware that  you did not  

report  but  you had taken the v iew that  th is was not  the non-

compl iance wi th legislat ion that  was involved here was not  

mater ia l  therefore your non-report ing was just i f iable or was 

acceptable.   That  is  my understanding of  what  you are 
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saying and then I  said so when is a non-compl iance wi th  

legislat ion mater ia l  and when is i t  not  mater ia l?  That  was 

my quest ion.  

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  in terms of  the guidance in the – f rom 

the AG Chair  there is a threshold that  I  have said for each 

di fferent  [ indist inct  00:09:39]  when should you report  and 

when one should not  report .   And [ indist inct  00:09:45]  I  

indicate that  having reached the threshold and how mater ia l  

is i t  then – and Chair  as I  said Chair  the area where one was 

aware of  that  judgment and considered Chai r  that  we got  i t  10 

wrong.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  what – did you have a proper basis or 

the view that  the non-compl iance wi th legislat ion was not  

mater ia l?  What was the basis that  you had at  that  t ime for 

taking that  v iew?  Had – did you – did you look at  the – at  

the cr i ter ia set  by the AG and said wel l  th is is what  i t  says 

and you looked at  the non-compl iances that  were involved 

and said wel l  i t  does not  meet the cusp so i t  is non-mater ia l .   

Or did you – that  is not  what happened? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  for the years 2013 and 2014 – 20 

apologies 2014 and 2015 i f  you recal l  Chai r  th is work was 

performed [ indist inct  00:11:00]  f ine so the – yes we had – we 

rev iewed the – we [ indist inct  00:11:07]  v iew of  – and at  that  

stage Chai r  we ident i f ied areas of  non-compl iance which we 

[ indist inct  00:11:15]  audi t  commit tee and to management and 
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by the t ime i t  came to preparing the audi t  report  which was 

long since we had f inal ised the – we have presented to the 

audi t  commit tee and to management we [ indist inct  00:11:33]  

the act  – for 2014 Chai r  the opinion was only signed in 2015 

in January.   For  2015 i t  was signed in  2016 ear ly September 

which was more than a year af ter  the requi red date Chair  

and the other one Chair  was signed off  none – is i t  e ight  

months – in September the 30 – i t  was three years apart  

Chai r.   With the passage of  t ime one was the preoccupat ion 

of  everyth ing ei ther get  what was focussing on was focussed 10 

on the – on the going concern because Chair  that  was the 

one area which was going to cause mater ia l  issues where 

there was a RI and we were preoccupied in resolving those 

issues.   So when i t  came to preparing the audi t  opinion Chair  

and as I  said also in my submissions Chai r  the – have 

considerat ion as to whether or not  those i tems should have 

come to – of  opin ion Chai r.   Because back then we would not  

see this as mater ia l  Chair  we… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Can I  – Mr Mothibe… 

MR MOTHIBE:   We erred – we erred in not  consider ing that  20 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Mothibe.   Can I  take i t  – can I  take i t  

that  on ref lect ion you are able to  say you did not  have a 

proper basis for  the view that  the non-compl iance wi th 

legislat ion was not  mater ia l?  I  am put t ing this  to you 
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because I  have asked you a few t imes that  what I  am looking 

for is the basis or  the view you took at  the t ime that  the non-

compl iance wi th legislat ion was not  mater ia l .   We have spent  

some t ime I  do not  seem to understand that  you are able to 

give me the basis or that  v iew so my quest ion now is,  can I  

take i t  that  on ref lect ion you are able to say looking back our  

view did not  have a proper basis?  You nod is that  yes? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOTHIBE:   I  nod yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay thank you.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.   I  would l ike to now go to 

the Audi tor General ’s Report  for the year that  they moved in 

and Chai r  you wi l l… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.   I  interrupted you when you 

moving to another  f i le.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay.   So before we move.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  where you are going? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Before we move.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  would l ike to ask you just  to get  out  of  

Exhibi t  DD20D which is in f ront  o f  you.   The repor t  of  the 

Audi tor  General  for the 2017 year and you wi l l  f ind that  

commencing at  page 1672.   

CHAIRPERSON:   1672.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes and Chair  in  th is  [ indist inct  00:14:46]  

we are going to need to compare i t  to the report  that  PwC 

and Nkonki  produced for the pr ior year.   So my suggest ion is  

maybe just  to take i t  out  of  the f i le .   We can ensure that  we 

insert  i t  again for you over the break and i f  you were to 

extract  i t  you would take out  pages 1672 to page 1678.  You 

wi l l  see that  page 1678 has the signature of  the Audi tor  

General  at  the bot tom.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry are you suggest ing that  we take 

i t  out  of  the f i le? 10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes so that  when we move to the next  f i le  

you wi l l  have the two next  to one another Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Just  because of  the comparison exerc ise.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then we wi l l  make sure we insert  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.   And then which other f i le 

must  we have? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Then you wi l l  have in f ront  of  you DD19D 

which is the second f i le of  Mr Mothibe’s evidence.  And just  to 20 

be c lear that  is Exhibi t  DD19D and there you wi l l  p ick up 

page 601.   So what you should now… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Both have before you is the Audi tor  

General ’s Audi t  Report  for the 2017 f inancial  year  and we 
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wi l l  be able then to compare i t  to  PwC and Nkonki ’s audi t  

report  for the pr ior year.   But  before we do that  comparison,  I  

do just  want to do a l i t t le bi t  of  background based on Mr 

Sokombela’s evidence before the commission.  

 And i t  may be… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Sorry Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Before you do that .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which one is whose report  between the 10 

two? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay.   Indeed.  So the one that  has come 

out  of  DD20, Exhibi t  DD is the Audi tor General ’s.   You wi l l  

see at  the top i t  is  ent i t led Report  of  the Audi tor Genera l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So that  is the one that  is … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh the other one is Audi tors Report .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So that  you wri te PwC.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I f  you want.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay.   So – but  as a precr ipt  to going to 

the compar ison between those two I  would l ike to just  remind 
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us about what Mr Sokombela’s ev idence was of  what they 

found when they looked at  procurement processes in SAA.  

Because we spent some t ime in his evidence looking at  a  

table Chair  you might  recal l  i t .   I t  was a table in the more 

extensive audi t  report  where he ident i f ied the number of  

contracts that  they tested,  the number in respect  of  which 

they had found non-compl iance,  the numbers in which they 

ident i f ied i r regular  expendi ture.   I  do not  suggest  i t  is  

necessary for the both of  you to have i t  in f ront  of  you I  am 

going to just  te l l  you what the highl ighted facts are there.   Mr 10 

Mothibe i f  you want to go to i t  at  any point  you wi l l  let  me 

know.  But  the upshot  of  the Audi tor General ’s evidence was 

that  when they did the Supply Chain Management 

compl iance work for the purposes of  thei r  audi t ,  they 

selected using the method that  he descr ibed f i rst  h igh-r isk 

contracts and then cont racts pursuant to a sampl ing 

exercise.   And the total  number of  contracts that  they 

selected for review was 96 cont racts.   And that  was to a 

value of  R7.5 bi l l ion just  a bi t  more but  I  am rounding off  for 

now.  And in the course of  that  analysis of  those awards they 20 

found that  80 of  them – 80 – 80 of  the 96 were awards,  

tender awards,  contract  awards where non-compl iance was 

ident i f ied.   And that  came to a total  of  R6.6 bi l l ion.   So 83% 

of  the cont racts that  they selected for considerat ion were not  

compl iant  wi th legislat ion.   And then of  those there were 62 



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 91 of 255 
 

of  the 96 contracts where i rregular  expendi ture had been 

ident i f ied.   So we understood f rom him that  non-compl iance 

was broader than simply i r regular expendi ture.   There is of  

course f rui t less and wasteful  expendi ture as wel l  and other  

non-compl iance issues but  of  that  port ion 62 of  the 96 were 

– which is 64% were i r regular expendi ture.   And Mr Mothibe 

despi te having done that  r igorous work and establ ishing that  

83% of  the contracts that  they reviewed were not  in  

compl iance wi th legislat ion they st i l l  ident i f ied a l imi tat ion of  

scope.  Are you aware of  that? 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink – ja I  was going to say move the 

microphone closer  – towards you – yoursel f .  

MR MOTHIBE:   See Chair  I  read that  in the audi t  opinion 

Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes because what they d id was they – 

despi te looking at  those 96 cont racts they were st i l l  not  

sat isf ied that  they had obtained suff ic ient  appropriate audi t  

evidence to ver i fy  the amount of  i r regular expendi ture.   And 

what does not  come through in the audi t  report  is  the actual  

f igure that  they regarded as unveri f iable of  the procurement 20 

process and that  was to the total  of  R279 mi l l ion worth of  the 

awards s imply could not  be ver i f ied because they could not  

obtain suff ic ient  appropriate audi t  evidence.   So – Mr 

Sokombela that  is  the background to – sorry Mr Moth ibe that  

is the background of  Mr Sokombela’s evidence to what he 
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then ends up saying in his report  and what I  would l ike to  

then compare wi th  what you disclosed in your  report  the year  

ear l ier.   And that  for that  purpose we wi l l  go f i rst  to the 

Audi tor  Genera l ’s  Report  that  is  in Exhibi t  DD20D at  page 

1672.  You wi l l  see there at  the bot tom there is a heading 

I rregular – wel l  let  us start  – sorry.   There is a heading,  

Report  on the Audi t  of  the Consol idated and Separate 

Financial  Statements,  do you see that? 

MR MOTHIBE:   I  see that  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then under that  there is a heading 10 

Qual i f ied Opinion,  do you see that? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Now the Audi tor General  gave a qual i f ied 

opinion you gave an unqual i f ied opinion in the previous three 

years,  is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   We wi l l  come in  a moment to what the 

di fference is between those two.  But  what then happens as I  

understand the report  is the next  heading is Basis for 

Qual i f ied Opinion.   So now the Audi tor General  is te l l ing us 20 

why did he regard i t  as appropr iate to give a qual i f ied 

opinion.   Am I  understanding i t  correct ly? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And before we go on just  in terms of  

qual i f ied and unqual i f ied audi t  opin ions can you help us wi th 
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the fol lowing?  As I  understand i t  but  I  l ike the Chai r  am not  

an audi tor so we are going to rely on your expert ise here.   

An audi tor wi l l  g ive a qual i f ied audi t  in two scenarios and for 

th is I  am relying on ISA 705 and I  just  want to check that  you 

and I  agree on this.   The f i rst  is where he has or she I  would 

l ike to add suff ic ient  appropriate audi t  evidence but  regards 

there to be mater ia l  misstatements in the f inancials.   Does 

that  accord wi th  your understanding?  That  is the one 

ci rcumstance.  

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then the second c ircumstance is when 

the audi tor is unable to obtain suff ic ient  appropriate audi t  

evidence on which to base the opin ion but  concludes that  the 

possible effect  on the f inancia l  s tatements of  undetected 

misstatements could be mater ia l  but  not  pervasive,  is  that  an 

accurate understanding? 

MR MOTHIBE:    That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So for a layman l ike me this seems to 

suggest  to  me that  there are two si tuat ions.   The one is you 

have got  suff ic ient  audi t  evidence but  you conclude that  20 

there are mater ia l  misstatements in  the f inancials and that  is  

to be compared wi th where you do not  manage to get  

sui tab le appropr ia te or suff ic ient  appropriate audi t  ev idence.   

The consequence of  which is that  you actual ly not  able to 

detect  whether there are misstatements of  a mater ia l  nature 
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in the f inancials.   Is that  a fa i r  summary Mr Mothibe? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  sounds fai r  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And – of  the two scenarios that  Ms 

Hofmeyr has al luded to f rom an audi tor ’s point  of  v iew and 

f rom the point  of  you maybe of  the users of  f inancia l  

statements and audi tor ’s reports  which one is the worst  

s i tuat ion or is the posi t ion that  ei ther could be worse than 

the other depending on the ci rcumstances.   In other  words,  

in the one where there are misstatements i t  might  depend on 10 

the nature of  the misstatements i t  could be qui te  a bad 

si tuat ion.   Or is the posi t ion that  where you do not  get  given 

the informat ion that  is actual ly  regarded as the most  ser ious 

of  the cr imes so to speak? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  I  must  admit  I  have never thought of  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   In that  way? 

MR MOTHIBE:   In the way that  you ask me because we 

cannot Chai r  as audi tors,  we… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOTHIBE:   We perform your work and we wi l l  then issue 20 

appropriate audi t  opinion Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja but  al l  s i tuat ions are bad?  Are 

bad.  

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  I  would think… 

CHAIRPERSON:   General ly speaking.  
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MR MOTHIBE:   I  would think that  any ent i ty would especial ly 

qual i f ied Chair  i t  might  – i t  – you do not  go down [ indist inct  

00:25:43]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is unacceptable.  

MR MOTHIBE:   Depending on the – on the nature of  the – of 

the qual i f icat ion Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOTHIBE:   There could be qual i f icat ion as a resul t  of  an 

error.   I f  i t  is an error say general  error then you wi l l  be able 

to explain i t  but  i t  is the qual i f icat ion.   So I  th ink Chair  the 10 

ci rcumstances – i t  is di ff icul t  to respond to your quest ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   No.   But  of  course,  i f  you do not  

have the informat ion i t  means you are – there is  

incompetence or  you might  del iberately be conceal ing 

informat ion.   You – there is incompetence or negl igence in 

keeping the records properly or you are – you may be 

del iberately conceal ing the informat ion f rom the audi tors.  

MR MOTHIBE:   Is  that  a fa i r  statement to say why an ent i ty 

might  not  be able to – to give the audi tors mater ia l  

informat ion and documentat ion? 20 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  that  is a di ff icul t… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Oh am I  too harsh? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Yes I  th ink the Chair  – i t  is a bi t  of  a  di ff icul t  

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  is al r ight  – okay.   Ms Hofmeyr.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.   So i f  we commence with  

the report  of  the Audi tor General ,  we were at  Exhibi t  DD20D 

at  page 1672 we – we are in the sect ion on that  page where 

he sets out  the basis for the qual i f ied opinion and the one I  

would l ike to turn to is under paragraph 7 which is headed 

I rregular Expendi ture.    

MR MOTHIBE:   I  have got  that  Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You have got  that .   And you see i t  

references the relevant  sect ion of  the PFMA, the is Sect ion 

55(2)Bi  and i t  is  recorded that  that  sect ion of  the PFMA 10 

requi res the SAA group to include part icu lars of  i r regular 

expendi ture and the notes to the f inancial  statements.   The 

SAA group did not  establ ish adequate controls to maintain 

complete records of  i r regular expendi ture.   I  was not  able to 

obtain suff ic ient  appropriate audi t  evidence to conf i rm the 

amount of  i r regular expendi ture to be disclosed by 

al ternat ive means.   Consequent ly,  I  was unable to  determine 

whether any adjustment to i r regular expendi ture disc losed in  

Note 42 to  the consol idated and separate f inancial  

statements was necessary.  20 

 Now what is  –  I  want to just  focus on in that  recordal  

there is that  the statement that  the SAA group did not  

establ ish adequate controls to maintain complete records of 

i r regular expendi ture because there was a point  yesterday in 

your evidence Mr Mothibe where I  understood you to be 
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t ry ing to emphasise wel l  the Audi tor General  comes in in 

another year and what he f inds might  be di fferent  to what we 

had in f ront  of  us.   Did I  understand you to make reference 

to that? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  that  is correct .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You see this was the point  that  the Chai r  

took up qui te regular ly wi th Mr Sokombela in his evidence 

because part  of  what we were t ry ing to probe was exact ly 

that .  Is i t  just  that  something strange happened in the 2017 

f inancial  year that  meant  there was suddenly no records?  I  10 

mean maybe we were af ter some sort  of  massive f i re  in the 

bui ld ing or some such thing.   Or was i t  the case that  th is was 

an endemic s i tuat ion?  And I  want to remind you of  what Mr 

Sokombela’s evidence was there.   Chair  I  wi l l  just  g ive the 

references to the t ranscr ipt .  

 So the f i rst  th ing that  Mr Sokombela said was that  the 

contract  register was ent i rely inaccurate and most contracts 

ref lected there s imply did not  exist .   That  is his evidence on 

the 21 February 2020 page 16 l ines 1 to 5.   He then said this  

problem must have been going on for many years because of  20 

the magni tude of  the problem.   And he said that  on the same 

day page 15 l ine 16 to 24.   And he went on to explain that  

when they asked for tender documents to be located, they 

had to deploy an ent i re team to search for months and he 

descr ibed words as systemat ic and you wi l l  f ind that  in the 
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t ranscr ipt  of  the 21 February 2020 page 67 l ines 8 to 10.   

 So Mr Sokombela what I  am interested in is certainly  

– Mr Mothibe what I  am interested in is Mr Sokombela’s  

evidence before this commission is  i t  was not  a once off .   I t  

was a systemat ic fa i lure,  they could not  even f ind the 

existence of  contracts that  were ref lected in the contract  

register.   What is – what was your experience?  Did you just  

have a completely  di fferent  s i tuat ion when you were there? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  I  wi l l  again make reference to our 

supplementary submission in that  in the [ indist inct  10 

00:00:0047] performed we did ident i fy our def ic iencies.   

There were issues raised where there was a prel iminary 

contract  reg ister  and we raised these matters Chair  to  

management and to the Audi t  Commit tee as I  ind icated Chai r  

and we have got  – in our concerns to the IRBA Chai r  i t  ta lks 

to the same that  there were chal lenges related to the 

[ indist inct  00:01:17]  governance and we concede – we agree 

Chair  we should have – i t  should have been in  the audi t  

commit tee which we had unfortunately done Chai r.   We erred 

in that  Chai r.   So the chal lenges that  Mr Sokombela 20 

encountered we did see them also Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now you wi l l  have heard f rom what Ms 

Hofmeyr said when referr ing to what Mr Sokombela test i f ied 

that  his evidence included that  he thought that  the problem 

was so big that  i t  must  have been there in the previous 
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years.   And my quest ion is,  was the explanat ion for PwC not  

picking up such a big problem for three years? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chair  ordinar i ly when one goes into perform 

work on – on contracts you would in i t ia l ly focus on new 

contracts.   I f  you had been audi t ing an ent i ty for some t ime 

Chair  you would have – you take comfort  on the work that  

you have done previous years on – on – because you would 

of  in the previous year ’s selected new contracts for review 

and to the extent  that  you are provided wi th those contracts 

you have done suff ic ient  audi t  work and those contracts 10 

would have – would run for  a part icular  t ime.  So when we 

performed our audi t  Chair  the in i t ia l  focus i t  is on a new 

signi f icant  contracts.   That  said Chai r  I  th ink Chai r  that  said 

as I  indicate Chai r,  we did ident i fy def ic iencies.   We did 

ident i fy  chal lenges wi th regards to the cont ract  register and 

there were e lements where we could not  be provided wi th 

contracts that  were – that  we had requested for audi t  

purposes.   We ra ised the matter wi th the – wi th management 

and wi th the Audi t  Commit tee and Chair  those deviat ions as I  

indicate should have been included in the audi t  – in these 20 

matters  -  we should have included them in the audi t  report .   

So we did ident i fy  those issues Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chair  I  see we have just  gone past  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   I… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  know we have taken much longer than we 

both thought but  … 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Not  at  al l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink i t  has al l  been important .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Evidence so i t  was not  wasted and I  know 

we st i l l  have another wi tness.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   We do.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i t  seems to me that  –  i t  seems to me 10 

that  we should just  take normal lunch for now and come back 

at  two.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then t ry and f in ish wi th Mr Mothibe 

and then move onto the next  wi tness ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.  Chair  I  – I  th ink that  wi l l  work.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And we wi l l  complete both today.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.   Okay let  us take the lunch 

adjournment we wi l l  resume at  two.   We adjourn.  20 

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES: 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  let  us cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you,  Chai r.   Chai r,  before the break 
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we have spent  some t ime in the audi tor general ’s report  or  

the f inancial  year ending 31 March 2017.  

 And Mr Mothibe had made certain concessions in  

re lat ion to the approach that  PwC and Nkonki  had taken for 

the three pr ior years.  

 Mr Moth ibe,  what I  would l ike to  go to  now is  your  

audi tor ’s report  for the f inancial  year  ending 31 March 2016 

and I  ask you to have that  in f ront  of  you before.   That  was 

in EXHIBIT DD19D page 601.   That  is where i t  starts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry.   I  see the noise of  the ai rcon is 10 

back.   Did we say i t  wi l l  come back or did we wi l l  decide? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  th ink we were going to t ry i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay and see how i t  goes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes,  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay let  us see how i t  goes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I f  i t  is creat ing an interference,  we wi l l  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am very aware of  the fact  that  I  have a 

certain benef i t  [ laughs]   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ja.  [ laughs]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .which other people do not  have.   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   At  least ,  i t  keeps us focussed.  [ laughs]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you,  Chai r.   But  please do let  us 

know i f  i t  becomes an interference.   Then we wi l l  just  ask for  
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i t  to be . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  that  is f ine.   The part . . .  part  of  the 

problem is that  somet imes i t  makes noise in such a way that 

I  cannot hear the wi tness properly but  i t  is not  al l  the t ime.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So let  us see how i t  goes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Let  us see how i t  goes.   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  I  wi l l  make sure that  I  wi l l  ra ise my 

voice.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   [ laughs]  Okay.   In  order to make sure that  

we do not  switch i t  off .  [ laughs]   

ADV HOFMEYR:   [ laughs]  Thank you,  Mr Mothibe.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So we are going to turn to your audi tor ’s  

report  and what I  would l ike to focus on in that  report  is on 

the second page that  is the paginated page 602 because i t  is  

recordables on this page,  which I  understand f rom your 

supplementary statement,  you have accepted ought  to have 

been di fferent .   Is  that  correct? 20 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So let  us pick up on i r regular expendi ture.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry,  Ms Hofmeyr.   I  missed that .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Apologies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You said someth ing and he agreed and I  
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d id not  get  what -what? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   Sorry,  let  me t raverse that  again.   

What I  said is your focus on the second page of  the audi tor ’s 

report  because there are recordables there which I  

understand Mr Mothibe in his supplementary statement to  

have conceded should have been di fferent .  

 For example,  where they ident i fy under compl iance wi th 

legislat ion that  they did not  ident i fy instances of  mater ia l  

none-compl iance.  

 He has now accepted that  should have read di fferent ly.   10 

Is that  correct  Mr Mothibe?  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  would l ike to start  the heading “ I rregular  

Expendi ture and Frui t less and Wastefu l  Expendi ture”  on that  

page.   I t  is just  above the middle of  the page in capi ta ls.  

 And what you record there when you. . .  and you have 

signed this off  on the 30t h of  September 2016 is:  

“Without  rais ing a mater ia l  f inding,  we draw at tent ion 

to the disclosure note 46 to the annual  f inancial  

statements on page 166,  I rregular Expendi ture to the 20 

value of  R 5,4 mi l l ion and Fru i t less and Wastefu l  

Expendi ture to the value of  R 7,3 mi l l ion that  have 

been ident i f ied and reported in  terms of  Sect ion 

55(2)(b)( i )  of  the Publ ic Finance Management  Act . . . ”  

 Now just  before the break,  you wi l l  recal l  we looked at  
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the audi tor general ’s comments under that  topic in the audi t  

report  f rom the year later and he took the view that  there 

were not  adequate cont rols to maintain complete records of  

i r regular expendi ture and further had been a l imi tat ion of  

scope.   

 He s imply was not  in a posi t ion to conf i rm the amounts 

of  i r regular  expendi ture.   Now, as I  understand i t  Mr Mothibe 

and you can f ind this in  your supplementary statement in  

EXHIBIT DD19B at  page 50.30.4.  

 Chai r,  I  do not  suggest  i t  is necessary for you to go 10 

there unless you want to look at  the part icular wording.    

 But  you acknowledge there at  the bot tom of  the page 

that  your ent ry under I r regular Expendi ture and Frui t less and 

Wasteful  Expendi ture for the 2016 year should have been 

di fferent .   Is that  correct?  

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is what is in my supplementary 

submission Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And what should you have sa id as you 

record i t  hear? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Shal l  I  read i t  out  Chair? 20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you,  yes.  

MR MOTHIBE:    

“ I r regular Expendi ture and Frui t less and Wastefu l  

Expendi ture:   Sect ion 55(2)(b)( i )  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Raise your voice.   [ laughs]   
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MR MOTHIBE:   Oh.   I  am compet ing wi th the. . .  

“Sect ion 55(2)(b)( i )  of  the PFMA requi res the SAA 

Group to include part iculars of  i r regular expendi ture 

in the notes to the f inancial  statements.  

The SAA Group did not  establ ish adequate controls  to  

maintain complete records of  i r regular expendi ture 

and f rui t less and wasteful  expendi ture.  

We are not  ab le to obtain suff ic ient  appropriate audi t  

evidence to conf i rm the completeness of  the amounts 

of  i r regular expendi ture and f rui t less and wasteful  10 

expendi ture disclosed in the . . . [ indist inct ]  report  for 

the 2014 f inancia l  year and note 46 and 45 of  the 

consol idated and separate f inancial  statement for the 

2015 and the 2016 f inancial  years. . . ”  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Now Mr Mothibe,  as I  read your now 

revised statement  of  what should have been conta ined in 

your report .   I t  appl ies to the 2014/2015 and 2016 f inancial  

years.   Is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And there a l imi tat ion of  scope in al l  of  20 

those years,  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  that  wi l l  be correct .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And as a consequence of  that  l imi tat ion 

placed on the scope of  the audi t ,  you were not  in a posi t ion 

to conf i rm the completeness of  the amounts of  i r regular,  
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f ru i t less and wasteful  expendi ture?  Is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is  how my supplementary statement 

reads Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   I t  is also. . .  you conf i rm that  

you. . .  you conf i rmed that  the contents of  your supplementary 

statement are t rue and correct .   That  means,  you support  

what is stated there as having been the necessary revision 

to the audi tor ’s report .   Is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay.   I t  is  just  because when you answer 10 

“ that  is what is in my statement” i t  is not  as clear that  you 

support  the rev ision in those terms.   So that  is just  why I  am 

quest ioning.   Thank you.   So then I  want to . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  I  am sorry.   Wel l ,  I  do not  want to 

forget  th is because I  forgot  i t  ear l ier.   When we look at  the 

audi tor general ’s report  and we look at  Mr Sokombela. . .  Is i t  

Sokombela? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Certainly.   Sokombela.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja.   When we look at  his evidence and 

i t  t ranspires that . . .  and we.. .  we look at  your own evidence 20 

today and yesterday where you say dur ing those three years 

of  whatever per iod that  PwC was involved in audi t ing the 

SAA, you ident i f ied some of  the problems.  

 You did not  include them in the report  but  you ident i f ied 

them.  Is there something I  have said that  you want to  
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correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  no.   Okay,  al r ight .   You understand? 

MR MOTHIBE:   I  am at tent ive Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  al r ight .   I  would have assumed that  

i f  in the f i rst  year of  your term at  SAA, audi t ing SAA, you 

picked up certain problems, including the fai lure by the SAA 

Management to  give your f i les and whatever other 

documents and in format ion that  were important  for you to do 

a proper job.  10 

 I  would imagine that  when you come the fol lowing year, 

you would look back and say,  “what  problems did we ident i fy  

last  year?  Have they f ixed those problems now?   

 Because i f  they f ix them, then that  is f ine but  i f  they 

have not  f ixed them that  might  be something to look at  qui te 

ser iously to say,  “but  we told management last  year that  th is  

needs to be f ixed.   This here is st i l l  not  f ixed”.  

 And then i f  in  the thi rd year  you st i l l  have the same 

thing,  you would not  fa i l  to see that  they have not  addressed 

i t  and by then i t  might  be di ff icul t  to say,  “why did you not  20 

include i t  in your report  because i t  is persist ing year  in and 

year out?”  

 That  is what I  would l ike you to comment on.   That  is  

what comes to my mind.   That  one would expect  that  when 

you come the fo l lowing year,  having done the work the 
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previous years,  your start ing point  would be “what was wrong 

last  year?.   Has i t  been f ixed?  Blah-b lah-blah”.  

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  thank you for  the quest ion and I  do 

understand where Chai r  is coming f rom.  Chai r,  as I  have 

indicated,  we per formed the work and when i t  came to the 

. . . [ indist inct ]  of  the Audi t  Opinion there was signi f icant  t ime 

that  had passed.  

 And when we then . . . [ indist inct ]  opinions Chai r,  you then 

to go back and look at  what. . .  what  had been ident i f ied,  what  

is mater ia l  and what is not  mater ia l .  10 

 When we received the f i rst  draf t  of  the Audi t  Opin ion 

Chai r,  because we had delegated that . . .  and as partners we 

rev iewed that .   Nothing had been highl ighted by our  team to 

indicate that  there were addi t ional (?) issues that  need to 

come to the Audi t  Opinion.  

 Chai r,  we had . . . [ indist inct ]  the matters in  the 

management(?) report  and in  the Audi t  Commit tee 

documents.   And I  do have to . . . [ indist inct ]  that  once we 

have also gone back and also do that  to ensure that  

everything has been inc luded.  20 

 Chai r,  in the 2014 year,  in the f i rs t  year,  those matters 

would at  that  stage . . . [ indist inct ]  Chai r,  we had. . .  we had. . .  

based on our professional (?) judgment Chai r  and rev iew, we 

had thought they were not  mater ia l .  

 And I  do bel ieve that  could have also inf luenced the 
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v iew in subsequent years to say th is matters had appeared,  

they were deemed immater ia l  and therefore in subsequent 

years,  unless . . . [ indist inct ]  Chai r,  then probably(?) the 

conclusion was they are not  mater ia l .  

 And that  is Chair  one of  the things why that  could have 

happened the way i t  happened Chai r.   And Chai r,  and I  

th ink. . .  I  do bel ieve I  have touched on i t  ear l ier Chai r,  that  

we also had the benef i t  of  having at tending a l l  Audi t  

Commit tee meet ings.  

 A representat ive of  the off ice of  the audi tor general  who 10 

also had access to al l  these reports and there is  a  summary 

that  we did consul t  when there were di ff icul t  issues.  

 For example,  on the matter of  the growing concern.   In  

fact ,  there were t imes where we d id not  necessari ly agree 

because they fel t . . .  there was a view at  some stage that  we 

might  be a l i t t le bi t  harsh.  

 So when these matters came through Chai r,  we were 

also aware and they also did not . . .  i t  d id not  come out  f rom 

the former discussion that  these matters. . .  maybe we need to 

consider elevat ing them because they were also in a way a 20 

soundboard for us when we performed this work Chai r.  

 I  do understand where the Chai r  is coming f rom and i t  is  

correct  that  we would consider prev ious matters when you 

. . . [ indist inct ]  for what.  

 But  Chai r  as I  have indicated,  when that  report  was put  
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together,  because for the f i rst  year we did not  deem them as 

mater ia l .    

 Incorrect ly so,  as I  admit ted Chai r  in subsequent years,  

because they were not  mater ia l .   I t  probably(?) inf luenced 

the way the team would have thought about  them.  And in 

applying a . . . [ indist inct ]  judgment Chai r.   That  is where we 

could have got  i t  wrong Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you,  Chai r.   Mr Mothibe,  I  was going 

to pick i t  up ear l ier but  then I  have lef t  i t  but  you have made 10 

the point  again.   So I  do just  want to get  c lar i ty on this.  

 You referenced twice the fact  that  at  these Audi t  and 

Risk Commit tee meet ings there was a representat ive of  the 

audi tor general ’s off ice.   Is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Mr Mothibe,  you do not  give that  evidence 

before the Commission to suggest  that  the audi tor general  i s  

responsible for the errors in your audi t  report ,  do you? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  we are the appointed audi tors as 

PricewaterhouseCoopers and Nkonki  in  the . . . [ indist inct ]  20 

opinion and therefore we are responsible for that .   I  th ink 

that  . . . [ indist inct ]    

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Then I  would l ike to go in your  

statement.   Oh, just  before we move off  your revised wording 

for the audi t  repor t .    
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 I  focused in i t ia l ly on the i rregular  expendi ture and 

f rui t less and wastefu l  expendi ture but  you also recognised 

that  your statement in respect  of  compl iance wi th legislat ion 

should have been di fferent ,  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  that  is correct .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And you also ident i f ied in relat ion to your 

audi t  work on compl iance wi th legislat ion that  there were 

l imi tat ions placed on the scope of  your work.   Is that  

correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  10 

MR MOTHIBE:   And as a consequence of  that  you say that  

you were unable to obtain suff ic ient  and appropriate audi t  

evidence.   That  the SAA Group mainta ined an appropriate 

procurement and provisioning system which is  fa i r,  equi tab le,  

t ransparent ,  compet i t ive and cost-effect ive.   Is that  r ight? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chai r,  that  is correct .  

MR MOTHIBE:   But  then I  would l ike to go over the page, i f  

we may, in your supplementary statement.   Chai r,  I  am going 

to focus some at tent ion on the language that  Mr Mothibe 

uses.    20 

 So I  suggest  that  i t  might  be usefu l  for you to have i t  in  

f ront  of  you.   You wi l l  f ind i t  in EXHIBIT DD19B which is in  

the f i rst  f i le.   

CHAIRPERSON:   B,  yes? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay but  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  that  is the sect ion that  starts wi th page 

30.5.   So you wi l l  need. . .  so I  am just  worr ied.   I f  you got  B 

on the spine that  is the second f i le.   You wi l l  need A on the 

spine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  wi thin i t ,  you wi l l  go to page 30.5.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are not  going to  come back to th is 

report? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   No.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You say here. . .  you say B but  . . . [ ind ist inct ]  

. . . [ intervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  know.  I  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .wi th  A on the spine but  i t  might  be the 

correct  one.   [ laughs]   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l ,  I  need page 30.5.   Three zero point  

f ive.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  me see.   I t  probably is the r ight  f i le.   20 

[ laughs]   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh,  excel lent !  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have got  30.5.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Excel lent .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   That  is wi thin  Mr Mothibe’s supplementary 

statement Chai r.   And we are looking. . .  I  want  to focus on 

paragraph 11 Mr Mothibe because what you did in paragraph 

10,  as I  understand your supplementary statement  is,  you 

made the concessions about what the errors were in the 

previous audi t  reports for the three years.  

 And you actual ly give us the language of  what ought  to 

have been ref lected in those reports.   Is that  correct?  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then what you are doing in paragraph 10 

11 as I  read i t ,  i t  effect ively sum up the impact  of  the 

concessions that  you have made about those errors.  

 And what you say there and I  wi l l  read i t  into the record,  

is:  

“ In  view of  the fai lure to  comply wi th the di rect ive 

issue in terms of  the PPAA, I  have indicated,  

however,  that  IRBA, my preparedness to accept  the 

proposed consent  order in relat ion to the f i rst  three 

draf t  charges.  

The matter is  current ly wi th  Urban(?).   I  am advised 20 

that  the proposed consent order wi l l  be tabled at  the 

next  Urban(?) Discipl inary Advisory Commit tee 

Meet ing. . . ”  

 So that  is,  f i rst  of  a l l ,  te l l ing us what is  going to happen 

next  and then this  is the part  where I  say you sort  of  capture 
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the conclusion as I  read i t .   You say that :  

“However,  I  remain of  the view that  despi te these 

omissions,  the f inancial  statements for those 

f inancial  years were in terms of  IFRS, ( local ly  

referred to  as IFRiS ) ,  f ree of  mater ia l  statement and 

that . . . ”  

 And these are the words I  want to focus on:  

“ . . .suff ic ient  audi t  work was performed and 

appropriate audi t  evidence was obtained to support  

the audi t  op inions. . . ”  10 

 Do you see that?  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you stand by that  statement?  

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  as I  have indicated ear l ier that  wi th 

respect  to the numbers in the f inancial  statements,  we had 

done suff ic ient  work.    

 We obtained the necessary audi t  evidence and that  the 

numbers,  as far  as they are disclosed in the f inancia l  

statements,  are f ree of  mater ia l  statement Chai r.  

 And the Audi t  Opinion in terms of  those numbers Chai r  is  20 

correct  and I  do stand by that  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  there were numbers for i r regular  

expendi ture and f ru i t less and wasteful  expendi ture that  you 

could not  ver i fy.  

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  the numbers in the f inancia l  
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statements relate to actual  expendi ture that  has gone 

through Chai r,  and those numbers are correct .    

 Hence,  the statement that  I  made that  I  am of  the view 

that  despi te the omissions,  the f inancial  statements fai r ly 

present  or for those years,  fa i r ly present  what happened at  

SAA . . . [ indist inct ]  statement and suff ic ient  audi t  was done.  

 With respect  to i r regular and f rui t less expendi ture there.   

Chai r,  i t  is more the. . .  should I  say. . .  I  hope i t  is the r ight  

word,  is the qual i ty of  the numbers,  not  the quantum. 

 So the fai r  presentat ion here is the quantum that . . .  i f  we 10 

say,  for example Chai r,  i f  we only(?) said. . .   Let  us say 

expenses . . . [ indis t inct ]  or let  us say for refreshments was 

R 2 mi l l ion.   That  fee of  R 2 mi l l ion is correct .  

 When you talk about  the i rregular  expendi ture i t  is then 

whether or not  those ref reshment  were required using the 

appropriate CM process.  

 So the disclosure of  that  number as a. . .  under f rui t less 

and wasteful  expendi ture or i r regular,  might  be. . .  might  not  

be correct  but  in  your income statement,  that  disc lose is  

correct .  20 

 Because Chai r,  the expendi ture was incurred.   There 

were invoices for  that .   They went  through the appropriate 

payment processes and they were set t led.  

 So f rom or iginat ion to l iquidat ion,  they have gone 

through the necessary process.   Hence,  I  am able to. . .  I  am 
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comfortable that  my statement  in my supplementary 

submission is correct  Chai r  and I  stand by i t  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now just  to make sure.   So does that  

answer mean that  you stand by th is sentence as is  or you 

are qual i fy ing what is wri t ten here? 

MR MOTHIBE:   No,  Chai r.   As I  said that  I  stand by the 

statement that  I  have made.  

CHAIRPERSON:   As is? 

MR MOTHIBE:   As i t  is Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Mr Mothibe,  I  am going to come back to 

the amount of  i r regular expendi ture that  needs to be 

disclosed in  the f inancial  statements but  the words in the 

sentence I  want to focus on is.   You say you are sat isf ied 

that  suff ic ient  audi t  work was performed.  

 I  th ink you have al ready conceded before the 

Commission that  suff ic ient  audi t  work was not  performed 

because there was a f inal  step in the process that  you did 

not  complete.   Is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  I  respect fu l ly disagree wi th what Ms 20 

Hofmeyr is saying.   As I  do explain Chai r.   The work we 

performed on the numbers in terms of  that  we. . .  ISIS and in 

compl iance wi th  IFRS, Internat ional  Financial  Report ing 

Standards,  that  was adequate.    

 The numbers that  I  d isclosed in the f inancial  statements 
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are correct .   The work that  we do around procurement and 

supply chain management and al l  i r regular and f ru i t less 

expendi ture.    

 Chai r,  that  is on the compl iance side and i t  re lates to  the 

qual i ty of  the numbers.   But  on the quantum of  the numbers 

Chai r,  I  stand by my statement I  have made . . . [ indist inct ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Now, you did explain the. . .  you begin to 

explain the di fference between the quantum of  numbers and 

the qual i ty of  numbers but  I  do not  th ink I  got  a fu l l  p icture.    

 You made the example about the amounts spent  on 10 

dr inks and you said i f . . .  you said R 2 mi l l ion or. . .  was spent  

on things.    

 The statement that  R 2 mi l l ion was spent  on dr inks 

remains val id,  okay?  Now would that  be the qual i ty of  

numbers? 

MR MOTHIBE:   I t  is the quantum Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the quantum? 

MR MOTHIBE:   And that  is what . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   And the qual i ty? 

MR MOTHIBE:   The qual i ty is. . .  then the quest ion that  you 20 

ask is,  wi l l  you then address the compl iance wi th a supply 

chain management Chai r.   You say . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  that  is where qual i ty would. . .?  

MR MOTHIBE:   Yes.   How was i t  acqui red in the 

. . . [ indist inct ]  process.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOTHIBE:   Even i f  you did not  fo l low due process.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOTHIBE:   You might  f ind that  of  the R 2 mi l l ion. . .  let  us 

say hal f  a mi l l ion . . . [ indist inct ]  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOTHIBE:   And therefore,  you wi l l  then disclose hal f  a  

mi l l ion under i r regular expendi ture.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  

MR MOTHIBE:   But  the fact  that  the money was spent  on 10 

ref reshments that  wi l l  change.  I f  you st i l l  spend on that ,  

there was a service provider who del ivered.    

 You have got  the invoice.   You paid them.  I t  has gone 

through the . . . [ indist inct ]  of  the payment process.   There is  

going . . . [ indist inct ]  [coughing]  author isat ions and i t  has been 

paid.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  But  i f . . .  wi th reference to 

procurement.   You do not  do enough work for you to state 

that  the ent i ty has been put  at  the r isk of  being sued for 

mi l l ions of  rands.  20 

 You do not  say that  because you did not  do enough work 

to be able to say that ,  whether i t  is because f i les were not  

given to you or  because you were focussing on something 

else.  

 Then that  would go to the quant i ty of  work.   Where 
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would that  f i t  in? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  those are. . .  that  . . . [ indist inct ]  Chair  

that  i t  is on the supply chain.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Supply chain.  

MR MOTHIBE:   Supply Chain.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOTHIBE:   I t  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  in regard to  supply chain.   That  you 

said [ laughs]  supply chain a sect ion of  the work you were 

supposed to do.   Did you accept  that  in regard to that  you 10 

did not  suff ic ient  work? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Chai r,  we said that  we had done suff ic ient  

work.   We reported to the Audi t  Commit tee and to 

Management but  we did not  report  to the shareholders.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   H’m.  

MR MOTHIBE:   So. . .  and I  th ink that  we should clar i fy Chai r.   

We did suff ic ient  work.   The error that  we made Chai r  is in 

the report . . .  on the report ing side Chai r.   And I  do not  know i f  

Chair  . . . [ indist inct ]  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   No,  do not  go back . . . [ intervenes]   20 

MR MOTHIBE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink your point  is.   We d id the work but  

we did not  do the leg relat ing to report ing.  

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  we did not  do the leg relat ing to 



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 120 of 255 
 

report ing,  does not  make the work that  we did insuff ic ient .  

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the point  you are making.  

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Mr Mothibe,  I  have t raversed that  wi th you 

yesterday.   So I  am not  go ing to go over i t  again.   And I  

st ress the importance of  that  last  step.   But  i t  is not  possible 

to redo i t  today.  

 So what I  would l ike to just  get  your  point  on is.   Sect ion 10 

55(2) of  the PMFA makes i t  a requirement that  the f inancia l  

statements of  a publ ic ent i ty must  include the part iculars of  

any i r regular expendi ture and f rui t less and wasteful  

expendi ture.  

 Now as I  understand i t .   Part  of  an audi tor ’s job is  to 

determine whether  the disclosed amounts of  i r regular  

expendi ture and f ru i t less and wasteful  expendi ture are 

accurate.   Have I  understood that  correct ly? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right .   And your changes to what your 20 

report  should have said previously,  concede that  you were 

unable to perform that  task because you had insuff ic ient  

appropriate audi t  evidence.   Is that  correct? 

MR MOTHIBE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   So then why do you say in the 
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sentence we are focussing on that  you are sat isf ied that  you 

had appropriate audi t  evidence?  Do you see those words? 

MR MOTHIBE:   I  do see those words.   And Chai r,  maybe i f  I  

read this sentence again.    

“However,  I  remain of  the view that  despi te these 

omissions,  the annual  f inancial  statements for those 

f inancial  years in  terms of  IFRS are f ree of  mater ia l  

statement and that  suff ic ient  audi t  work was 

performed and appropriate audi t  evidence was 

obtained to support  the audi t  opinions. . . ”  10 

 So Chai r,  I  do not  know i f  I  am repeat ing mysel f  Chai r,  

but  I  hear where Ms Hofmeyr is coming f rom but  those areas 

Chair  that  she is ta lk ing to are not  areas of  . . . [ indis t inct ]  of  

the IFRS of  the ISIS.  

 Those are areas of  compl iance wi th law and regulat ions.   

They do not  impact  your balance sheet ,  your income 

statement and your statement of  cash-f lows.  

 And hence I  am saying Chai r,  the . . . [ indist inct ] . . .  the 

numbers were correct  in . . . [ ind ist inct ]  statement Chai r.    

 And I  consider  that  i r respect ive(?) of  i r regular 20 

expendi ture and wasteful  expendi ture the. . .  that  port ion of  

the Audi t  Opin ion should have read di fferent ly.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And should i t  have been qual i f ied your 

Audi t  Opin ions for  those three years? 

MR MOTHIBE:   Only wi th respect  to f rui t less and wasteful  
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expendi ture Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  we looked at  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MOTHIBE:   And i r regular expendi ture.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Because we looked at  the requirements for  

a qual i f ied audi t  and we went through them previously.   I  

th ink i t  is ISIS 705.  

 And one of  the requirements for giv ing a qual i f ied audi t  

is.   When you have insuff ic ient  appropriate audi t  ev idence,  

the consequence of  which is,  that  there is a l imi tat ion of  

scope.   10 

 And you have accepted that  both in relat ion to  

compl iance wi th legislat ion and in relat ion wi th i r regular  

expendi ture and f ru i t less and wasteful  expendi ture,  you had 

d i f f i cu l t ies  in  the  aud i t  work ,  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  the  l im i ta t ion  o f  scope as  i t  was  

does –  was not  i n  re la t ion  to  the  numbers  d isc losed in  the  

f inanc ia l  s ta tements .   I t  re la ted  to  –  spec i f i ca l l y  to  the  area  

o f  i r regu lar  and f ru i t less  expend i tu re .   So on tha t  bas is ,  

Cha i r,  the  who le  se t  o f  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  wou ld  no t  be  

qua l i f ied  in  tha t  regard  then.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  I  unders tand you fa i r l y,  Mr  Moth ibe ,  

to  say i t  requ i red  qua l i f i ca t ion  in  respect  o f  the  areas o f  

f ru i t less ,  waste fu l  expend i tu re  and i r regu lar  expend i tu re  

and in  the  area  o f  compl iance w i th  leg is la t ion ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 123 of 255 
 

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   So I  unders tand the  emphas is  

you p lace in  paragraph 11 on IFRS and i t s  s tandards and 

i t s  focus bu t  you have no d i f f i cu l t y  accept ing  tha t  there  

ought  to  have been a  qua l i f ied  oppor tun i ty   in  re la t ion  to  

those areas tha t  you make the  concess ions on ,  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  i t  i s  a lso  impor tan t  no te  tha t  wh i l s t  

–  I  unders tand where  Ms Hofmeyr  i s  coming f rom,  Cha i r,  

one then needs to  assess the  mater ia l i t y  o f  tha t  in  re la t ion  

to  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  as  a  who le .   So by  jus t  tak ing  10 

them as a  who le ,  Cha i r,  cannot  be  qua l i f ied ,  Cha i r,  on  the  

bas is  o f  those two mat te rs .  

 Cha i r,  i f  I  look  a t  the  aud i t  op in ion  o f  the  AG,  Cha i r,  

i f  you  w i l l  jus t  g ive  me a  second?   I  jus t  wanted to  look a t  

they have worded th is ,  Cha i r,  because in  l ine  w i th  how I  

have worded my op in ion .   Cha i r,  when  you qua l i f y  f inanc ia l  

s ta tements  i t  i s  based on the  fa i r  representa t ion  or  whethe r  

there  i s  a  mate r ia l  m iss ta tement  on  the  numbers  as  a  

who le .   So i f  on  a  who le  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  are  no t  

mater ia l l y  m iss ta ted ,  Cha i r,  then  i t  i s  no t  qua l i f y ing ,  we  20 

might  qua l i f y  an  aspect  o f  i t .    

 Th is  s ta tement ,  Cha i r,  I  make he re ,  I  s tand by  i t ,  I  

do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  what  I  –  tha t  on  the  numbers  i s  

inco r rec t ,  Cha i r.   I  am comfor tab le  tha t  those numbers  

were  fa i r l y  s ta ted  and tha t ,  as  I  ind ica te  in  my summary 
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s ta tement ,  tha t  on  i r regu lar  and f ru i t less  expend i tu re ,  I  d id  

no t  –  there  were  l im i ta t ions  and there fo re  I  wou ld  no t  have  

been ab le  to  g ive  the  op in ion  tha t  I  in i t ia l l y  gave,  Cha i r.   I  

shou ld  have sa id  –  ind ica ted  tha t  I  was not  ab le  to  ob ta in  

su f f i c ien t  ev idence because o f  the  fac t  tha t  SAA d id  no t  

have in  p lace  su f f i c ien t  cont ro l s  to  de termine f ru i t less  and 

waste fu l  expend i tu re .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  is  i t  your  ev idence tha t  the  ex ten t  to  

wh ich  l im i ta t ions  o f  scope –  l im i ta t ions  were  p laced  on the  

scope o f  you r  aud i t  in  re la t ion  to  i r regu la r  expend i tu re  and 10 

in  re la t ion  to  compl iance w i th  leg is la t ion ,  those were  no t  

mater ia l  enough fo r  you to  have qua l i f ied  the  aud i t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    No,  the re  were  never  [ ind is t inc t ]  03.27  

qua l i f ied  who le  aud i t ,  Cha i r,  no .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    How do you …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOTHIBE:    Not  on  the i r  own,  Cha i r,  no .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And how do you  make tha t  conc lus ion  or  

judgment ,  g ive  tha t  judgment  today w i thout  hav ing  proper ly  

assessed the  ex ten t  to  wh ich  those fa i lu res  and  

insu f f i c iency o f  the  appropr ia te  aud i t  ev idence you 20 

obta ined what  the  mater ia l i t y  o f  them were?  How do you  

manage to  do  tha t  today?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  as  I  ind ica ted ,  when I  exp la ined the  

d i f fe rence between the  qua l i ta t i ve  and quant i ta t i ve ,  say  on  

the  quant i t ies  tha t  a re  inc luded in  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  
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a re  co r rec t .   We d id  su f f i c ien t  work  on  tha t ,  we  obta ined 

su f f i c ien t  aud i t  ev idence,  Cha i r.    

I t  i s  the  –  the  quant i t ies  mat te rs  on  supp ly  cha in  

management ,  tha t  i s  where  there  were  cha l lenges,  Cha i r.   

So tha t ,  Cha i r,  tha t  on  i t s  own,  can never  lead  to  the 

qua l i f i ca t ion  o f  the  aud i t  op in ion  un less  you say –  un less  

on  the  numbers  i nc luded in  the  f inanc ia l  s ta temen ts  there  

were  a reas where  there  was l im i ta t ion  and ones tha t  a re  

no t  ab le  to  ob ta in  su f f i c ien t  ev idence and impor tan t ly,  

Cha i r,  whether  i t  i s  pervas i ve  o r  i t  i s  mater ia l  o r  no t  and  10 

whethe r  i t  i s  l im i ted  to  spec i f i c  a reas,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Mr  Moth ibe ,  the  o ther  aspect  tha t  the 

PFMA requ i res  you to  cons ider  i s  the  qua l i t y  o f  in te rna l  

cont ro ls  in  the  s ta te-owned enterp r ise  tha t  you are  

aud i t ing ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:  And in  the  th ree  years  2014 to  2016 your  

aud i t  repor ts  ind ica ted  tha t  the  in te rna l  cont ro l s  were  

adequate ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  I  make a  re ference to  my aud i t  20 

op in ion ,  i f  you . . .   Cha i r,  as  I  d id  ment ion  ea r l ie r  tha t  

impor tan t ly,  one  w i l l  never  g i ve  assurance on in te rna l  

cont ro ls  because  we do not  aud i t  in te rna l  cont ro ls  –  we l l ,  

aud i t  a l l  con t ro l s  fo r  the  en t i t y,  then we on ly  comment  on  

the  in te rna l  cont ro ls  tha t  a re  re levant  and to  the  aud i t  and 
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ones tha t  we have tes ted  and in  the  op in ion  we see tha t  we 

d id  no t  ident i f y  any de f ic ienc ies  in  in te rna l  cont ro l s  tha t  we 

cons idered s ign i f i can t ly  o r  s ign i f i can t  fo r  inc lus ion  in  the  

repor t .   So,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  say we are  no t  g iv ing  

assurance and we a re  no t  say ing  tha t  there  were  no  

in te rna l  cont ro l  [ ind is t inc t ]  bu t  then when we g i ve  the  

op in ion ,  we sa id  we [ ind i s t inc t ]  tha t  were  su f f i c ien t ly  

s ign i f i can t  fo r  inc lus ion ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you may have found some but  what  

you conveyed to  the  reader  o f  you r  aud i t  repor t  i s  tha t  you 10 

d id  no t  ident i f y  de f ic ienc ies  in  in te rna l  cont ro l  tha t  were  

su f f i c ien t ly  s ign i f i can t .   I s  tha t  a  fa i r  s ta tement?  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  a  fa i r  s ta tement ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now,  were  you aware  –  do  you know who 

Mr  S iyakhu la  Vi lakaz i  i s?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Yes,  I  do  know Mr  Vi lakaz i .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you reca l l  what  pos i t ion  he  he ld  a t  

SAA? 

MR MOTHIBE:    He was the  Ch ie f  Aud i t  Execut ive ,  pardon,  

le t  me ca l l  i t ,  the  Head o f  In te rna l  Aud i t ,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .  

MR MOTHIBE:    And do you know tha t  there  was a  tender  

fo r  d ry  snacks wh ich  was in i t ia l l y  awarded to  Mante l l i ’s  

B iscu i ts  in  2014 but  subsequent ly  cance l led?  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    And you are  aware  tha t  tha t  tender  was  

i r regu lar l y  cance l led?  That  award  was i r regu lar ly  

cance l led  is  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  I  am aware  o f  the  issues around 

tha t  tender  and what  t ransp i red .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And are  you  aware  tha t  there  were  

compla in t s  lodged w i th  IRBA and  w i th  the  In te rna l  Aud i t  

Regu la tory  bod ies  as  a  consequence o f  the  i r regu lar i t y  in  

tha t  tender  award? 

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  I  am aware  o f  compla in ts  t ha t  were  10 

made to  IRBA in  tha t  regard .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And so  you do  not  have knowledge o f  

the  In te rna l  Aud i t  Regu la tory  body,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Yes,  I  am a lso  aware  o f  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You are  aware .  

MR MOTHIBE:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Good because in  tha t  p rocess Mr  

Vi lakaz i  p rov ided  an a f f idav i t  to  the  Ins t i tu te  o f  In te rna l  

Aud i to rs  o f  South  A f r i ca  in  wh ich  he  gave an accoun t  o f  the 

s ta te  o f  in te rna l  aud i t ing  a t  SAA.   A re  you aware  o f  tha t  20 

a f f idav i t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  I  am aware  tha t  there  were  issues  

in  there ,  Cha i r,  bu t  I  am t ry ing  to  reca l l  i f  I  had seen tha t ,  

Cha i r,  bu t  I  am aware  tha t  there  was invest iga t ion  there ,  

Cha i r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    You see because Mr  Vi lakaz i ’s  –  and the  

competency o f  the  in te rna l  aud i t  func t ion  a t  SAA was 

ra ised in  th is  compla in t  and in  response to  the  compla in t  

he  produced and a f f idav i t  wh ich  we have subsequent ly  

ob ta ined as  the  Commiss ion  and what  tha t  accoun t  tha t  Mr  

Vi lakaz i ,  the  head o f  in te rna l  aud i t  a t  SAA d isc loses,  i s  the 

fo l low ing.   I  am go ing  to  summar i se  fo r  you in  the  in te res t  

o f  t ime but  i f  you  wou ld  l i ke  me to  go  to  the  a f f idav i t  you  

can request  tha t ,  Mr  Moth ibe .  

What  Mr  Vi lakaz i  says in  tha t  a f f idav i t  i s  tha t  dur ing  10 

Apr i l  2014 the  SAA in te rna l  aud i t  depar tment  was on ly  one 

year  and  n ine  months  o ld  and most  o f  i t s  p rocesses were  

s t i l l  be ing  fo rmal ised.   He sa id  t ha t  in  tha t  a f f idav i t  tha t  

genera l  documenta t ion  and f i l i ng  processes regard ing  a l l  

the  aud i ts  were  fa r  f rom per fec t .  

He exp la ins  tha t  towards the  end o f  2014 and  

independent  aud i t  f i rm was appo in ted  to  do  qua l i t y  

assu rance on the  in te rna l  aud i t  work  a t  SAA.   Were  you 

aware  o f  tha t  f i rm tha t  was appo in ted  to  do  tha t  assurance  

work?  20 

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  I  am aware  tha t  there  was 

assurance done on in te rna l  aud i t  depar tment  SAA. 

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you ca l l  fo r  tha t  repor t  o f  tha t  

independent  aud i t  f i rm?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  tha t  repor t  was d i scussed a t  one o f  
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the  aud i t  commi t tees.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then were  you were  aware  tha t  they  

had  found s ign i f i can t  weaknesses in  the  aud i t  work ing  

papers ,  documenta t ion  and f i l i ng?  

MR MOTHIBE:    I t  was d i scussed a t  the  aud i t  commi t tees,  

yes ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And tha t  was a t t r ibu ted  to  the 

inexper ience o f  s ta f f  and the  fa i lu re  o f  more  sen io r  

members  w i th in  i n te rna l  aud i t  to  take  fu l l  accountab i l i t y  fo r  

the i r  work .   Were  you aware  o f  tha t?  10 

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    To  the  ou ts ide  observer,  Mr  Moth ibe ,  I  

am put t ing  myse l f  in  tha t  ca tegory,  tha t  does not  sound l i ke  

an  in te rna l  aud i t  depar tment  tha t  i s  funct ion ing  we l l .   I s  

tha t  a  fa i r  observa t ion  fo r  me to  make? 

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  as  Ms  Hofmeyr  had ment ioned  

ear l ie r,  i t  was a  fa i r l y  new in te rna l  aud i t  depar tmen t  and i t  

was in  a  deve lop ing  s tage.   So,  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  no t  

ca tegor i se  as  no t  necessar i l y  funct ion ing  we l l  bu t  

obv ious ly  because i t  was new,  deve lop ing ,  there  wou ld  20 

s ign i f i can t ly  have been room for  improvement  in  a  lo t  o f  

a reas,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do d id  you regard  i t  as  your  job  to  then 

check each year  whethe r  i t  was improv ing?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r,  tha t  i s  no t  w i th in  the  scope o f  
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ex te rna l  aud i t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  when you s ta te  pos i t i ve l y  a t  t he  end 

o f  2016 tha t  you were  no t  ab le  to  ident i f y  any de f ic ienc ies  

in  in te rna l  cont ro l  i s  tha t  because  you d id  no t  look  a t  i t?   

Because you d id  look  a t  i t  and you d id  no t  iden t i f y  any  

de f ic ienc ies .  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r ,  in te rna l  aud i t ,  f i rs t  o f  a l l ,  Cha i r ,  i f  

one looks a t  the  cont ro l  env i ronment  tha t  we have  looked 

a t  fo r  aud i t  purposes,  Cha i r ,  i t  i s  the  bus iness processes 

and the  management  p rocesses.   In te rna l  aud i t   i s  an 10 

assurance prov ider  no t  to  d iss im i la r  f rom what  we prov ide ,  

Cha i r .   So when i t  comes to  in te rna l  cont ro ls ,  Cha i r ,  they  

do  not  necessar i l y  fo rm the  core  o f  in te rna l  cont ro l s  in  the 

bus iness,  we look a t  the  work  tha t  in te rna l  aud i t  has 

per fo rmed wh ich  he lps  us  ident i f y  a reas tha t  we needed to  

focus on  f rom a  r i sk  pe rspect ive ,  Cha i r ,  bu t  as  an  ac tua l  

cont ro l ,  Cha i r ,  on  i t s  own,  in te rna l  cont ro l ,  Cha i r ,  i t  i s  no t  

the  so le  ind i ca tor ,  Cha i r ,  i f  I  can  say tha t ,  o f  s t rong  

in te rna l  cont ro ls .   I t  i s  management ,  i t  i s  best  p rocesses 

tha t  has been documented and l i ke  us ,  the re  are  assurance  20 

prov iders  and they look a t  tha t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Mr  Moth ibe ,  we have looked a t  the 

prov is ions o f  the  PFMA prev ious l y .   Do you accept  tha t  

under  Sect ion  51  o f  the  PFMA 1 (a) ( i )  i t  i s  a  requ i rement  

tha t  the  account ing  au thor i t y  o f  a  pub l i c  en t i t y  such  as  SAA 
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must  ensure  tha t  i t  has  and main ta ined in te rna l  cont ro l .   

You do not  have a  d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  tha t ,  do  you? 

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And tha t  i t  i s  a lso  requ i red  to  have and  

main ta in  a  sys tem o f  in te rna l  aud i t  under  the  cont ro l  and  

d i rec t ion  o f  an  aud i t  commi t tee  comply ing  and opera t ing  in  

acco rdance w i th  the  regu la t ions  presc r ibed in  te rms o f  

Sect ion  76  and 77,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And because you are  requ i red  to  10 

cons ider  the  in te rna l  cont ro l  env i ronment  in  the  s ta te-

owned enterpr i ses  tha t  you aud i t  i t  fo rms an i tem in  your  

aud i t  repor t ,  i s  tha t  no t  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Can I  ask  you to  repeat  tha t ,  Cha i r?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  you see ,  your  answers  to  these 

quest ions about  in te rna l  cont ro l ,  Mr  Moth ibe ,  as  I  am  

unders tand ing ,  tends to  suggest  tha t  in te rna l  cont ro l  i s  not  

rea l l y  someth ing  you are  requ i red  to  look  a t  in  the  course  

o f  your  aud i t ing  o f  a  s ta te  owned enterpr i se  wh ich  has 

PFMA ob l iga t ions to  main ta in  and have in te rna l  cont ro l  20 

sys tems in  p lace .   Have I  –  am I  un fa i r  to  you in  your  

ev idence tha t  you are  t ry ing  to  suggest  tha t  i s  no t  a  

requ i rement  o f  your  ob l iga t ions?  

MR MOTHIBE:    I  th ink  you are  be ing  unfa i r  because tha t  

i s  de f in i te ly  no t  what  I  am suggest ing .   
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  so  you accept  tha t  you do have to  

look  a t  in te rna l  cont ro l s?  

MR MOTHIBE:    I  accept  tha t  we look a t  in te rna l  cont ro l s  

and tha t  we comment  where  we ident i f y  s ign i f i can t  

weaknesses but  impor tan t ly ,  Cha i r ,  as  I  ment ioned,  tha t  we  

do not  g ive  assurance fo r  in te rna l  cont ro ls .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Mr  Moth ibe ,  I  accept  you do not  g ive  

assurance on those cont ro l s  bu t  you inc lude a  pos i t i ve  

s ta tement  in  your  aud i t  repor t  fo r  th ree  consecut ive  years  

tha t  you d id  no t  ident i f y  any  de f ic ienc ies  in  in te rna l  10 

cont ro l .   Do you accept  tha t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r ,  the  s ta tement  say we  d id  no t  

ident i f y  any su f f i c ien t ly  s ign i f i can t  to  repor t ,  Cha i r ,  no t  to  

say we d id  no t  ident i f y  any [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  I  can read you the  words.   I t  says :  

“We d id  no t  ident i f y  any…” 

Oh,  I  see.  

“We d id  no t  ident i f y  any de f ic ienc ies  in  in te rna l  

cont ro l  tha t  were  cons idered su f f i c ien t ly  s ign i f i can t  20 

fo r  inc lus ion  in  the  repor t . ”  

I  accept  tha t .   So you looked a t  them and you d id  no t  

ident i f y  any tha t  were  su f f i c ien t l y  s ign i f i can t  to  inc lude,  

cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  what  we sa id ,  Cha i r .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    And then I  pu t  you but  in  2014 tha t  

sys tem a t  the  admiss ion  o f  Mr  V i lakaz i  seems to  have been  

inadequate  and I  unders tood your  answer  to  be  i t  was in  i t s  

in fancy and i t  was improv ing ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then d id  you t rus t  tha t  i t  was 

improv ing  in  the  consecut ive  years  fo r  2015 and 2016? 

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r ,  as  I  ind ica ted  we do rece ive  repor t s  

o f  in te rna l  aud i t o r ,  we do have s igh t  o f  them and they 

ass is t  us  in  ident i f y ing  areas o f  r i sk  and what  we can focus 10 

on and ce r ta in ly ,  Cha i r ,  i f  one looks a t  the  repor ts  o f  

in te rna l  aud i t   over  the  years ,  Cha i r ,  the  qua l i t y  thereof ,  

there  was an improvement ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  the  reason why I  asked 

whethe r  you were  t rack ing  the  improvement  i s  because you  

f in ish  in  2016,  the  Aud i to r -Genera l  comes in  in  2017 and 

the  Aud i to r -Genera l  found s ign i f i can t  in te rna l  cont ro l  

de f ic ienc ies .   I s  tha t  because the  who le  env i ronment  had  

changed w i th in  a  year?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r ,  aga in ,  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me to 20 

comment  on  env i ronment  tha t  the  Aud i to r -Genera l  found 

versus when we were  there ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  so  le t  me ask whether  you found 

any o f  the  s ign i f i can t  in te rna l  con t ro l  de f ic ienc ies  tha t  the  

Aud i to r -Genera l  spent  many,  many  paragraphs o f  h is  aud i t  
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repor t  reco rd ing .   Under  leadersh ip  there  had been  

ins tab i l i t y  exper ienced in  the  en t i t y  wh ich  resu l ted  in  

suspens ions and  res ignat ions in  key leadersh ip  pos i t ions ,  

ins tab i l i t y  in  leadersh ip  cont r ibu t ing  to  the  overa l l  dec l ine  

in  the  in te rna l  cont ro l  env i ronment .   D id  you not  encounter  

any o f  tha t  in  you r  years?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r ,  i f  I  re f lec t ,  we had the  same CFO 

f rom the  t ime I  became aud i t  par tner  who le f t  a t  the  end o f  

2015 rep laced by  one ind iv idua l  who was there  when we 

le f t .   Cha i r ,  the  pos i t ions  – the  o ther  pos i t ions ,  Cha i r ,  the  10 

pos i t ion  o f  CEO was f i l l ed  a t  a l l  t imes when we were  there .   

The pos i t ions  o f  Ch ie f  Commerc ia l  Of f i cer  was f i l l ed  when 

we were  the re .   Even,  Cha i r ,  the  impor tan t  pos i t ions  o f  

head o f  p rocurement ,  they were  no t  taken,  there  were  

persons occupy ing  those pos i t ions  and,  Cha i r ,  what  was  

impor tan t  to  us  was the i r  ab i l i t y  to  de l i ve r  and,  Cha i r ,  we 

d id  no t  f ind  cha l lenges in  tha t  regard .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And d id  you f ind  tha t  leadersh ip  had  

adequate ly  es tab l i shed po l i c ies  and p rocedures to  enab le  

and suppor t  the  unders tand ing  in  execut ion  o f  in te rna l  20 

aud i t  ob jec t i ves ,  p rocesses and respons ib i l i t i es?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r ,  there  were  documented po l i c ies  and  

procedures a t  SAA.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And tha t  the  aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee  

had mandated imp lement ing  var ious IT aspects  wh ich  then 



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 135 of 255 
 

were  no t  adequate ly  pu t  in  p lace .   You had no d i f f icu l t ies  

w i th  tha t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r ,  in  our  men t ioned repor t s  and repor t  

to  aud i t  commi t tee ,  wh i ls t  we ident i f ied  we d id  have  issues  

in  the  IT  space but  there  was a  head o f  IT  who was  I  wou ld  

l i ke  to  th ink  competent ,  Cha i r ,  and a t tended a l l  aud i t  

commi t tee  meet ings and repor ted  back a t  eve ry  meet ing ,  

Cha i r ,  and aud i ts  tha t  they were  runn ing  and how they 

were  t rack ing ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And un l i ke  the  Aud i to r -Genera l  you d id  10 

no t  f ind  tha t  leadersh ip  had fa i led  to  imp lement  e f fec t i ve  

processes to  ensure  tha t  su f f i c ien t ly  sk i l led  ind iv idua ls  

were  he ld  accoun tab le  fo r  non-per fo rmance?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r ,  as  I  ind ica ted ,  a l l  the  key pos i t ions  

tha t  were  [ ind is t i nc t ]   those o f f i ces  were  occup ied  a t  a l l  

t imes when we were  a t  South  A f r i can A i rways.   I ssues were  

ra ised and in  the  aud i t  commi t tee  meet ings,  as  fa r  as  I  can  

remember ,  Cha i r ,  there  were  quest ions asked o f  them to  

unders tand why mat te rs  have not  been dea l t  w i th ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  no t  enough  fo r  you to  regard  them 20 

as  s ign i f i can t  depar tu res  f rom the  requ i rements  fo r  in te rna l  

cont ro l ,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MR MOTHIBE:    Cha i r ,  I  d id  ind ica te  ear l ie r  tha t  when we  

determined our  aud i t  approach fo r  South  A f r i can A i rways 

we d id  a  r i sk  assessment ,  we looked a t  the  company,  the  
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s t ruc ture ,  i t s  complex i t y  to  unders tand how every th ing  f i t s  

together ,  Cha i r ,  and a t  a  s tage we determined tha t  we were  

go ing  to  adopt  substant ive  aud i t  approach because we 

were  no t  go ing  to  fu l l y  re ly  on  cont ro ls ,  Cha i r .   So I  do  no t  

know i f  tha t  answers  Ms Hofmeyr ’ s  quest ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  i s  f ine  fo r  my purposes,  Mr  

Moth ibe .   Cha i r ,  tha t  b r ings me to  the  end o f  my quest ions 

un less  there  are  fu r ther  f rom you.   You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  we  

were  go ing  to  ask  jus t  fo r  a  b i t  t ime before  the  next  

w i tness to  ge t  every th ing  ready.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Now look ing  back a t  the  years  tha t  P IC 

(s ic )  was invo l ved in  aud i t ing  SAA those par t i cu la r  years  

and look ing  a t  the  AG’s  repor t  and look ing  a t  Mr  

Sokombela ’ s  ev idence and remember ing  what  I  sa id ,  my 

react ion  was to  the  ev idence abou t  SAA namely  how cou ld  

the  aud i to rs  who preceded the  AG dur ing  those  years ,  

namely  Pr icewaterhouse and Nkonk i ,  how cou ld  they no t  

have p i cked up a l l  o f  these se r ious  prob lems?  

As you s i t  there  are  you ab le  to  say,  look ing  back  

and knowing what  I  know now,  I  accept  tha t  we shou ld  20 

have p icked up those prob lems and  we fe l t  shocked inso far  

as  we d id  no t  p ick  them up,  those  tha t  we d id  no t  p ick  up  

or  those tha t  we p icked up but  d id  no t  inc lude in  the  repor t  

wh ich  we shou ld  have inc luded,  we accept  we fe l l  shor t  in  

tha t  regard .    
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Or  i s  your  pos i t ion  tha t  maybe my react ion  i s  s imp ly  

because I  am no t  an  aud i to r  and tha t  there  is  no  need to 

be  a la rmed a t  how Pr icewaterhouse and Nkonk i  cou ld  no t  

have p i cked these th ings up  wh ich  the  AG was ab le  to  p ick  

up?  What  a re  you ab le  to  say knowing what  you know 

now? 

MR MOTHIBE:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   Cha i r ,  I  th ink  fo r  

s ta r te rs ,  f rom PwC’s  s ide  and I  do  th ink  i t  p robab ly  app l ies  

the  same fo r  Nkonk i  tha t  we  wou ld  never  on  an  ass ignment  

tha t  we are  no t  ab le  to  de l i ver  on  and tha t  we are  10 

competent  to  de l i ver  on .   Cha i r ,  we d id  work ,  we ident i f ied  

de f ic ienc ies ,  we  ra ised them wi th  management ,  we a l so  

ra ised them wi th  the  aud i t  commi t tee  and we have  

conceded tha t  we shou ld  have e levated them in  the  aud i t  

repor t  because I  th ink ,  Cha i r ,  i f  they  were  e levated the  

repor t  wou ld  have had the  same as the  AG’s  repor t  reads.    

So I  am conf iden t ,  Cha i r ,  tha t  bo th  f i rms have done 

the  work .   The work  was done,  de f in i te ly ,  Cha i r .   There  was  

fa i r l y  de l i vered.   What  we had e r red  in  was not  e leva t ing  

those las t  e lements  as  I  sa id  inc lud ing  in to  the  aud i t  20 

op in ion .  

 Cha i r ,  in  as  fa r  as  whether  we shou ld  have seen  

some o f  these ones tha t  we d id  no t  see,  Cha i r ,  there  is  an  

inherent  l im i ta t ion ,  Cha i r ,  o f  aud i t  sampl ing  where  –  and I  

th ink  I  a l luded to  i t  ear l ie r  tha t  th is  was the  approach f rom 
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the  –  the  ones tha t  we saw we d id  repor t .   The ones tha t  

we d id  no t  see,  because o f  aud i t  sampl ing ,  Cha i r ,  there  are  

impor tan t  i ssues ,  had we seen  them we wou ld  have  

def in i te ly ,  Cha i r ,  fo l lowed the  –  in  sho r t  tha t  they are  

repor ted  appropr ia te ly ,  Cha i r .   So I  do  no t  know i f  tha t  

covers  the  quest ion ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Un less there  is  

anyth ing ,  there  is  no th ing?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Moth ibe ,  thank you ve ry  much fo r  10 

coming to  g i ve  ev idence,  we apprec ia te  i t .   You a re  now 

excused.  

MR MOTHIBE:    Thank you very  much,  Cha i r ,  fo r  your  

indu lgence,  thank  you fo r  the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   Ms  Hofmeyr ,  you wou ld  l i ke  

about  f i ve  m inutes?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Maybe ten ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ten,  ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Because we  jus t  have to  check the  

communica t ion  w i th  our  next  w i tness.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And we do not  want  to  ca l l  you  in  and 

then have i t… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cou ld  I  do  i t  on  th is  bas is ,  as  soon as  I  
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have been g iven  the  green l igh t  we can ind ica te  to  your  

reg i s t ra r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you so  much.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  we ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r,  i f  I  can  jus t  ind ica te  to  

Mr  Mkwanaz i  and your  a t to rney Mr  Mkhwanaz i ,  we have  10 

commenced the  sess ion  and I  am go ing  to  do  an  

in t roduct ion  and  then I  am go ing  to  hand over  to  my 

learned f r iend w i th  your  leave Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  the  next  w i tness we in tend to  ca l l  

i s  Mr  Maf ika  Mkwanaz i ,  h is  ev idence is  impor tan t  and  

spans two S ta te  owned ente rpr i ses  as  we l l  as  the  top ic  o f  

the  New Age,  wh ich  is  an  aspect  tha t  we have been  look ing  

a t  in  some deta i l  in  the  Commiss ion .     

 Cha i r  as  I  ind ica ted  the  ev idence w i l l  be  p resented  20 

by  my learned,  Ms Amy Armst rong.    Mr  Mkwanaz i  w i l l  be 

g iv ing  ev idence today v ia  v ideo l ink  f rom a  loca t ion  w i th in  

South  A f r i ca  and  Cha i r  he  w i l l  be  v is ib le  to  us  on  the  

sc reen on my r igh t ,  your  le f t .    He w i l l  be  ab le  to  see Ms  

Armst rong and to  the  ex ten t  tha t  he  w ishes to  you we have 
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ind ica ted  to  h im  he shou ld  ge t  a  dev i ce  to  s t ream the  

proceed ings.     

 Oh,  apo log ies ,  there  has ac tua l l y  been another  

dev ice  se t  up  so  he  can see both  you on h is  sc reen  as  we l l  

as  Ms Armst rong,  and Cha i r  jus t  to  remind ou rse lves o f  Mr  

Mkwanaz i ’s  ev idence is  go ing  to  f i t  in ,  Mr  Mkwanaz i  was a  

member  o f  the  so-ca l led  o ld  Eskom Board ,  tha t  was the  

Board  be fore  the  change in  2014 and i t  was the  Board  who 

had to  dea l  w i th  the  TNA cont rac t  tha t  the  fo rmer  Ch ie f  

Execut ive  Off i cer,  Mr  Maj i la ,  had entered in to  fo r  43mi l l ion ,  10 

when tha t  cont rac t  was f lagged as  a  repor tab le  i r regu lar i t y  

by  the  aud i to rs  o f  Eskom.     

 Now the  Commiss ion  has p rev ious l y  rece ived  

ev idence f rom Mr  Pamensky as  one o f  the  new Board  

members  who u l t imate ly  had to  take  the  dec i s ion  to  ra t i f y  

tha t  cont rac t .    I t  has  a l so  heard  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Tsots i ,  

who was the  Cha i rman o f  the  Eskom Board  and  so  who 

t rans i t ioned f rom the  o ld  Board  to  the  new Board ,  bu t  what  

we haven ’ t  ye t  heard  is  a  representa t i ve  o f  the  pos i t ion  o f  

the  o ld  board ,  and i t  i s  Mr  Mkwanaz i  who f i l l s  tha t  pos i t ion  20 

fo r  us  today,  and so  there  w i l l  be  some aspects  o f  h is  

approach to  the  TNA cont rac t  wh i le  an  o ld  Board  member  

o f  Eskom tha t  w i l l  be  probed.  

 Mr  Mkwanaz i  was a lso  a t  Transnet  when as  h is  

s ta tement  ind ica te  he  was approached fo r  a  meet ing  w i th  a  
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member  o f  the  Gupta  Fami ly  regard ing  adver t i s ing  spend 

w i th  the  New Age ,  and Cha i r  Ms Armst rong w i l l  spend some 

t ime prob ing  tha t  because tha t  meet ing  happened a t  a  t ime 

and in  c i r cumstances tha t  bear  a  number  o f  s im i la r i t ies  to  

o ther  accounts  tha t  th is  Commiss ion  has rece ived in  

ev idence about  those in te rac t ions  in  ear ly  2011 and la te  

2010.     

 Cha i r  th ree  Ru le  33  Not ices  were  issued in  respect  

o f  Mr  Mkwanaz i ’s  s ta tement  tha t  was way back ear l i e r  th is  

year,  because Mr  Mkwanaz i  had been wa i t ing  expectant ly  10 

to  g ive  h i s  ev idence before  the  Commiss ion .    

 There  has on ly  been one response Cha i r  and tha t  i s  

f rom Mr  Malus i  G igaba,  i t  i s  no t  an  app l i ca t ion  to  c ross-

examine Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  he  supp l ies  an  a f f idav i t  se t t ing  ou t  

h is  vers ion  and as  we have done prev ious l y  when we have  

been fo r tunate  enough on ou r  t im ing  to  rece ive  an  a f f idav i t  

be fore  a  w i tness g ives  ev idence Ms Armst rong w i l l  t raverse  

per t inent  aspects  o f  Mr  G igaba ’s  vers ion  w i th  Mr  Mkwanaz i  

th is  a f te rnoon.  

 Cha i r  Mr  Mkwanaz i  i s  one o f  those  w i tnesses whose  20 

ev idence,  re levan t  to  the  Commiss ion ,  spans more  than w i l l  

be  addressed w i th  h im today.    As  we have had  to  do  

prev ious l y  w i th  our  focus on  TNA wi ths tands a  number  o f  

SOE’s  we focused in  on  the  TNA aspects ,  we focused in  

w i th  any assoc ia ted  meet ings,  we w i l l  look  a t  TNA in  
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Transnet  and in  Eskom,  w i th  Mr  Mkwanaz i  bu t  o ther  

aspects  where  he  may have re levant  ev idence,  pa r t i cu la r ly  

in  re la t ion  to  Transnet  w i l l  be  le f t  fo r  the  Transnet  work  

s t ream to  dea l  w i th .  

 Cha i r  the  l as t  po in t  f rom me befo re  I  hand over  to  

Ms Armst rong is  to  request  tha t  Mr  Mkwanaz i ’s  s ta tement  

be  en tered as  Exh ib i t  MM7,  i t  shou ld  be  d i rec t l y  in  f ron t  o f  

you.  

 Now Cha i r  i t  i s  a  very  shor t  s ta tement ,  wh ich  is  

then accompanied by  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    That  w i l l  be  together  w i th  i t s  annexures,  

i s  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  ac tua l l y  doesn ’ t  have annexures,  i t  i s  

so  shor t  and sweet  tha t  i t  compr i ses  on ly  two pages.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  what  about  the  A ,  B and  C tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  so  le t  me exp la in  tha t  i s  in  what  we  

have prev ious ly  been ca l l ing  the  o ther  document  sect ion  

and i t  compr i ses  the  a f f idav i t  f rom Mr  G igaba,  wh ich  i s  

go ing  to  be  pu t  to  Mr  Mkwanaz i  today,  and so  those are  the  20 

a t tachments  to  Mr  G igaba ’s  a f f idav i t ,  and then  cer ta in  

add i t iona l  documents .  

 Cha i r  my learned f r iend was  mindfu l  o f  the  

approach you took yeste rday to  want  h im to  separa te ly  to  

ident i f y  the  documents ,  so  what  we are  go ing  to  suggest  
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fo r  today is  we enter  as  Exh ib i t  MM7 the  s ta tement  o f  Mr 

Mkwanaz i  and then fo r  re fe renc ing  purposes,  and tha t  w i l l  

be  A ,  i t  w i l l  be  MM7A wi l l  be  the  s ta tement  and then as  Ms  

Armst rong leads you th rough today she w i l l  use  pr imar i l y  

the  pag ina t ion  number  to  ge t  to  you to  the  r igh t  page but  

then she w i l l  g ive  an  exh ib i t  number  to  each o f  the  

documents ,  because there  are  on ly  a  few and so  she can 

do tha t  ac tua l l y  wh i le  she is  g iv ing  –  ask ing  the  quest ions,  

i f  tha t  i s  su i tab le  to  you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  no  tha t  i s  f ine .    Mr  Mkwanaz i ’s  10 

s ta tement  i s  i t  a  s ta tement  o r  a f f idav i t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s  ac tua l l y  a  s ta tement ,  i t  i s  on ly 

s igned.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Excuse me –  w i l l  be  admi t ted  and  

marked as  Exh ib i t  MM7,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you so  much,  I  am jus t  go ing  to  

qu ick l y  s te r i l i se  because I  am abou t  to  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  you do tha t  we haven ’ t  done th i s  20 

be fore  o ther  than  when we –  when I  heard  ev idence f rom 

the  in te rnat iona l  exper ts  r igh t  a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  

hear ings in  August  2018,  so  i t  i s  necessary  tha t  we don ’ t  

confuse the  pub l i c  about  what  we do and what  we don ’ t  do .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  o f  course ,  yes .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I  unders tand tha t  Mr  Mkwanaz i  made a 

request  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR:    He d id  indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  h is  ev idence be heard  v ia  Zoom o r  

i s  i t  Zoom o r  i s  i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s  ac tua l l y  Zoom today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.    I  have a l lowed ,  I  have  

granted leave to  tha t ,  I  unders tand and you must  jus t  te l l  

me your  unders tand ing ,  I  unders tand tha t  he  had concerns 

about  t rave l l ing  because o f  Cov id-19.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  there  is  a  concern  about  h im fa l l ing  

in to  a  r i sk  ca tegory  and w i th  the  esca la t ing  in fec t ion  ra te  

a t  the  moment  h i s  request  to  the  Commiss ion  was tha t  he  

remain  a t  h i s  home as I  unders tand where  he  is  cur ren t ly  

loca ted  and g ive  the  ev idence f rom there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  was par t i cu la r ly  re la ted  to  hea l th  

concerns.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  you ind ica ted  tha t  fo r  a  long  

t ime he has been ava i lab le  and ready to  come and  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes indeed,  s ince  February  Mr  Mkwanaz i  

was s i t t ing  he re  many days.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  i t  i s  the  Commiss ion  tha t  has no t  

been ab le  to  g ive  h im the  oppor tun i ty  so  I  have dec ided to 
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a l low tha t  we –  I  hear  h is  ev idence  in  th is  way on cond i t ion  

tha t  a t  a  cer ta in  t ime when maybe the  Cov id-19 s i tua t ion  

has subs ided su f f i c ien t ly  he  wou ld  be  ab le  to  come before  

the  Commiss ion  in  person and conf i rm under  oa th  in  f ron t  

o f  me the  ev idence tha t  w i l l  have been t ranscr ibed by  then.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  can I  conf i rm tha t  the  reco rd ing  w i l l  

be  f ine ,  we w i l l  ge t  a  t ranscr ip t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    We have conf i rmed tha t  and tha t  

s t ipu la t ion  Cha i r  has been communica ted  to  Mr  Mkwanaz i .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and he sa id  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR:   And he is  comfor tab le  w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He is  comfor tab le .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Mkwanaz i  do  you unders tand a l l  o f  

tha t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Chai rman I  do ,  thank you very  much.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay no  thank you very  much,  and 

thank you fo r  mak ing  yourse l f   ava i lab le  to  g i ve  ev idence  

to  the  Commiss ion .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    The las t  jus t  p rocedura l  aspec t  tha t  I  

a lways fo rge t  i s  Mr  Mkwanaz i  i s  lega l l y  represented,  h is  

lega l  rep resenta t i ves  d id  in t roduce  themse lves to  you way  

back when,  bu t  I  wonder  i f  they  cou ld  jus t  p lace  

themse lves on  record ,  they a re  a l so  on  the  Zoom p la t fo rm.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.    I s  he  w i th  Mr  Mkhwanaz i  o r  

i s  he  somewhere  e lse?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    He is  no t  w i th  h im,  he  is  a t  a  separa te  

loca t ion ,  you w i l l  see  h im second f rom the  end on the  top  

row o f  –  second f rom the  le f t  hand s ide ,  so  Mr  Mkwanaz i  

comes in  the  f rame on the  le f t  and then next  to  h im is  a lso  

Mr  Mkhwanaz i  bu t  spe l t  w i th  an  H,  as  i s  lega l  

rep resenta t i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MS HOFMEYR:   Mr Mkhwanaz i  can I  ask  you to  p lace  10 

yourse l f  on  reco rd .  

ADV MKHWANAZI :    Good a f te rnoon Cha i r,  good a f te rnoon  

co l leagues.   Thank you very  much fo r  a f fo rd ing  us  th is  

oppor tun i ty  f ina l l y  to  appear  be fore  the  Cha i r  we a re  here  

w i th  one so le  pu rposes,  wh ich  is  to  he lp  the  Commiss ion  to  

ach ieve i t s  ob jec t i ves  in  te rms o f  the  invest iga t ions and 

a lso  to  ment ion  to  you Cha i r  and spec i f i ca l l y  to  thank you  

fo r  you r  indu lgence in  a l low ing us  to  appear  be fo re  you on 

th is  med ium,  wh ich  c lear l y  i s  becoming a  permanent  

fea ture  o f  ou r  go ing  fo rward ,  so  thank you very  much fo r  20 

tha t  indu lgence,  and a lso  to  s ta te  Cha i r  tha t  the  reason 

tha t  as  my –  the  advocate  jus t  ment ioned now,  our  

s ta tement  i s  so  shor t  and sweet  the  words she used,  i t  i s  

because o f  the  amount  o f  t ime we have spent  consu l t ing  

w i th  the  Commiss ion ,  s ta r t ing  in i t ia l l y  w i th  the  fo rens i c  
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invest iga to rs  and  o f  course  subsequent  to  tha t  w i th  the 

lega l  team and the  Commiss ion .   We spec i f i ca l l y  in i t ia l l y  

requested tha t  we be g iven quest ions tha t  we shou ld  focus  

on ,  and as  we went  th rough the  mot ions we kept  on  you 

know cor rec t ing  and mak ing  our  s ta tement  much more  use r  

f r iend ly  and i t  i s  fo r  tha t  reason i t  i s  as  shor t  as  i t  is ,  bu t  I  

must  a lso  ment ion  Cha i r  tha t  w i th  regards to  Transnet  in  

par t i cu la r  the re  were  a  number  o f  requests  tha t  we had 

made to  the  prev ious Company Secre tary  a t  Transnet  to  

see i f  we cou ld  access any Board  in fo rmat ion  tha t  were  10 

be ing  re fer red  to  by  the  Commiss ion  and unfor tuna te ly  we 

cou ld  no t  ge t  any in fo rmat ion  f rom Transnet .    I  be l ieve  

tha t  Company Secre tary  i s  no  longer  the re  and there  is  a  

change o f  guard  and so  fo r th .  

 But  I  a lso  want  to  conf i rm Cha i r  tha t  the  issues in  

the  main  tha t  Mr  Mkwanaz i  w i l l  be  ta lk ing  to  today,  bo th  in  

te rms o f  Transnet  and o f  Eskom,  are  i ssues spec i f i ca l l y  

re la t ing  to  the  TNA and o f  course  you wou ld  reca l l  Cha i r  

tha t  bo th  the  Transnet  and o f  course  Eskom,  and many 

o ther  ins t i tu t ions  had ag reements  there  and o f  course  Mr  20 

Mkwanaz i  i s  ready,  w i l l i ng  and ab le  to  coopera te  w i th  you,  

so  thank you very  much Cha i r  and we spent  the  who le  day 

wa i t ing  fo r  you,  so  we have d iscussed as  much as  we cou ld  

w i th  Mr  Mkwanaz i  so  I  w i l l  j us t  g ive  you know g ive  h im the  

f loor  obv ious ly  th rough you  and you Cha i r  w i l l  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No thank you ve ry  much Mr  Mkhwanaz i .  

ADV MKH WANAZI :    I f  I  have a  quest ion ,  I  w i l l  jus t  ra ise  

my hand,  so  thank you very  much Cha i r  and co l leagues.   

CHAIRPERSON:    No thank you ve ry  much.  

ADV MKH WANAZI :    Oh and  my name is  Ronn ie  

Mkhwanaz i  and  I  am the  D i rec tor  a t  Mkhwanaz i  

Inco rpo ra ted .    Mr  Mkwanaz i  and I  a re  in  the  same bu i ld ing  

bu t  o f  cou rse  he  is  in  the  boardroom and I  am in  another  

o f f i ce ,  jus t  to  make sure  we observe  a l l  p ro toco ls  re la t ing  10 

to  Çov id  19 ,  so  thank you very  much Cha i r  and a lso  jus t  to  

ask  fo r  your  indu lgence in  advance,  tha t  in  the  event ,  and  

you w i l l  gu ide  us  Cha i r  in  te rms o f  the  procedures o f  the 

Commiss ion ,  i f  we are  a l lowed to  in  fac t  request  fo r  some 

t ime out ,  i f  I  need to  d iscuss someth ing  w i th  Mr  Mkwanaz i  

we w i l l  be  en t i re ly  in  your  hands  in  tha t  regard  Cha i r,  so  

thank you very  much fo r  be ing  he re  today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine ,  no  thank you  

very  much.    I  do  hope tha t  no th ing  w i l l  happen tha t  we  

requ i re  tha t  we  in te r rup t  Mr  Mkwanaz i ’s  ev idence fo r  20 

anyth ing  bu t  i f  someth ing  does ar i se ,  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  i t  a t  

tha t  s tage.     

I  do  want  to  say you ment ioned you made re ference  

to  Transnet  and Mr  Mkwanaz i  the  fac t  tha t  he  has  t r ied  to  

ob ta in  some documents ,  o r  you have t r ied  to  ge t  some 
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documents .    I  do  know tha t  soon  the  Commiss ion  w i l l  be  

communica t ing  w i th  Mr  Mkwanaz i  w i th  regard  to  some o f  

the  issues a t  Transnet  and there  are  some documents  tha t  

the  Commiss ion  has asked fo r  and obta ined f rom Transnet ,  

so  there  may be o thers  tha t  you may have wanted and you 

d idn ’ t  ge t  o r  you  d id  ge t ,  bu t  I  jus t  thought  I  must  jus t  le t  

you know tha t  I  am aware  tha t  the  Commiss ion  w i l l  be  in  

communica t ion  w i th  Mr  Mkwanaz i  i n  regard  to  some o f  the  

Transnet  i ssues,  and I  am happy  tha t  h is  commi tment  to  

coopera te  w i th  the  Commiss ion  and to  ass is t  the  10 

Commiss ion  has been re i te ra ted  by  you as  we l l .  

 Okay,  thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r,  i f  I  may then hand over  

to  my learned f r iend,  Ms Armst rong .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes thank you.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  must  jus t  say  tha t  we w i l l  have an oath  

or  a f f i rmat ion  admin is te red to  Mr  Mkwanaz i  even though a t  

some s tage in  the  fu tu re  he  w i l l  take  an  oath  in  person 

here  bu t  we w i l l  do  one today as  we l l .     20 

 Thank you very  much,  I  th ink  then i f  we can have Mr  

Mkwanaz i  the  w i tness appear ing  now on the  screen.   

Where  is  the  person who is  con t ro l l ing ,  oh ,  okay,  so  i t  

m igh t  no t  be  as  qu ick  as  one th inks .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Mr  Mkwanaz i  can you –  cou ld  you jus t  
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–  thank you,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I s  tha t  f ine?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i f  you  can  r i se  and then e i ther  an  

oa th  or  an  a f f i rmat ion  w i l l  be  admin is te red,  I  th ink  you can  

jus t  l i s ten .  

REGISTRAR:    P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Maf ika  Edmund Mkwanaz i .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ions in  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed a f f i rmat ion?  10 

MR MKWANAZI :    I  do  no t  have any ob jec t ion .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  a f f i rm tha t  the  ev idence 

you g ive  sha l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

e lse  bu t  the  t ru th ,  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  

say I  t ru ly  a f f i rm.  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  t ru ly  a f f i rm.  

MR MAFIKA MKWANAZI :    [d .s .s . ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much,  you  may be 

seated.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  thanks.  20 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes Ms Armst rong?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you want  to  p roper ly  p lace  yourse l f  

on  reco rd  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime? 
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ADV ARMSTRONG:   Yes thank you Cha i r,  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Chai r  so  I  am Amy Armst rong,  I  am 

par t  o f  the  lega l  team o f  the  Commiss ion ,  and before  we  

get  s ta r ted  g iven the  na ture  o f  the  med ium i f  there  are  

means to  p in  Mr  Mkwanaz i  –  the re  you go –  I  wou ld  jus t  

l i ke  to  conf i rm th ree th ings w i th  Mr  Mkwanaz i  about  where  

he  is  g iven tha t  we are  us ing  th is  med ium.   The f i rs t  th ing  I  

wanted to  conf i rm is  indeed as  we heard  f rom h is  lega l  

rep resenta t i ve ,  can you conf i rm Mr  Mkwanaz i  tha t  you are  10 

by  yourse l f  in  the  room? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes i t  i s  on ly  myse l f ,  nobody e lse .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Okay.   And can you conf i rm tha t  you 

w i l l  no t  be  rece iv ing  any messages du r ing  your  tes t imony 

and i f  you do rece ive  messages to  p lease br ing  i t  to  the  

a t ten t ion  o f  the  Cha i r.  

MR MKWANAZI :    No I  w i l l  no t  be  rece iv ing  messages,  

na tura l l y  except  fo r  the  documents  tha t  you fo rwarded to  

me.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Indeed,  and  tha t  i s  the  th i rd  th ing  I  20 

wou ld  l i ke  you to  conf i rm is  jus t  tha t  you w i l l  on ly  be  

look ing  a t  the  documents  and exh ib i t s  tha t  have been  

prov ided to  you  and no o ther  documenta t ion ,  can you  

conf i rm tha t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t .  
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ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you very  much Mr  Mkwanaz i .    

So jus t  to  o r ien ta te  Cha i r  you and Mr  Mkwanaz i  about  the  

exh ib i t s  and f i les  we w i l l  be  us ing ,  so  the  f i rs t  and the  

main  w i l l  be  Mr  Mkwanaz i ’s  s ta tements  and o the r  

documents  in  MM7.   Then we w i l l  be  tu rn ing  to  two o ther  

f i l es ,  on ly  two o ther  f i l es ,  one be ing  EXHIBIT MM3,  wh ich  

was Mr  Pamensky ’s  ev idence and  the  o ther  one w i l l  be  

MM6 which  was Mr  Tsots i ’s  ev idence before  the  

Commiss ion  and Mr  Mkwanaz i  you  have a l l  th ree  o f  those  

f i les  w i th  you,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  10 

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Okay.   As  my lea rned f r iend,  Ms 

Hofmeyr,  ind ica ted  I  have c rea ted a  l i s t  o f  the  d i f fe ren t  

documents  in  the  orde r  tha t  they appear  in  th is  f i le ,  and I  

have g i ven them labe ls ,  and I  w i l l  no t  necessar i l y  be  

re fer r i ng  to  them in  the  orde r  in  wh ich  they appear  in  here  

bu t  as  I  go  to  them I  w i l l  read what  the  labe l  i s  i n to  the  

record  as  to  what  the  exh ib i t  i s  ca l led .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we have a l ready done Mr  

Mkwanaz i ’s  s ta tement  bu t  fo r  any o ther  documents  as  and  20 

when you have to  re fer  to  them you w i l l  have to  dea l  w i th  

them a t  tha t  s tage.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you Cha i r,  so  we ca l l  the  f i rs t  

one MM7,  cou ld  I  cor rec t  tha t  jus t  to  ca l l  i t  MM7A,  th is  

s ta tement  on  page 1  and 2 .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  we sa id  MM7,  i s  tha t  because you  

in tend to  make the  o thers  MM7B and onwards?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  we w i l l  then amend what  I  sa id  

ear l ie r  on ,  Mr  Mkwanaz i ’s  s ta tement  w i l l  be  Exh ib i t  MM7A,  

okay.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you Cha i rman.   So before  we  

beg in  Mr  Mkwanaz i  cou ld  you  jus t  exp la in  what  your  

qua l i f i ca t ions are? 

MR MK WANAZI :    I  have two un ivers i t y  degrees,  one f rom 10 

the  Un ivers i t y  o f  Zu lu land wh ich  is  a  BSC in  Mathemat ics  

and App l ied  Mathemat ics  and the  second one is  a  degree 

f rom the  Un ivers i t y  o f  Nata l  in  E lec t r i ca l  Eng ineer ing ,  and  

then I  do  have a  coup le  o f  d ip lomas f rom – i t  i s  f rom Wi ts 

Un ivers i t y  e tce tera ,  bu t  those are  shor t  du ra t ion  d ip lomas.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  on  a  l igh te r  no te  I  don ’ t  know about  

you Ms Armst rong but  I  went  to  the  same two un ivers i t ies  

too  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   My goodness,  yes ,  tha t  i s  in te res t ing  

Cha i r.   So then Mr  Mkwanaz i  i f  you  cou ld  exp la in ,  you ’ re  20 

obv ious ly  as  was  s ta ted  ear l ie r  you are  go ing  to  be  go ing  

to  be  g iv ing  tes t imony in  your  capac i ty,  your  i nvo lvement  in  

bo th  Transnet  and Eskom.     

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Bu t  le t  us  jus t  beg in  w i th  Transnet .   



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 154 of 255 
 

Cou ld  you jus t  exp la in  your  ro le  a t  Transnet?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Advocate  Amy you –  I  have been w i th  

Transnet  maybe 19 or  20  years  because I  s ta r ted  there  in  

1996 as  an  Execut ive  D i rec tor,  then I  le f t  in  2003 be ing  a  

Group CEO.   Then I  re jo ined Transnet  in  December  2010 

and I  le f t  in  December  2014,  so  I  have had d i f fe ren t  t ypes  

o f  ro les  the  la tes t  one be ing  tha t  o f  be ing  non-execut ive  

Cha i rman f rom 2010 to  2014.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  so  can I  jus t  

take  you in  th is  MM7 bund le ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  10 

page 27.  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  wou ld  be  MM027? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Am I  cor rec t ,  okay.   Okay,  I  have got  a  

compute r  in  f ron t  o f  me,  scro l l ing  down,  le t  me see I  am on  

page 25,  27 ,  yes  I  am there .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you Mr  Mkwanaz i .   The  

purpose o f  th is  i s  jus t  to  ind ica te  Cha i r  th i s  has been  

labe l led  in  my f i le  wh ich  we w i l l  ensure  is  in  a l l  the  f i les ,  

th is  i s  Exh ib i t  MM7D.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  th is  le t te r  an  exh ib i t  on  i t s  own  or  i s  i t  

an  a t tachment?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed,  i t  i s  an  exh ib i t  on  i t s  own 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you wou ld  l i ke  i t  to  be  admi t ted  as  

Exh ib i t  MM7D.  
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ADV ARMSTRONG:   7D,  tha t  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  da ted  16 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:    December  2010,  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The le t te r  on  Transnet  le t te rhead 

appear ing  a t  page 27 is  i t  a  le t te r  o r  jus t  a  no te .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:  I t  i s  an  announcement  by  Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  a  s ta tement?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  the  s ta tement  on  Transnet  le t te rhead  

appear ing  a t  page 27 w i l l  be  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  MM7D,  i s  10 

tha t  r igh t?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    I t  i s  MM7D.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  tha t ’s  f ine .     

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you  and Mr  Mkwanaz i  the  

purpose o f  showing tha t  to  you is  jus t  as  a  reminder  tha t  

th is  i s  an  announcement  f rom Transnet  on  16  December  

2016 say ing  tha t  a  new Cha i rman was to  –  and tha t  wou ld  

be  you Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  i s  to  assume execut ive  

respons ib i l i t i es  un t i l  a  permanent  CEO is  appo in ted .    And 

then i t  s ta tes  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    . . . in  the  f i rs t  parag raph:  

“You w i l l  be  tasked w i th  tha t  add i t iona l  

respons ib i l i t y  o f  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  w i th  e f fec t  

f rom 16 December  2010. ”  
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I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t  yes .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Okay and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry,  jus t  to  connect  th is  w i th  

someth ing  e l se ,  wou ld  i t  be  co r rec t  Mr  Mkwanaz i  to  say 

when you became a  non-execut ive  d i rec to r,  cha i rman o f  

the  board  in  2010 ,  you were  coming in  together  w i th  a  new 

board  o f  Transnet?  

MR MKWANAZI :   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay,  thank you.  10 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    So  jus t  to  conf i rm Mr  Mkwanaz i  you 

are  a  non-execut ive  Cha i rman o f  the  Board  f rom December  

2010 to  2014,  bu t  you have a  br ie f  per iod  f rom December  

2010 as  be ing  the  –  an  Execut ive ,  Act ing  Execut ive  o f  the  

Ch ie f  –  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And then . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m sor ry,  the  proper  t i t le  wou ld  have 

been Act ing  Ch ie f  Execut ive  o r  Act ing  Group  Ch ie f  

Execut ive?  20 

MR MKWANAZI :    Ac t ing  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Act ing  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive ,  thank 

you.   I  am indebted.   And then  in  16  February  2011 I  

be l ieve  tha t  a  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  was appo in ted ,  does tha t  

acco rd  w i th  your  memory  as  the  Group Ch ie f?  
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MR MKWANAZI :    Ja ,  i t  i s  tha t  t ime yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Okay so  i t  is  jus t  in  tha t  per iod  f rom 

December  to  February  2011 tha t  you were  se rv ing  as  the  

Group Ch ie f  Execut ive .  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Okay,  thank you.    And then Mr  

Mkwanaz i  jus t  your  ro le  a t  Eskom.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   What  was tha t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  was non-Execut ive  D i rec to r,  I  had been 10 

there  be fore  by  the  way in  the  la te  n ine t ies ,  I  was  on the  

Board  o f  the  Eskom Counc i l  then,  they were  ca l led  Eskom 

Counc i l ,  i t  cou ld  have been 1995 or  1996,  i t  was fo r  a  b r ie f  

per iod ,  maybe two years .   Then in  2011,  June  -  ja  2011,  

a round June,  the  Min i s te r  appo in ted  me to  the  Board  o f  

Eskom as a  non-Execut ive  D i rec to r.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And do you  reca l l  the  end o f  your  

tenure  on  the  Board ,  the  da te?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  th ink  i t  was December  2014.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   That  i s  my unders tand ing ,  thank you  20 

Mr  Mkwanaz i .   So le t  us  beg in  then w i th  your  ev idence  

regard ing  Transnet  and tha t  i s  – le t ’s  go  back to  your  

s ta tement  wh ich  is  page 1  o f  tha t  bund le  tha t  you are  

look ing  a t .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  
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ADV ARMSTRONG:   That  i s  MM7A,  Exh ib i t .   And then Mr  

Mkwanaz i  can you jus t  tu rn  to  the  second page where  your  

s ignature  appears   

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Can you jus t  conf i rm tha t  tha t  i s  your  

s ignature?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes i t  i s  my s ignature .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Okay and then Mr  Mkwanaz i  I  see a t  

the  top  o f  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  s ta tement  your  surname is  

spe l t  incor rec t l y,  i t  has  go t  an  “h ”  in  i t ,  jus t  the  very  f i rs t  10 

page,  Mkhwanaz i ,  so  I  take  i t  tha t  i s  inco r rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   We must  jus t  cor rec t  tha t .  

MR MKWANAZI :    No,  no  tha t  i s  incor rec t ,  there  is  no  “h ” .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Great ,  and then bes ides  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  jus t  ou t  o f  cur ios i t y  i s  the  pos i t ion  

tha t  whether  i t  i s  wr i t ten  w i th  an  h  or  w i thout  an  h  i t  i s  the 

same peop le ,  so  in  o ther  words . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MK WANAZI :    I t  i s  the  same fami ly  Cha i r,  because in  20 

my fami ly  there  a re  four  ch i ld ren ,  two o f  the  ch i ld ren  have  

an “h ” ,  two o f  the  ch i ld ren  do not  have an “h” ,  i t  was the  

Home Affa i r s  tha t  dec ided what .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  was about  to  ask  whether  i t  was a  

Home Affa i r s  e r ro r.   Okay,  a l r igh t .  
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ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you Mr  Mkwanaz i  so  bes ides 

tha t  co r rec t ion  do  you have any o ther  co r rec t ions  a t  the  

ou tse t  you wou ld  l i ke  to  make to  th is  s ta tement?  

MR MKWANAZI :    No  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Okay so  then do you conf i rm tha t  

under  oa th  tha t  th is  s ta tement  i s  t rue  and cor rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I t  i s  yes .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   Okay so  as  my learned  

f r iend,  Ms Hofmeyr  exp la ined any  meet ing  w i th  a  member  

o f  the  Gupta  Fami ly  i s  o f  g rea t  in te res t  to  the  Commiss ion  10 

and we wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  expand upon the  – what  you –  the  

content  o f  th is  s ta tement  and make su re  tha t  tha t  we 

unders tand in  de ta i l  every th ing  tha t  happened on each o f  

the  two meet ings  tha t  you dea l  w i th  in  th is  s ta tement ,  so  I  

am go ing  to  be  tak ing  you th rough those events  s tep  by  

s tep .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Okay.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And o f  cou rse ,  Mr  Mkwanaz i  I  know 

th is  was a  long t ime ago,  the  s ta tements  s ta r ts  in  January  

2011,  bu t  jus t  i f  you  cou ld  g ive  us  as  much deta i l  as  you 20 

can reca l l  we wou ld  apprec ia te  tha t .   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  maybe le t  us  say Mr  Mkwanaz i  d id  

you ever  meet  w i th  the  Guptas?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes I  have Cha i rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  do  you remember  how many t imes 

you met  w i th  them? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Ja ,  I  have Cha i rman,  I  met  them tw ice  

around tha t  t ime when they were  ta lk ing  me go ing  to  the i r  

house,  then when  we say Guptas  i t  i s  an  in te res t ing  fami ly,  

yes  I  met  them tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  in te res t ing  fami ly.  

MR MK WANAZI :    Bu t  then I  met  them a t  some o f  the i r  

events ,  i f  I  can  ca l l  them l i ke  a t  the  TNA breakfas ts ,  I  met  

the i r  employees,  no t  necessar i l y  the  Gupta  Fami ly.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  le t ’s  ta lk  about  the  t imes  

when you met  them in  the i r  house,  in  the i r  res idence .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Te l l  us about the f i rst  v is i t  to thei r  house,  

i f  you vis i ted thei r  house,  te l l  us how i t  came about and give 

me as much informat ion about what you discussed with them 

as possible.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  I  go t  a  ca l l  in  January  2011  f rom a  

Mr  Tony Gupta  who ind ica ted  to  me tha t  he  had got  my ce l l  

phone number  f rom Min i s te r  G igaba and requested to  see 20 

me.   I  agreed to  see h im o r  –  and then they gave me 

deta i l s  o f  where  they s tayed and I  –  we ag reed on a  da te ,  I  

don ’ t  reca l l  the  da te  exact ly  and  I  went  to  v is i t  them a t  

the i r  house somewhere  in  Saxonwold  i f  I  reca l l ,  and yes on  

ar r i va l  a t  tha t  ga te  we met  the  secur i t y,  then I  come 
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th rough the  ga te  and  then I  d r ive  t h rough someth ing  l i ke  a  

dr ive  th rough where  I  then s top  the  car,  to ld  to  s top  the  car  

in  f ron t  o f  an  en t rance,  ge t  ou t  o f  t he  ca r,  then wa lk  up  the  

s ta i rs  because the  pro toco l  there  seeming ly  was you dr i ve  

your  car  in ,  then  they dr i ve  the  car  to  where  they  park  i t .    

You don ’ t  know where  exact ly  they  park  i t .  

 So  then I  go t  in to  the  house and there  was anothe r  

p ro toco l ,  I  reca l l  I  th ink  I  had to  take  o f f  my shoes and then 

went  to  th is  venue where th is  meet ing was going to  be held.   

And in  that  room,  I  then got  in t roduced to the people I  was 10 

going to  meet .   One of  them was Tony Gupta and the other  

was Duduzane Zuma.   Upon meet ing them we had what  I  

would ca l l  genera l  d iscussions or  p leasant r ies.   They 

in t roduced themselves to ld  me that  they were involved in 

min ing,  computers.   They employed wel l  over  10 000 people  

in  the count ry in  terms of  whatever  they were doing  and of  

course I  had rec ip rocate I  to ld  them that  no I  am an 

ent repreneur and at  that  t ime I  was work ing on a pro ject  to  

t ry  and do someth ing in  KZN which was an ambi t ious pro ject  

o f  proper ty  development  and there fore we shared that  and 20 

then we came to the main purpose of  the d iscussion which 

was – they made me aware that  they are f r iends of  

President  Zuma which is  f ine and then they made me aware  

that  they are aware that  Transnet  has a market ing budget  of  

R1 b i l l i on.   I  am not  sure where they got  that  f rom and they 
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therefore wanted to  be a l located 30 – 50% of  that  market ing  

budget .   And of  course,  I  to ld  them that  Transnet  has got  a  

method of  procur ing anyth ing through a procurement  

manual .   They issue RFI ’s ,  RFQ’s  and RFP’s – request  for  

proposals etcetera before they take decis ions on th ings l ike 

those as a mat ter  o f  pr inc ip le .   But  a lso,  me as an 

ind iv idual  even though I  was seeing them at  that  t ime you 

need to understand I  might  have been act ing GCE but  I  d id  

not  behave l ike  an act ing GCE I  behaved l ike  a non-

execut ive Chai rman.   So I  made them aware that  ho ld i t  you 10 

are actual l y  ta lk ing to  the wrong person.   Because I  am 

non-execut ive chai rman.   People  who get  involved in  

procurement  mat ters a re execut ives and in  tha t  case 

whatever  the i r  levels are but  i t  i s  execut ives in  the  var ious 

areas of  the organisat ion.   And of  course they then went  

about  te l l ing me how c lose they are to  the President .   They 

– they meet  h im once a week.   He comes to the i r  socia l  

funct ions and yes a lso as he comes to the i r  socia l  funct ion 

you could see that  these people are deep f r iends wi th  the  

President .   They even shared tha t  a t  v i r tua l l y  a  week he 20 

v is i ts  the i r  house etcetera,  e tcetera.   And therefore,  in  

terms of  the – they enter ta in ing tha t  they do they c la im that  

occasional ly  the President  s ings for  them Umshin i  Wami,  

Umshin i  Wami.   Natura l l y  whatever  they were saying I  –  wel l  

d id  not  go down wel l  wi th  me.   I  fe l t  they were abusing the i r  
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f r iendship wi th  the President  and – but  I  d id  ask Duduzane 

to conf i rm i f  these people are actual ly  f r iends of  your  fa ther  

and he d id conf i rm.   And that  in  a nutshel l  would be  how we 

met  but  i t  d id  not  – the meet ing d id not  end on a good note 

because they – they were  too boisterous as i f  they cont ro l  a  

lo t  o f  th ings that  I  knew they were ly ing about  ja .   So yes 

that  was my f i rs t  meet ing wi th  them on that  f i rs t  occasion.   

Then post  that  meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe . .  

MR MKWANAZI:   Because the – le t  me pause.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay ja maybe let  us deal  wi th that  f i rst  

meet ing and f in ish before we move to the next  meet ing.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Armstrong.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you Chai r.   So just  a few detai ls I  

would l ike you just  or ientate us in t imes.   So th is is January 

2011 which means you have just  been appointed as a Non-

Execut ive Chai r  you are act ing Group Chief  Execut ive and 

this is just  af ter that  and you arr ive at  – f i rst  of  a l l  you get  a 

phone cal l .   I  just  want to  conf i rm.  Do you recal l  exact ly  20 

what Mr Tony Gupta sa id to you in that  cal l?  

MR MKWANAZI:   Ja he conf i rmed that  you are Mr Mkwanazi  

etcetera,  etcetera.   I  said ja.   And he said we have been 

given your number by Mr Mahlusi  Gigaba and we would l ike 

to meet you.   Then I  said okay f ine I  can meet you.   I t  is not  
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a big issue.   Ja.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Had you heard of  Mr Gupta before this  

phone cal l?  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes I  had read about  them in terms some 

of  their  involvement wi th the some of  the b lack business 

people in the country around that  t ime.  Yes I  had read about  

them.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   So why did you … 

MR MKWANAZI:   But  I  d id not  know which one in terms of  –  

i t  was just  l ike the Gupta fami ly  who deal  wi th  var ious people 10 

at  the t ime. Some big names in the BEE space i f  I  can use 

the word.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   And why did you agree to 

at tend this  meet ing?  I  mean for so – there are summoning 

you to – to thei r  home and is – was that  normal?  Why did 

you feel  that  you should at tend that  meet ing? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Do not  forget  I  fe l t  I  should at tend this  

meet ing because you cannot quote my Minister and then I  do 

not  respond in a part icular way.   So yes I  fe l t  I  should at tend 

that  meet ing because somehow, I  a l ready knew that  these 20 

are important  people.   I  read about some of  the investments 

that  they had done in the count ry.   So yes I  fe l t  I  had to meet 

them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Before you proceed Ms Armstrong.   You 

said that  Mr Gupta – Tony Gupta said he got  your  cel l  phone 
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number f rom… 

MR MKWANAZI:   My detai ls.  

CHAIRPERSON:   From your – your detai ls f rom Minister 

Gigaba, is that  r ight? 

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is i t  t rue that  at  that  t ime Minister  Gigaba 

was Minister of  Publ ic Enterpr ises? 

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Under which Transnet fe l l?   Publ ic  

Enterpr ises.  10 

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes Chai r.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And Transnet fe l l  under Publ ic  Enterpr ises 

Department,  is that  r ight? 

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct  Chai r.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Now had you g iven Mr Gigaba your 

cel l  phone number before? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Tony Gupta.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Mr Chai rman I  had.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You had given i t  to him.  20 

MR MKWANAZI:   Because I  had met Mr Gigaba around 

October of  that  year.   I  had known Mr Gigaba whi le he was in 

the ANC Youth League.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   So yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   You had given him your number.  

MR MKWANAZI:   He has got  my numbers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   That  – my numbers for – yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay al r ight .  And you were speaking 

to Mr Tony Gupta as far as you know for the f i rst  t ime when 

he cal led you on this occasion or you had had some 

interact ions wi th h im before? 

MR MKWANAZI:   No I  had never spoken to him before.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Before.   Okay thank you.  10 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Armstrong.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And I  just  want to ta lk a bi t  about  what  

the house in Saxonwold looked l ike to you.   So f rom the 

outside when you approached i t  do you have any memory of  

what i t  looked l ike to you? 

MR MKWANAZI:   A l l  I  recal l  I  th ink i t  was a whi te painted 

house or l ight  grey.   I t  had big gates wi th very high pi l lars on 

both sides and I  th ink i t  had a guard house as wel l  

somewhere in there.   And natura l ly  I  only saw a por t ion of  20 

the house maybe 5% of  the house.   I  d id  not  see the rest  of  

i t  because al l  I  saw was how to get  in,  dr ive to the entrance 

that  is basica l ly i t .   In the house and then into the meet ing 

room.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   And Mr Mkwanazi  when you 
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– you got  out  the car and you handed over your keys to the 

valet  were there any other securi ty protocols that  took 

place? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Not  too many but  al l  I  can indicate i t  

looked l ike a highly guarded home.  Because even as you 

entered there was maybe two secur i ty at  the gate – two 

securi ty personnel .   And of  course,  you entered but  what was 

interest ing about just  a st range observat ion I  do not  th ink I  

saw a black securi ty guard and I  do not  th ink I  saw a black 

worker ins ide who gave tea or th ings l ike those.   So yes that  10 

is how I  remember the house.   And then I  went inside and 

went into that  board room where we were offered Coke Cola 

to dr ink etcetera.   Ja but  that  is i t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.    And Mr Mkwanazi  did  you 

keep your cel l  phone on you at  al l  t imes? 

MR MKWANAZI:   My cel l  phone was on me at  al l  t imes.   

They did not  demand i t  or something l ike that  ja.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   And when you walked into 

the meet ing room – so – could you just  explain.   You get  to  

the entrance of  the house and then how do you – how does i t  20 

look when you walk in the door? 

MR MKWANAZI:   That  was how many years ago.   Chai r  I  am 

not  sure now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   About ten years ago.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Frankly… 



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 168 of 255 
 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed 10 years.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

MR MKWANAZI:   You are asking me a di ff icul t  quest ion.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   No indeed.  

MR MKWANAZI:   The next  th ing you wi l l  ask me was there a 

port rai t ,  what  was the colour of  the wal l?  How many corners 

were there when you turned r ight  or turned lef t?  I  do not  

recal l .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    10 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed Mr Mkwanazi .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us ask you another quest ion.   At  th is 

meet ing apart  f rom Mr Tony Gupta and Mr Duduzane Zuma 

and yoursel f  was there anybody else? 

MR MKWANAZI:   No there was nobody and i t  was just  the 

three of  us.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay a lr ight .   You have already told 

me up to a certa in  point  that  you exchanged pleasant r ies.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or – general  d iscussion but  then Mr Tony 20 

Gupta then raised the issue of  –  or said that  they were 

aware of  Transnet ’s market ing budget,  is that  correct? 

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  R1 bi l l ion.   That  is what they said,  is  

that  r ight? 



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 169 of 255 
 

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes that  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was i t  factual ly correct  that  that  was the 

market ing bi l l ion – market ing budget of  Transnet at  the t ime? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chair  – I  d id not  know then but  that  was so 

incorrect  and false.   Why I  would know because at  some 

stage I  was on the South Af r ican Airways board and the 

ent i ty wi thin Transnet at  the t ime that  spent  a lot  of  money 

on market ing was actual ly SAA.  And in 2010 or  2011 SAA 

was out  of  Transnet  by that  t ime so this f igure of  R1 bi l l ion 

was a thumb suck.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh that  is qui te  interest ing because with  

regard to GCIS I  heard evidence last  year I  th ink i t  was or i t  

might  have been towards the end of  2018 that  f rom Mr 

Themba Maseko who was Chief  Execut ive Off icer  of  GCIS at  

a certain stage that  when he met wi th Ajay Gupta in 

Saxonwold in 2010 Ajay Gupta told  him exact ly the correct  

amount budget that  his department  namely GCIS had and he 

was surpr ised at  that .   But  I  th ink you are saying that  certain  

what Tony Gupta sa id was not  the correct  budget for 

Transnet? 20 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chairman i t  would not  have been even 

though I  – at  that  t ime I  had not  even checked what amount 

the budget was.   But  my knowledge of  that  ent i ty was deep 

enough to know that  th is f igure of  R1 bi l l ion is just  a thumb 

suck.   



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 170 of 255 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes.   Now..  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Sorry Chai r  just  on that  issue.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   May I  just  d i rect  Mr Mkwanazi  to an 

aff idavi t  that  we have procured at  page 37 of  the bundle and 

that  is f rom Mr Livhumhuwami Makhode.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry page 37? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   34.  

CHAIRPERSON:   34? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   That  is correct .  34.  10 

MR MKWANAZI:   Is that  MM? 

CHAIRPERSON:   MM34.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   MM34 of  that  same bundle.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You wi l l  f ind that  most  of  the t ime Mr 

Mkwanazi  we wi l l  not  ment ion MM we wi l l  just  say 34 but  we 

wi l l  be meaning MM34.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   I  am on that  page yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  20 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   And Chai r  th is is an 

aff idavi t  that  does not  seem to be content ious but  we seek i t  

to be provisional ly  admit ted.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes this would be Exhibi t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Th is is Exhibi t  MM7E.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   The aff idavi t  o f  L ivhumhuwami Tommy 

Makhode, L- i -v-h-u-m-h-u-w-a-m-i  Tommy Makhode, M-a-k-h-

o-d-e which appears at  page 34 wi l l  be admit ted and marked 

as Exhibi t  MM20 – no.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   MM7 

CHAIRPERSON:   MM7 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   E.  

CHAIRPERSON:   E.   Okay thank you.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And Mr Mkwanazi  i f  you turn to  the next  

page the budgets are set  out  there for Transnet ’s  market ing 

and advert is ing and you wi l l  see that  in 2010 the total  

market ing budget was R27 005 399.00 and in 2011 the total  

spend market ing budget was R95 530 394.00.   So you were 

correct  to be scept ical  about  those f igures.   They are off  by 

a factor of  at  least  10 in 2011 and by more than that  for 

2010.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MKWANAZI:   Thank you for that  c lar i f icat ion.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ms Armstrong.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On that  f i rst  meet ing do you st i l l  have 

quest ions? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you Chai r.   Mr Mkwanazi  I  just  
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want  to ask i f  when you entered the room and Mr Duduzane 

Zuma and Mr Gupta were there did they int roduce 

themselves and did you know who they were before you 

entered that  room from Mr Zuma in part icular as you 

indicated you had not  heard f rom Mr Gupta before? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Duduzane I  knew the name but  we had 

never met.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Okay thank you.  

MR MKWANAZI:   So yes I  met him and Tony Gupta I  heard 

the names – even r ight  now they – that  two of  them I  am not  10 

sure what thei r  names are but  one is l ight  complexion,  the 

other one is a l i t t le bi t  darker.   So yes I  met  Tony Gupta then 

and that  is i t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.  

MR MKWANAZI:   And of  course,  I  d id meet  Duduzane again 

at  a di fferent  second meet ing.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   And did they – when they 

were – when Mr Gupta was speaking about his relat ionship 

to President  Zuma d id,  he ment ion any other relat ionship to  

members of  Parl iament or Cabinet ,  anything else about his  20 

inf luence? 

MR MKWANAZI:   They did t ry to – to indicate that  they are 

f r iends wi th cabinet  Ministers and members of  Par l iament  

etcetera,  etcetera and ja but  in my view they were l ike t ry ing 

to port ray a f igure of ,  we are these important  people that  we 
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are f r iends wi th your cabinet  Ministers.   I t  d id not  int imidate 

me or anything.   Even when they said they are f r iends wi th 

the President  I  was not  at  al l  int imidated.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And when you ment ioned your business 

development in KZN did you – d id they indicate that  they 

were interested at  al l  in invest ing in  that  business? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Sort  of  – they said they would l ike to look 

into i t  but  not  that  they would invest .   Ja they – he sa id they 

would l ike to know more about i t  but  that  whole thing did not  

get  off  the ground whatever I  was t ry ing to do in KZN.  10 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And when they asked you about the 

market ing budget  of  Transnet  and they asked to have – I  

th ink you said 30 – 50% al located to the New Age 

Newspaper.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes to them ja.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Was this – what was the tone this?  

Was this a request?  Something they expected?  How did you 

interpret  i t?  

MR MKWANAZI:   Do not  forget  in my interpretat ion of  thei r  

approach they had no clue about how business works – zero 20 

clue.   They behaved as i f  Transnet  is l ike a spaza shop who 

when somebody comes and say give me 30% of  th is we just  

give.   So they had no clue about business protocols,  how to 

run businesses.   So which is why then even when they came 

with that  f igure of  R1 bi l l ion they asked for th is 30 – 50% I  
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could see that  for  some reason these people have never  

been in business and now I  must  educate them that  th is is 

how an organisat ion l ike Transnet procures for serv ices 

whatever serv ices they are.   And of  course,  I  d id indicate to  

them that  we – Transnet  procures in a part icu lar way 

fol lowing a – a procurement manual .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And did you suggest  dur ing the course 

of  the meet ing or at  the end that  you wanted to have a 

second meet ing? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes I  d id  because f rom where I  sat  I  fe l t  10 

that  the loop is not  properly closed.   I  personal ly wanted that  

somebody f rom within the Department be present  to hear  

what I  cal l  these dreamers talk ing about R1 bi l l ion market ing 

budget and asking for 30 – 50% of  that .   So I  d id say I  would 

l ike to have a second meet ing wi th you guys.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Okay thank you Mr Mkwanazi .   So af ter 

that  meet ing so you want… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Before… 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Yes certain ly Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Before we move onto the next  meet ing you 20 

– did you say that  they said that  Mr Zuma who was President  

at  the t ime used to vis i t  thei r  house once a week? 

MR MKWANAZI:   A lmost  weekly yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A lmost  weekly? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Ja.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   That  is what they said.  

MR MKWANAZI:   They said that  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Now in terms of  the discussion there 

you have been using they I  th ink most  of  the t ime.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Oh i t  is one guy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was i t  both of  them.  

MR MKWANAZI:   I t  is Tony.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was i t  both of  them speaking namely to … 

MR MKWANAZI:   No,  no.   Duduzane never ut tered a word.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He never ut tered a word? 10 

MR MKWANAZI:   Never ut tered a word.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t  was Tony Gupta who was ta lk ing? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Tony Gupta was talk ing.   At  some stage I  

had to ask Duduzane are these people tel l ing the t ruth about  

their  relat ionship wi th your father.   That  is the only t ime he 

opened h is mouth and he conf i rmed i t  that  they are f r iends 

wi th the President .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Wel l  that  is interest ing that  you say 

that  because I  have had qui te a few – I  have heard evidence 

f rom qui te a few people who said they had been to meet ings 20 

wi th the Tony – Mr Tony Gupta and Mr Duduzane Zuma at  the 

Gupta residence and most  i f  not  al l  of  whom have said 

dur ing the discussions that  they had at  such meet ings Mr 

Duduzane Zuma was si lent  and did not  say much.  One of  

such wi tnesses was Mr Jonas who said he had a meet ing 
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wi th Duduzane Zuma and of  course in his case there was 

also Mr Hlongwane and on his vers ion that  is Mr Jonas’ 

vers ion there was also a Gupta brother there.   He could not  

say which one but  i t  would appear that  i f  there was – wel l  

actual ly I  th ink Mr Duduzane Zuma and Mr Hlongwane said 

that  on the occasion when they met  wi th  Mr Jonas Tony 

Gupta was the only Gupta brother who was around.  So Mr 

Jonas said dur ing his meet ing wi th them Mr Duduzane Zuma 

did not  say much.   Mr Dukwana a former MEC f rom the Free 

State also gave evidence of  a meet ing which he said he had 10 

at  the Gupta residence wi th Mr Tony Gupta and Mr Duduzane 

Zuma.  He too sa id Mr Duduzane Zuma did not  say much in  

that  meet ing.   There must  – I  th ink there is another  th i rd 

person maybe even fourth who have given evidence along 

the same l ines a lso that  at  these meet ings Mr Duduzane 

Zuma would be very quiet  and Mr Tony Gupta would be the 

one doing the ta lk ing.   So you are g iving evidence to the 

same effect  about  Mr Duduzane Zuma.  Is that  r ight? 

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is  correct  Chai r.   He was abnormal ly 

si lent .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Now one of  the things that  you have 

said and you must just  conf i rm in case I  d id not  understand.   

Did you say that  they and I  assume now I  must  say Mr Tony 

Gupta because you say Mr Duduzane Zuma was quiet  most  

of  the t ime. 
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MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   D id you say Mr Tony Gupta sa id that  

somet imes when Mr Zuma would be in thei r  house they 

would ask him to sing Umshini  Wami for them, is that  what 

you say he said? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes I  said so that  when I  say in their  

house,  at  their  funct ions.   I  do not  know what funct ions that  

there is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh at  their  funct ions ja.   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   I t  is l ike maybe they entertain a lot ,  cal l  10 

people to a hal l  or  gather ings,  yes he did.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay thank you.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We can move then to the second meet ing.   

Tel l  me about the second meet ing that  you had wi th them? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Thank you Chai r.   Natural ly as I  indicated 

post  th is meet ing when I  got  the request  then to that  second 

meet ing,  I  d id br ief  Advocate – the good advocate Mhlangu 

that  Mahlangu look I  have been – I  have a f i rst  meet ing wi th  

Tony and I  want you to be present  because… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  te l l  us who? 

MR MKWANAZI:   I  want  you to – I  want to have a wi tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  te l l  us who Advocate Mahlangu was? 

MR MKWANAZI:   He was the advisor to Minister Gigaba.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight  and before you proceed just  
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te l l  us once again – tel l  me once again how the second 

meet ing came about?  I  seemed to hear ear l ier  on that  you 

were saying you asked for the second – another meet ing?  

So just  te l l  me how i t  came about.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes the f i rst  meet ing Chai r  d id not  go very 

wel l  because somehow,  I  got  angry when – in my 

interpretat ion they were beginning to denigrate my 

President .   So I  got  very agi tated.   So the f i rst  meet ing d id 

not  go very wel l .   Then they suggested that  we meet again 

and I  agreed because in my mind then I  knew that  I  wanted 10 

to br ing a wi tness to see these types of  business people.   So 

I  d id br ief  Advocate Mahlangu that  there is  a meet ing I  want  

you to come to i t  to be a wi tness at  – so that  you see how 

some people behave under the guise of  being sent  by – or  

being – having got  my phone numbers f rom Minister Gigaba.   

So yes he agreed to jo in me at  that  part icular date.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Sorry Mr Mkwanazi  you say in your  

statement I  was contacted for a second meet ing.   So did 

somebody ca l l  you just  to… 

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes they did.   They did and I  said I  am 20 

coming and I  am going to br ing a wi tness wi th.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And who was that  that  cal led you? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Tony Gupta.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   Thank you Chai r.   So you 

took the Min ister ’s specia l  advisor wi th you.    
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MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Yes.   Why did you not  speak to Minister  

– former Minister Gigaba about th is  di rect ly? 

MR MKWANAZI:   You know maybe I  am a strange individual .   

I  do not  elevate what I  can cal l  nonsensical  stor ies to  the 

Minister.   To me these people were talk ing nonsensical  

stor ies which is why I  just  needed somebody.   I t  could have 

been another person as long as maybe that  somebody was at  

Publ ic Enterpr ises.   I f  in case i t  is t rue that  the Minister gave 

these people my number so that  is why then I  asked 10 

Mahlangu – Advocate Mahlangu to accompany me.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And then at  the second meet ing did you 

dr ive together wi th Mr Mahlangu? 

MR MKWANAZI:   No,  no.   We – no we did not  dr ive together.   

I  used my car and most probably used his as wel l .   Because 

we would not  have come from the same di rect ion.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   So did he do – thank you.   Did he jo in  

you at  the beginning of  the meet ing? 

MR MKWANAZI:   I  am not  sure i f  I  found him there or i f  he 

found me there but  we were both at  that  meet ing at  around 20 

about that  t ime that  was set  for the meet ing.   And then we – 

ja.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Was that  at tended again by the same 

people or di fferent  people? 

MR MKWANAZI:   No,  no Tony Gupta and Duduzane Zuma.  
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ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   And – so what was the 

content  of  th is meet ing?  What did you discuss? 

MR MKWANAZI:   No i t  is a fo l low up and I  explained why 

Advocate was there so that  in f ront  of  an off ic ia l  of  the 

Department who works for the Minister I  am expla ining to  

you guys as whatever the company TNA or Sahara whatever  

they are cal led that  th is is how Transnet procures.   They did 

repeat  their  request  that  they are request ing this 30 – 50% 

of  the market ing.  

BREAK IN RECORDING – WITNESS INAUDIBLE 10 

MR MKWANAZI:   [ Ind ist inct ]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Sorry,  Mr Mkhwanazi .   You say in our  

statement “ I  was contacted for a second meet ing”.   So did 

somebody ca l l  you just  to conf i rm that? 

MR MKWANAZI:   [ Ind ist inct ]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And who was that  who cal led you? 

MR MKWANAZI:   [ Ind ist inct ]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   Thank you,  Chai r.   So you 

took the minister ’s special  advisor  wi th you.   Why did you 

not  . . . [ intervenes]   20 

MR MKWANAZI:   [ Ind ist inct ]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Yes.   Why did you not  speak to 

minister. . .  former Minister Gigaba about th is di rect ly? 

MR MKWANAZI:   [ Ind ist inct ]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And then at  the second meet ing,  did 
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you dr ive together  wi th Mr Mahlangu? 

MR MKWANAZI:   No,  no.   [ Indist inct ]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   So did he . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MKWANAZI:   [ Ind ist inct ]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   Did he jo in you at  the 

beginning of  the meet ing? 

MR MKWANAZI:   I  am not  sure . . . [ indist inct ]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And with. . . [ intervenes]   

MR MKWANAZI:   [ Ind ist inct ]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Was that  at tended again by the same 10 

people or di fferent  people? 

MR MKWANAZI:   No,  no,  no.  [ Indist inct ]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   And so what was the 

contents of  th is meet ing?  What did you discuss? 

MR MKWANAZI:   [ Ind ist inct ]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Did you ment ion again about the 

re lat ionship wi th President  Zuma? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Not  in so much detai l  but  he d id conf i rm 

that ,  yes.  [ Indist inct ]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And what was Mr Mahlangu’s react ion 20 

to this? 

MR MKWANAZI:   [ Ind ist inct ]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   So once again,  Mr Mkhwanazi ,  you are 

saying that  Mr Duduzane Zuma remained si lent  throughout  

the meet ing? 
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MR MKWANAZI:   [ Ind ist inct ]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   And. . .  and . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   When you say no comment,  you mean 

there was no comment f rom him?  You are not  saying you are 

not  comment ing to the quest ion? [ laughs]   

MR MKWANAZI:   [ laughs]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   [ laughs]   No,  Chai r.  

MR MKWANAZI:   [ laughs]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   [ laughs]  You say there was no comment 

f rom him during the meet ing? 

MR MKWANAZI:   [ Ind ist inct ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.   Alr ight .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was the purpose of  the second meet ing 

wel l -know to both s ides,  namely yoursel f  and Tony and Mr 

Duduzane Zuma?  Did you have a common purpose as to 

what the purpose of  the. . .   

 Did you have a common understanding as to what the 20 

purpose of  the meet ing was?  Or is the posi t ion that  

arrangements were made to meet and then we met and we 

talked what we discussed? 

MR MKWANAZI:   [ Ind ist inct ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay,  okay.  
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ADV ARMSTRONG:   And. . .  Thank you,  Chai r.   And Mr 

Mkhwanazi ,  what was your response again to the request? 

MR MKWANAZI:   No,  same response that  al l  that ,  now i t  is 

four of  us.   I t  is mysel f ,  i t  is Advocate Mashala,  Duduzane 

and Tony.   That  th is is how.. .  of  course,  I  d id not  know the 

market ing budget  of  Transnet net  or even in the f i rst  

meet ing.  

 I  d id not  know because I  am only here at  Transnet 

maybe two months.   Then I  have got  to know a l l  these 

budgets,  et  cetera,  et  cetera.   I t  is impract ical .  10 

 So I  st i l l  made them aware that  f rankly I  do not  know 

how b ig that  budget is.   A lso,  the process is you fol low a 

RFP, RFI or RFQ through execut ives in the company.   Not  

through a non-execut ive chai rman.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And what was thei r  react ion to th is?  

What was Mr Gupta’s react ion to th is? 

MR MKWANAZI:   That  they accepted my explanat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In the f i rst  meet ing,  how did Mr Tony Gupta 

take your response to thei r  request? 

MR MKWANAZI:   I  do not  th ink they took i t  wel l  in the f i rst  20 

meet ing.   That  is  why then the suggest ion was we need to 

meet again.   But  even mysel f ,  thei r  approach,  I  d id not  take 

i t  wel l  because they were waving the f lag of  being f r iends of  

the president  rather than talk ing what they want to ta lk and I  

was terr ib le annoyed, ja.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  Okay.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you,  Chairman.  Out of  th is 

meet ing,  did you again speak to the min ister about  what had 

meet ing at  th is meet ing? 

MR MKWANAZI:   No,  [ laughs]  I  d id  not .   As I  indicate,  I  am 

not  a person who speak to the min ister  every week or  every 

month.   I  do not  do that .   I  have an agenda and a meet ing 

scheduled i f  I  need to speak to the minister.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So the outcome of  the second meet ing was 

simply that ,  at  least  to you,  i t  appeared that  they accepted 10 

namely Tony to. . .  Tony Gupta and Mr Duduzane Zuma, they 

accepted that  you could not  be of  assistance to them?  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes,  sort  of .   But  at  least  I  achieved 

something as wel l  in terms of  the fact  that  I  now brought 

somebody who is close to government,  who has explained to 

these gent lemen that  that  is not  how state-owned ent i t ies 

operate.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   D id Mr Siyabonga Mhlango.. .  I t  was 

Siyabonga Mhlango?  Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes,  yes.   I t  is so,  ja.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Did he conf i rm to them that  how Transnet 

procures goods or services,  was exact ly the way you had 

stated? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chai rman, I  do not  th ink you would have 

conf i rmed anything because I  doubt  i f  he would have known 
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h imsel f  to.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.   Okay.    

MR MKWANAZI:   In terms of  how th ings are done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

MR MKWANAZI:   Because he is an outsider.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.    

MR MKWANAZI:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  he was there.   He observed.   He 

wi tnesses what was discussed.  

MR MKWANAZI:   He did observe,  yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   He did not  say much himsel f .   And the 

meet ing ended.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Ja.   Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   And Mr Mkhwanazi ,  d id you 

note any change in your relat ionship wi th Minister  Gigaba 

af ter th is meet ing? 

MR MKWANAZI:   No,  there was no change because the 

things that  we do. . .  there are certa in meet ings that  we hold,  

almost  l ike quarter ly meet ings wi th him or once in six  months 20 

meet ing wi th him under certain condi t ions.   Those meet ings 

went ahead.  I  d id  not  see any change whatsoever in him. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you say ear l ier on before you became 

a non-execut ive chairman of  the Transnet  Board,  you had 

known Minister Gigaba for qui te  some t ime and you had 
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known him qui te wel l?  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you knew him qui te wel l?  Reasonably 

wel l?  

MR MKWANAZI:   Maybe not  qui te wel l  Chai r  but  I  knew him, 

yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you knew him?  Ja,  okay.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you,  Chai r.   And just  before I  

move to another page.   Mr Mkhwanazi ,  that  second meet ing,  

how long af ter the f i rst  meet ing was i t?  10 

MR MKWANAZI:   Maybe two weeks.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   Then Mr Mkhwanazi ,  I  just  

want to di rect  you to a news art ic le and that  is on page 

MM37.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Okay.   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Chai r,  th is MM37, I  would l ike to label  

EXHIBIT MM7F.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  I t  is not  just  label l ing.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   I  would l ike to enter i t  into the record.  

[ laughs]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You must ask that  i t  be admit ted 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Admit ted as an exhibi t  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .  as an exhib i t  MM7.. .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   MM7F.  Thank you,  Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   EXHIBIT MM7.. .  What is the let ter? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   F,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   F for fool? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   That  is indeed so.  [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.   The Business Day art ic le at  

page 37 wi l l  be admit ted as EXHIBIT MM7F.  

ARTICLE IN BUSINESS DAY NEWSPAPER IS HANDED UP 

AND MARKED AS EXHIBIT MM7F 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   So Mr Mkhwanazi ,  th is is dated the 

9t h of  June 2011 in the Business Day and the headl ine is. . .  

and i t  is wri t ten by Peter Bruce.   The headl ine is “Chairman 

of  Transnet ,  Eskom and Denel  to go.”   Are you fami l iar wi th  

th is art ic le?  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes,  I  am.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Did you read i t  when i t  came out  in the 

Business Day? 20 

MR MKWANAZI:   [ laughs]  To read i t  is an understatement.   I t  

was a shocker.    

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Okay.  [ laughs]   

MR MKWANAZI:   Ja,  i t  is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   [ laughs]   Wel l ,  before we proceed.  Ms 
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Armstrong,  I  cannot read a word.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Oh,  okay.   Wel l ,  Chair  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   In th is. . .  in th is. . .  on this page.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Okay.   I  th ink Chai r,  then we wi l l  have 

this replaced I  th ink in the record but  I  have. . .  I  can read out 

the relevant  port ions on the record i f  that  might  be helpful  

now? 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is f ine.  Do that  but  see i f  i t  is  

possible later on to . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   To be replaced.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .get  a  clear ly legible art ic le  in  and obta in 

that  . . . [ intervenes]    

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed, Chai r.   Indeed.  We wi l l  do that  

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.   So I  wi l l  re ly on you to tel l  me 

what the re levant  parts says.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   [ laughs]  Thank you,  Chai r.   So Mr 

Mkhwanazi ,  i t  star ts by saying:  

“The chai rmen of  three of  South Af r ica’s most  

. . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.   Before you do that .   Just  

ident i fy  the art ic le.   What date,  Business Day?  What date 

and so on? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   So that  is  the 9t h of  June 2011 in  

Business Day.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Al r ight .   Cont inue.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And. . .  thank you,  Chai r.   And i t  states in  

the f i rst  paragraph:  

“The chai rmen of  three of  South Af r ica’s most  

powerful  state-owned companies,  Transnet ,  Eskom 

and Denel ,  are to be removed soon in a dramat ic  

show of  force by Publ ic Enterpr ises Minister Malusi  

Gigaba.. . :  

 Then i t  says:  

“The changes were approved at  a Cabinet  meet ing in  10 

Cape Town yesterday. . . ”  

 So that  would be on the 8t h of  June 2011.   

“Business Day understands that  Transnet ’s Chai rman,  

Maf ika Mkhwanazi  wi l l  be invi ted to move to the 

Board of  Eskom as an ordinary member. . . ”  

 And then I  am just  sk ipping to the last  paragraph in the 

art ic le on that  page because the rest  is about  the other 

SOE’s.    

 We turn to the next  page in MM37(1),  where the art ic le 

is f inal ised.   I t  is just  the end of  i t  and i t  reads:  20 

“ I t  is understood,  nevertheless,  that  Mr Gigaba did 

not  have i t  a l l  h is own way at  the Cabinet  meet ing 

yesterday.    

His proposal  to replace Mr Mkhwanazi  at  Transnet  

wi th Iqbal  “Raf iq”  Sharma was shot  down and a new 
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candidate wi l l  have to be found. . . ”  

 Do you recal l  th is art ic le?  Sorry,  th is conclusion and 

your react ion to th is when you read this? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes,  I  do recal l  that  art ic le and the 

conclusion.   And also,  my understanding was that  somehow 

some of  the cabinet  members were not  pr ivy to that  plan.   

And they only read about i t  on the day of  that  meet ing 

whatever Cabinet  meet ing i t  was.   So they fe l t  that  i t  should 

have been discussed in more detai l ,  some Cabinet  ministers.    

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed.  Because Mr Mkhwanazi ,  how I 10 

understand this is. . .  what  I  understand the art ic le to be 

saying is that  Mr Gigaba recommended your removal  as 

Chair  of  the Board of  Transnet  and that  you would be 

replaced with Mr Sharma but  whi le  he was successful  in the 

Cabinet  meet ing at  removing you,  he was not  successful  in 

replacing you wi th Mr Sharma.  Is that  a lso how you 

understand this ar t ic le? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Hold i t .   I  am not  sure i f  he was successful  

in removing me because I  was not  removed at  Transnet.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   No,  indeed.  I  am saying what the 20 

art ic le says,  not  what in fact  happened.  Sorry,  i f  I  just  can 

remind you.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Ja,  okay.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Armstrong,  did you mean successful  in 
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get t ing the approval  of  Cabinet? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed.  Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   So you want  to repeat  your quest ion 

and repeat i t  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed.  So . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .wi th regard to that .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   So Mr Mkhwanazi ,  my understanding of 

th is art ic le,  not  what happened in real i ty,  that  my 

understanding of  what the Business Day is saying is  that  Mr 

Gigaba at tempted to have you removed and recommended 10 

this to Cabinet  and that  he was successful  in having you 

removed but  not  in having you replaced with Mr Sharma.   

That  is my understanding of  th is art ic le.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  I  am.. .  we may be at  cross-purposes.   I  

th ink Mr Mkhwanazi  is going to st i l l  g ive you the same 

answer.   As I  understand what he is saying.   He is saying,  he 

does not  th ink that  Mr Gigaba succeeded in having him 

removed because he was not  removed.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  what I  thought what you intended to 20 

say is that  the art ic le suggests that  Mr Gigaba succeeded in 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .  in get t ing approval  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   . . .he be removed.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Whether or not  he was actual ly removed is 

another matter.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed Chai r.   So . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Exact ly.   And I  am just  point ing out .   Mr 

Mkhwanazi ,  that  you would have read th is.  

MR MKWANAZI:   I  would have.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   [ laughs]  And would have been.. .  i t  10 

would have been qui te a react ion because,  as you point  out ,  

in real i ty  you were not  removed.  The cabinet  did not  

approve that  recommendat ion.   Is that  correct? 

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe let  us. . .  just  te l l  me what you 

understood the ar t ic le to be saying and what your  react ion 

was? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chai r,  I  understood what the art ic le was 

saying,  part icular ly the headl ine.   Chai rman of  Transnet ,  

Eskom and Denel  to go.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR MKWANAZI:   And natural ly why somehow i t  was a big 

shock.   This has never been discussed with me that  I  would 

leave Transnet.   But  other th ings in var ious meet ings wi th 

the minister and other key ministers,  we had discussed in my 
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presence the quest ion of  SOC Board Chairman s i t t ing in  

var ious state-owned ent i ty boards for certain col laborat ions 

by state-owned ent i t ies.    

 So I  was not  surpr ised that  I  was going to be proposed 

to go Eskom but  what surpr ised me was that  then I  was 

going to be f i red f rom Transnet  and yet  at  a st rategy 

discussion that  we would have had a few months before,  we 

did d iscuss these issues of  Chai rman of  SOC Boards.  

 So that  you said you get  certain col laborat ions owning 

between certain types of  SOC’s.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So pr ior to th is art ic le appearing,  there had 

been d iscussions in  which you had part ic ipated where the 

idea that  chai rpersons of  the boards of  var ious SOE’s could 

have a forum where they could discuss matters of  mutual  

interest .   Is that  correct? 

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct ,  Chai r.   We did have a 

forum l ike that .   And the two key ministers who used to 

at tend was Min ister  Gigaba and Minister Patel  and 20 

occasional ly two other Cabinet  Min isters.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  And these discussions that  you are 

talk ing about where this issue was discussed,  did Minister  

Gigaba at tend some of  those discussions? 

MR MKWANAZI:   He was the chai rman of  those meet ings,  
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Chairman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  those meet ings.   Yes.   So,  but  what was 

new to you when you read this ar t ic le was that  you were 

going to be removed as Chai rperson of  Transnet Board.  

MR MKWANAZI:   That  was new, Chai rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  Okay.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   And. . .  so Mr Mkhwanazi ,  let  

me take you to the cabinet  recommendat ion.   The memo that  10 

was sent  to Cabinet  by Mr Gigaba.  And that  you wi l l  f ind the 

fol lowing page which is page MM38.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You want that  to be admit ted? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed Chai r.   As MM7G. 

MR MKWANAZI:   MM38.  I  have got  that .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you so much.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  wi l l  be the let ter or the memorandum 

dated 25 May 2011, on the let terheads of  the Min ist ry of  

Publ ic Enterpr ises appearing at  page 38 wi l l  be admit ted. . .  i t  20 

is wri t ten “Cabinet  Memorandum Number 4 of  2011” wi l l  be 

admit ted as EXHIBIT MM7G. 

CABINET MEMORANDUM NUMBER 4 OF 2011 IS HANDED 

UP AND MARKED AS EXHIBIT MM7G 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you,  Chai r.   So Mr Mkhwanazi ,  
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paragraph 2.2 indeed does say:  

“Further for Cabinet  to concur wi th the appointment 

of  Mr Iqbal  Sharma as Chairperson,  a non-execut ive 

Di rector of  the Transnet Board. . . ”  

 So that  was the recommendat ion regarding the chair  

posi t ion of  Transnet .   And then in paragraph 3.2 which is  on 

the fol lowing page, page MM39:  

“ In addi t ion,  i t  is recommended that  two non-

execut ive Di rectors of  the Transnet  Board not  be 

reappointed at  the Annual  General  Meet ing of  10 

Transnet to be held on the 24t h of  June,  and in thei r  

p lace two nominees are recommended to be 

considered for appointed to Transnet as non-

execut ive Di rectors.  

Furthermore,  i t  is  recommended that  Mr Iqbal  

Sharma, a current  member of  the Transnet  Board,  be 

appointed as the chai rperson,  a non-execut ive 

Di rector of  the Transnet Board to replace Mr Maf ika 

Mkhwanazi ,  the current  Chai rperson. . . ”  

 So Mr Mkhwanazi ,  th is was indeed the proposal  for  20 

Cabinet .   And Mr Mkhwanazi ,  do you recal l . . .  do you know 

what t ranspired at  that  meet ing,  what the outcome was? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Which meet ing? 

MR MKWANAZI:   [ laughs]  I  have got  no idea.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which meet ing now? 



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 196 of 255 
 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   This Cabinet  meet ing to del iberate on 

these recommendat ions? 

MR MKWANAZI:   [ laughs]  I  have got  no idea.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And the outcome Mr Mkhwanazi  for  

you?  The outcome of  the meet ing? 

MR MKWANAZI:   The outcome? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   No,  the outcome.  I  was not  replaced.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Okay.   So . . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Did Mr Gigaba and you speak about th is  

art ic le af ter i t  had appeared in the Business Day? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chai rman, we d id talk about  the art ic le 

af ter i t  had appeared and his response was somebody had 

leaked something which was work in progress and therefore 

i t  was leaked in a wrong way.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MKWANAZI:   We did discuss i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you ask him whether i t  was t rue that  

he sought Cabinet  approval  for your removal  f rom.. .  as 20 

Chairperson of  the Board of  Transnet?  Or maybe you did not  

put  i t  l ike that  but  in effect ,  d id you ask him to conf i rm 

whether that  is t rue? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chairman, I  d id not  ask him . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Di rect ly? 



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 197 of 255 
 

MR MKWANAZI:   . . .as st raight forward,  as you say.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   But  his response was there was work in  

progress wi thin his department and i t  was leaked to the 

press.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did that  response suggest  that  he was 

saying he had not  as yet  asked the Cabinet  to  approve your  

removal  f rom Transnet?  I  just  want to make sure I  

understand clear ly what he told you or what  your 

understanding was of  what he told you.  10 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chai rman, what he told me is di fferent  to 

what had been submit ted to Cabinet .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   But  I  am not  pr ivy to the Cabinet  debate 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course,  yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   . . .around the . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   . . .why Mr Iqbal  Sharma should become 

chairman.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.   But  based on what he told you,  

was your understanding that  he was saying he had not  as yet  

asked Cabinet  to  approve your removal  f rom.. .  or is that  

something that  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MKWANAZI:   No,  Chairman. [ laughs]  
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CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR MKWANAZI:   No,  Chai r.   Because he had done i t .   I t  is 

just  that  he did not  get  the approval  of  that  resolut ion at  

Cabinet  level .   He had already done i t .   As I  see in terms of  

th is Cabinet  memo.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   No,  I  understand that .   And when you 

answer these quest ions,  feel  f ree to ref lect  properly because 

i t  is  many years ago,  so that  when you answer you are 

comfortable wi th your answer.    

 So leaving out  what we know because we are looking at  10 

these documents now but  bearing in mind what  the art ic le in 

the Business Day had said.  

 When you spoke to him, he did not  say anything to  

suggest  he had not  made the approach to Cabinet  that  the 

Business Day art ic le suggested in terms of  what he told you 

and how you understood what he sa id? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Wel l ,  af ter th is art ic le  had appeared. . .   I  

am not  pr ivy to. . .  i t  is the f i rst  t ime I  am see this document.   

Thank you very much.  This Cabinet  memo.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.  20 

MR MKWANAZI:   I  have never seen i t .   So post  the art ic le,  

because also other board members were now asking me 

quest ions that  we have read that  you have been f i red.   So 

that  is why then I  had to go to him to t ry and f ind out  but  

“Minister,  what is th is art ic le about?”  
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 Then he said no. . .  He did not  sound as i f  he had al ready 

pushed through a Cab memo or something which then might  

have been rejected.  

 He said no,  maybe.. .  i t  goes l ike,  there was work in  

progress on changing boards inside the publ ic enterpr ises 

and that  then something got  leaked,  et  cetera,  et  cetera.  

 But  I  was aware there is a process wi thin publ ic 

enterpr ises to formulate this St rategy-U of  chai rman of  

var ious ent i t ies si t t ings elsewhere to get  certain  

col laborat ion on var ious top ics.   Local  manufactur ing,  10 

export ing,  t ra ining. . .  

 There were a few key st rategy topics that  we wanted to  

t ry and address by this sharing of  board members in that  

part icular forum, ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  thank you.   Ms Armstrong.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you,  Chai r.   So just  to clar i fy.   Mr 

Mkhwanazi ,  but  you were aware in th is t ime in 2011 that  

Minister Gigaba had recommended your removal? 

MR MKWANAZI:   I  was not  aware.   I t  is only when I  read is 

th is art ic le.  20 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Did you at  al l  at t r ibute the at tempts 

to. . .  by Minister Gigaba to recommend to have you removed,  

to be related in any way to your meet ing wi th Tony Gupta 

and Duduzane Zuma? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Not  real ly  but  maybe there could be.   I  do 
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not  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   I  see.  

CHAIRPERSON:   When you read the art ic le and when you 

spoke to Mr Gigaba insofar as in your mind you remained 

with the idea that  i f  he might  or Cabinet  might  be wishing 

you to be removed f rom Transnet ,  d id you think that  the 

reason might  be. . .  the forum that  had been discussed or did  

you think i t  might  be some other reason that  you did know?  

Did you think about why would they want to remove me or 10 

not  real ly? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chai r,  I  do not  know but  the forum where 

these things were discussed. . .  we did not  discuss in that  

detai l  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   . . .because i t  was more high- level  st rategy 

forum . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   . . .of  d iscussing these issues.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   Thank you.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you,  Chai r.   So when you were 

having these discussions wi th Minister Gigaba,  did he 

indicate at  al l  that  Mr Mhlango had re layed anything about 
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your meet ings to him? 

MR MKWANAZI:   No,  we did not  d iscuss that .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And did you speak to anybody else 

about the meet ings wi th Mr Gupta and Mr Duduzane Zuma? 

MR MKWANAZI:   I  would have d iscussed that  wi th some 

board member or  something l ike that  but  in passing.   Not  in 

detai l .   

ADV ARMSTRONG:   And then,  can I  take you to another  

art ic le?  That  is at  page . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   But  maybe before you do so Ms Armstrong.  10 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   As I  understand i t ,  th is Business Day 

art ic le was in June 2011.  Is that  r ight? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So that  was . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  means that  you had been with the 

Transnet Board only for about  six,  seven months.   Is that  

r ight? 

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct  Chai r.   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You had been a member of  var ious boards 

over a long per iod in di fferent  companies by this t ime.  Is 

that  not  so? 

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    And when you have been a  member  o f  a  
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boa rd  o f  a  company fo r  s ix  months  i t  seems to  me tha t  i t  i s  

qu i te  a  shor t  t ime  to  be  removed.  

MR MKWANAZI :    I t  i s  shor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you ab le  to  comment  on  tha t?   I t  is  

shor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Yes,  okay,  thank you.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Then le t  us  move  

to  page MM23 o f  tha t  bund le .    

ADV ARMSTRONG:    So  Cha i r,  aga in  I  ask  tha t  th is  be  

admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  as  MM7C.  10 

MR MKWANAZI :   You sa id  23?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Mr  Mkwanaz i .   

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  I  have got  i t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  th is  document ,  jus t  ident i t y  i t ,  

Ms Armst rong?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    So th is  document  i s  an  ar t i c le  f rom 

the  Mai l  &  Guard ian  en t i t led  “Go ing  o f f  the  ra i l s ”  da ted  4  

March 2011.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  the  ar t i c le  f rom the  Mai l  &  Guard ian  20 

appear ing  a t  page 23 t i t led  “Go ing  o f f  the  Ra i ls ”  w i l l  be  

admi t ted  and marked as  EXHIBIT MM7C.  

MAIL & GARDEN ARTICLE “GOING OFF THE RAILS”  

HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  MM7C 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   And,  Cha i r ,  I  have  
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jus t  been a le r ted  tha t  a  la rger  and c learer  copy  o f  the  

Bus iness Day ar t i c le  tha t  we looked a t  has been p repared 

and w i l l  be  brought  up  to  be  rep laced in  ou r  f i l es .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.   Wel l ,  i f  i t  i s  w i th  you r igh t  

now? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Not  ye t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  no t  ye t?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    I t  i s  be ing  prepared now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .    

ADV ARMSTRONG:    So ,  Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  then jus t  tu rn  10 

p lease to  the  next  page in  the  a r t i c le  on  page 24.   The 

por t ion  tha t  i s  h igh l igh ted .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.    

ADV ARMSTRONG:    I t  says :  

“Mkwanaz i ,  who d rove the  appo in tment  p rocess. . . ”  

Th is  i s  a  re ference to  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe ’s  appo in tment .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:     

“ . . .admi ts  he  has  a  persona l  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  

Guptas and has met  them to  d iscuss p r iva te  20 

bus iness in te res t s  bu t  den ied  th is  in f luenced Mr  

Mole fe ’ s  appo in tment . ”  

Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  d id  you have an oppor tun i ty  to  comment  on  

th is  a r t i c le?   D id  you see i t  be fore  i t  was pub l i shed? 

MR MKWANAZI :    When I  say  to  comment  no ,  bu t  mean ing  
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the  fac t  tha t  they wro te  what  they wro te ,  I  must  have  

spoken to  them based on the  quest ions tha t  they were  

ask ing ,  Yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    So  th is  descr ip t ion  o f  you hav ing  a  

persona l  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  Gup tas  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you want  to  f i rs t ,  Ms Armst rong,  jus t  

read in to  the  record  the  re levant  par t  and then ask  h im?  

The h igh l igh ted  par ts .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Okay,  so r ry ,  Cha i r ,  I  w i l l  read i t  10 

aga in .  

“Mkwanaz i ,  who  drove the  appo in tment  p rocess  

admi ts  he  has a  persona l  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  

Guptas  and has met  them to  d iscuss p r iva te  

bus iness in te res t s  bu t  den ied  th is  in f luenced Mr  

Mole fe ’ s  appo in tment . ”  

And so ,  Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  you descr ibed your  re la t ionsh ip  to  

Mai l  &  Guard ian  as  a  persona l  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  

Guptas ,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?   

MR MKWANAZI :    I  d id  desc r ibe  i t  l i ke  tha t  bu t  to  say is  20 

tha t  cor rec t ,  i t  i s  cor rec t  tha t  I  met  them on the  day tha t  I  

met  them a t  the  house but  then,  you know,  the  med ia  i s  a 

s t range an imal  because I  wou ld  no t  l i ke  to  d iscuss  cer ta in  

mat te rs  o f  how I  run  compan ies  th rough the  med ia ,  wh ich  

is  why I  responded th is  way.  
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ADV ARMSTRONG:    Bu t  jus t  to  me,  hav ing  met  b r ie f l y  on 

two occas ions w i th  the  Guptas  sounds. . .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    A  persona l  re la t ionsh ip  sounds a  b i t  

o f  an  overs ta tement  to  me.  

MR MKWANAZI :    I t  i s  a  s t rong word ,  yes ,  I  must  say ,  yes .   

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Bu t  there  was no –  there  is  no  

add i t iona l  re la t ionsh ip  tha t  you had except  fo r  those two  

meet ings?  

MR MKWANAZI :    No.   No.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  le t  us  dea l  w i th  th is  head-on.   So 

you admi t  tha t  you d id  say to  the  journa l i s t  who wro te  the  

ar t i c le  o r  whoever  may have spoken to  you f rom Mai l  &  

Guard ian  tha t  you had a  pe rsona l  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  

Guptas ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  I  met  them,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   You –  as  we speak today,  do  you 

s tand by  tha t  desc r ip t ion  tha t  you had a  persona l  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  Guptas  o r  do  you not?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cha i rman,  pe rsona l  re la t ionsh ip  i s  too  20 

s t rong a  word  fo r  two meet ings I  had wh ich  maybe  las ted  

an hour  and a  ha l f  in  to ta l ,  bo th  o f  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  why d id  you  use those words? 

MR MKWANAZI :    No,  a t  the  t ime I  used i t  because I  

wanted to  d ismiss  the  med ia  o f f  my back.   They were  on to  
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too  many issues,  i f  I  can  use the  word .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  tha t  does not  sound r igh t  tha t  you 

wou ld  say you have persona l  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  them to  

d ismiss  the  med ia  i f  in  fac t  you d id  no t  have a  persona l  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  them.   What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cha i rman,  you know,  the  use  o f  the 

Eng l ish  language  when you are  a  Zu lu-speak ing  person 

gets  a  l i t t le  b i t  t r i cky .   But  yes ,  I  d id  have two meet ings  

w i th  them and I  d id  say tha t  I  had a  persona l  re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  them.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Ms Armst rong? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   The ar t i c l e  goes  

on to  say:  

“Asked what  the  bus iness in te res t s  were  and  

whethe r  they were  d isc losed to  the  board  Transnet  

sa id :   A l l  our  board  members  are  requ i red  to  

d isc lose  the i r  p r i va te  in te res t s  a t  each and every  

board  meet ing .   Mr  Mkwanaz i  has no ex is t ing  has 

no  ex is t ing  bus iness in te res t s  w i th  the  Gupta  

fami ly .   The d iscuss ions he  has  w i th  them were  20 

exp lora tory  and d id  no t  resu l t  in  a  par tnersh ip . ”  

So aga in ,  Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  you r  tes t imony was tha t  there  was 

a  br ie f  ment ion  in  the  genera l  d i scuss ions in  your  meet ing .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    About  a  p roper ty  deve lopment  you  
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had in  KZN,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Sounds –  exp lo ra tory  d i scuss ions 

tha t  d id  no t  resu l t  in  a  par tnersh ip ,  once aga in  sounds l i ke  

a  more  s ign i f i can t  d iscuss ion  on  tha t  top ic  than what  you  

have ment ioned.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  I  am not  sure  why have tha t  in  -  

you know,  as  i f  i t  i s  a  quota t ion  bu t  tha t  mat te r  was never  

ever  touched on aga in  o f  what  I  was t ry ing  to  do  there  in  

KZN because i t  never  happened,  i t  fe l l  th rough a lmost  tha t  10 

same week or  two weeks la te r .   

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And so ,  Mr  Mkwanaz i  ,  you have to ld  

the  Mai l  &  Guard ian  journa l i s t  tha t  you had these meet ings  

w i th  the  Guptas ,  is  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Ja .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And tha t  you spoke about  p r iva te  

bus iness in te res t s ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Bu t  you do not  seem to  have –  or  d id  

you ment ion  anyth ing  about  what  Mr  Tony Gupta  had asked  20 

you about  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MKWANAZI :    No,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   About  p rocu rement  and the  a l loca t ion  

to  the  New Age?  

MR MKWANAZI :    No,  I  d id  no t .  
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ADV ARMSTRONG:    And why not?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I t  i s  no t  in  my nature  to  s ta r t  d i scuss ing  

what  I  can ca l l  boa rd  i ssues o r  company issues w i th  the  

med ia .   There  are  many o f  o ther  i ssues,  by  the  way,  in  the  

past  20  years ,  21  years  I  have been a t  Transnet  tha t  I  have  

never  d iscussed w i th  the  med ia  in  te rms o f  whatever  they  

m ight  have been.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    D id  you d isc lose  what  had been  

d iscussed w i th  the  board  o f  Transnet?  

MR MKWANAZI :    What  had been d iscussed?  10 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Wi th  Mr  tony Gupta  about  the  

quest ion  o f  ded ica t ing  30  to  50%? 

MR MKWANAZI :    No,  I  d id  no t  d iscuss tha t  w i th  the  board .  

You need to  unders tand one  s t range th ing  abou t  s ta te  

owned ent i t ies .   In  a  year  when you are  l i ke  a  Cha i rman or  

Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  you get  hundred proposa ls  o r  ca l l s  

f rom peop le  who want  to  p rocu re  someth ing  f rom your  

o rgan isa t ion .   I t  i s  so  common and i t  inc ludes eve rybody.   

A t  t imes i t  s ta r ts  even w i th  the  Pres ident  h imse l f . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  the  po in t  you are  mak ing  is  you 20 

cannot  be  te l l ing  the  board  about  a l l  o f  these  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MKWANAZI :    Exact ly ,  exact ly ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    …many occas ions when somebody or  

o ther  has some d iscuss ion  w i th  you tha t  does not  end 
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anywhere ,  tha t  does not  lead anywhere .   I s  tha t  the  po in t  

you are  mak ing?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .   Jus t  another   

example ,  a t  these  TNA breakfas ts ,  wh ich   a t tended 8  to  10 ,  

whatever  the  number  i s ,  peop le  wou ld  queue to  ta lk  to  me 

and ask fo r  bus iness oppor tun i t ies  in  Transnet .   Of  course ,  

as  a  c i v i l  servan t  I  wou ld  s tand in  a  queue,  they  wou ld  

come or  they want  to  ta lk .   Th is  one goes,  th is  one goes.   

Ja ,  i t  i s  par t  o f  my job .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    But ,  Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  wha t  m ight  10 

perhaps be a  b i t  unusua l  was tha t  your  number  in  th is  case  

was prov ided to  Mr  Tony Gupta  by  the  Min i s te r  h imse l f .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  i t  was unusua l ,  yes .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And so  tha t  unusua l  aspect  you d id  

no t  ment ion  tha t  to  the  journa l i s t  a t  Ma i l  &  Guard ian .  

MR MKWANAZI :    No,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Or  to  the  Transnet  board .  

MR MKWANAZI :    No,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    So even though tha t  was unusua l  why 

d id  you dec ide  no t  to  inc lude tha t  in fo rmat ion  i n  your  20 

s ta tements  to  them? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Inc lude wh ich  in fo rmat ion?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    So  even though i t  was –  tha t  aspect  

o f  the  in te rac t ions was unusua l ,  tha t  they go t  your  number  

f rom Min is te r  G igaba,  why d id  you …[ in tervenes]  



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 210 of 255 
 

MR MKWANAZI :    No,  I  d id  no t .   I  d id  no t  see a  need to  do 

tha t ,  ja . .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Why d id  you not  see a  need? 

MR MKWANAZI :    No,  I  d id  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He d id  no t  see  a  need –  i f  you  want  to  

say …[ in tervenes ]  

MR MKWANAZI :    You can see they are  f i sh ing . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  –  Ms Armst rong,  i f  you  th ink  tha t  there  

was –  there  were  grounds fo r  h im to  have seen a  need you 

can exp lore  those  grounds.  10 

MR MKWANAZI :    I  cou ld  have,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  o therw ise… 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Indeed,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  he  says he  d id  no t  see a  need,  he  d id  

no t  see a  need.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Indeed,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  you  say  what  about  th is ,  what  

about  th is ,  what  about  th is ,  d id  no t  a l l  o f  th is  show you tha t   

there  was need?  That  i s  d i f fe ren t ,  then you can do tha t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   I  th ink  the  20 

e lements ,  the  unusua l  e lement  i s  o f  the  Min is te r  g i v ing  Mr  

Gupta  your  number  i s  the  on ly  –  i s  the  aspect  tha t  I  jus t  

wanted to  p robe fu r ther  because,  Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  your  

answer  was tha t  you d id  no t  fee l  the  need to  te l l  the  board  

or  the  med ia  about  th is  meet ing  because you get  many  
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requests ,  they are  very  usua l ,  and I  was jus t  p rob ing  tha t  

there  was in  fac t  an  unusua l  aspec t  o f  i t  wh ich  was tha t  the  

Min is te r  had,  accord ing  to  Mr  Gupta ,  connected you and  

put  you in  touch and tha t  was –  I  was p rob ing  whether  tha t  

tha t  unusua l  aspect  m ight  have prompted you to  t rea t  i t  

d i f fe ren t ly  and pe rhaps a le r t  somebody e l se .    

MR MKWANAZI :    No.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you.   Thank you,  Mr  Mkwanaz i .   

And were  you aware  o f  o the r  o f f i c ia ls  a t  the  t ime? 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry ,  I  am sor ry… 10 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  d id  you ever  have  

occas ion  to  ask  Min is te r  G igaba whethe r  Tony Gupta  was 

cor rec t  in  say ing  he  got  you r  de ta i l s  f rom h im? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Cha i rman,  we have never  d i scussed tha t  

mat te r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You have never  d iscussed,  yes .   Okay.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Even today  or  –  we have  never  

d iscussed tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  thank you.  20 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And d id  you  hear  a t  the  t ime  about  

any o ther  peop le  or  o f f i c ia ls  be ing  approached in  th is  way  

by  members  o f  the  Gupta  fami ly  to  have a  meet ing?  

MR MKWANAZI :    No,  I  was no t  aware  o f  any –  I  on ly  

became aware  o f  these approaches once the  Commiss ion  
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was se t  up  and  Maseko and o thers  and a  lo t  o f  o ther  

peop le  d id  come to  the  Commiss ion  to  make inputs .   Then  

to  my mine i t  was –  th i s  th ing  was qu i te  common a t  the  

t ime,  ja .    I  d id  no t  know.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And d id  you ,  be fore  you approached 

by  the  Commiss ion  to  g i ve  ev idence,  d id  you fee l  t he  need 

to  come fo rward  and d isc lose  the  meet ings tha t  you  had?  

MR MKWANAZI :    No.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And why not?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Do not  fo rge t  –  maybe le t  me put  i t  10 

d i f fe ren t ly ,  the  answer  i s  no  because a t  some s tage,  i f  you  

reca l l ,  the  Secre tary  Genera l  o f  the  ru l ing  par t y  d id  ask  

peop le  to  come to  Lu thu l i  House,  e tce te ra ,  e tce tera .   I  fe l t  

tha t  these peop le  are  no t  honest .   They themse lves know 

what  i s  happen ing ,  so  I  d id  no t  even go there .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you,  Mr  Mkwanaz i .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  am go ing  to  ask  you to  jus t  

repeat .   I  th ink  what  you are  say ing  may be impor tan t .   You 

are  say ing  the  ru l ing  par ty  d id  i nv i te  peop le  to  go  to  the  

ru l ing  par ty  and d isc lose  what  they knew and you say you  20 

fe l t  tha t  you were  no t  go ing  to  go  there .   I  jus t  want  you to  

say once aga in  why you fe l t  l i ke  tha t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cha i rman,  yes ,  I  was not  go ing  go .   I f  I  

reca l l ,  maybe i t  is  on l y  Themba Maseko who wen t  to  see 

Mr  Gwede Mantashe a t  the  t ime but  I  fe l t  tha t  whatever  the  
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Gupta  fami ly  i s  do ing ,  i t  i s  a  we l l -known th ing  w i th in  the  

ru l ing  par ty .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   Then,  Mr  

Mkwanaz i ,  I  am not  go ing  to  ask  you too  much about  the  

New Age breakfas ts ,  we have a l ready heard  ex tens ive  

ev idence about  those,  bu t  you do say in  your  s ta tement  

tha t  you a t tended a  number  o f  these breakfas ts  ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t ,  the  New Age breakfas ts  ?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  cor rec t .  10 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And in  your  s ta tement  you ind ica te  

tha t  you do not  have any idea o f  how much was spent  in  

respect  o f  those breakfas ts .  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Bu t  o f  cou rse  –  so  we have had 

tes t imony,  so  fo r  example  f rom Mr  Phat lane has exp la ined 

tha t  f rom 2012 to  2017 over  R122 mi l l ion  was spent  on  the  

New Age breakfas ts  .   

Now,  Mr  Mkwanaz i  ,  in  l igh t  o f  the  fac t  tha t  you 

were  contac ted  and asked by  Mr  Tony Gupta  to  ded ica te  20 

between 30 and 50% of  the  Transnet  adver t i s ing  budget  to  

the  New Age b reakfas ts  and we know – and you went  to  a  

number  o f  those breakfas ts .  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  d id ,  yes .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And you saw tha t  they were  occur r i ng  
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and we know the re  were  –  so  a t  tha t  t ime were  you a t  a l l  

concerned tha t  what  you had been  asked in  a  way tha t  d id  

no t  comply  w i th  p rocu rement  p rocedures was now be ing  in  

e f fec t  tha t  you were  a t tend ing  these breakfas ts  tha t  they 

were  happen ing .   D id  tha t  no t  concern  you? 

MR MKWANAZI :   No,  i t  d id  concern  me.   You somehow 

need to  unders tand the  p rocurement  sys tems o f  s ta te  

owned ent i t ies  whereby they have var ious commi t tees to  

p rocu re  th ings up  to  a  cer ta in  amount  and then up to  the 

CEO leve l .   In  th is  case i t  wou ld  have been Br ian  Mole fe .  10 

 B r ian  Mole fe  had the  fu l l  au thor i t y  to  p rocure  

cer ta in  th ings,  whatever  they m ight  be ,  up  to  a  cer ta in  l im i t  

and then above  a  cer ta in  amount  o f  above a  cer ta in  

t imef rame,  then those th ings needed to  be  e levated to  the  

board .  

 The fac t  tha t ,  yes ,  I  was now go ing  to  these  

breakfas ts ,  yes ,  i t  i s  t rue  bu t  the  CEO wou ld  have then  

app l ied  h i s  m ind whether  i s  i t  wor th  tha t  -  us ing  h is  

d iscre t ion  and h is  de legated autho r i t y .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Oh dear ,  I  th ink  the  screen has  20 

f rozen.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Okay.   Sor ry ,  Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  the 

sc reen is  f reez ing  so  we are  m iss ing  your  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  am not  sure  what… 
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  the  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MKWANAZI :    D id  you p i ck  tha t  up?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Unfor tunate l y ,  no t ,  Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  we 

have missed now a  por t ion  o f  what  you were  say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  they are  a t tend ing  to  i t  and then we 

w i l l  ask  you to  repeat  what  you  sa id  bu t  they are  jus t  

a t tend ing  to  i t .    

MR MKWANAZI :    So  can I  repeat?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  jus t  repeat .   .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Yes,  thank you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  repeat ,  ja .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Advocate ,  can you repeat  your  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The quest ion .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Indeed.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Then I  w i l l  respond aga in .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    So,  Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  your  tes t imony was 

tha t  you were  approached and you  were  asked by  Mr  Gupta  

to  ded ica te  30  to  50% of  the  Transnet  adver t i s ing  budget  

to  the  New Age.   You sa id  th is  i s  an  inappropr ia te  way o f  20 

do ing  th ings,  th is  i s  no t  how we do  bus iness.   But  then you  

then a t tend yourse l f  a  number  o f  these breakfas ts  so  you 

see tha t  in  fac t  Transnet  i s  spend ing  budget  on  the  New 

Age.   D id  th i s  no t  concern  you g i ven your  p rev ious  

approach by  Mr  Gupta?  
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CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  th ink  he  sa id  ear l ie r  on  h is  

response to  the  Guptas  was you  are  ta l k ing  to  a  wrong 

person.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You must  go  to  management ,  execut ive  

management .   That  i s  what  he  sa id .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And there fore ,  i f  they  went  to  

management  and  management  g ranted them whatever  they  

wanted i t  wou ld  no t  necessar i l y  be  incons is ten t  w i th  what  10 

he  sa id .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  my reco l lec t ion .   I s  tha t  what  you 

sa id ,  Mr  Mkwanaz i?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Okay.   So,  Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  you were  

no t  concerned,  i f  I  unders tand you cor rec t l y ,  because you 

imag ined tha t  they had –  you assumed they had gone  

th rough those co r rec t  channe ls .  20 

MR MKWANAZI :    They had fo l lowed the  processes,  yes .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you ,  Mr  Mkwanaz i .   Then,  

Cha i r ,  I  see  tha t  the  t ime is  a l ready f i ve  o ’c lock .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we shou ld  t ry  and f in i sh  because 

Mr  Mkwanaz i  has  wa i ted  fo r  th is  t ime fo r  a  long t ime.  
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ADV ARMSTRONG:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  th ink  -  cer ta in ly  f rom my s ide  I  

th ink  we can f in i sh .   I  assume tha t  we shou ld  no t  be  more  

than 30 minutes  more  or  am I  too  ambi t ious?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Unfor tunate ly ,  cha i r ,  I  jus t  need to  

dea l  w i th  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    How much t ime do you th ink  we need?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    I  th ink  approx imate l y  an  hour ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    About  an  hour?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    We have to  dea l  w i th  the  Eskom 10 

ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Mkwanaz i  ,  f rom your  s ide  you are  

happy fo r  us  to  cont inue?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cha i rman,  I  am happy to  cont inue .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  le t  us  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MKHWANAZI :    I  can  conf i rm ,  Cha i r ,  jus t  to  pu t  i t  on 

record  tha t  we are  prepared and ready to  cont inue,  Cha i r ,  

thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you ve ry  much.   Then  le t  us  

cont inue,  I  am hop ing  i t  w i l l  no t  take  an hour .  20 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    I  w i l l  cer ta in l y  do  my best ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Okay.   So jus t  to  …[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON:    We may or  may not  –  we may a t  some 

s tage need a  shor t  b reak.   What  t ime d id  we s tar t?   How 

long have we been…? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    About  quar te r  past  th ree  I  be l ieve  we  

began.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  we are  c lose  to  two hours .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe i t  m igh t  be  the  conven ien t  t ime to  

take  a  shor t  b reak.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    We wi l l  take  a  shor t  b reak,  Mr  

Mkwanaz i ,  and then we are  go ing  to  resume.   Ten minutes  

shou ld  be  okay?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Indeed,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We wi l l  take  ten  m inutes .   My  watch  

says i t  i s  ten  past  f i ve .   So twenty  past  f i ve  we w i l l  resume.   

We ad journ .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 20 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    So  Mr  Mkwanaz i  I  jus t  want  to  wrap 

up the  feedback.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t ’s  ge t  h im to  be  se t t led .    Mr  

Mkwanaz i  a re  you se t t led ,  a re  you  okay?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  am set t led  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you Cha i r.    So,  in  o rde r  to  jus t  

f ina l i se  the  Transnet  ev idence,  I  jus t  want  to  pu t  to  you the  

essent ia l  po in ts  tha t  Mr  G igaba has ra ised in  h is  a f f idav i t  

in  response to  our  Ru le  33  not ice  and tha t  i s  in  the  f i le ,  in  

MM7 a t  page 8 .  

MR MKWANAZI :    When you say page 8  can you use the  

MM’s  is  i t  MM8? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    MM08.  

MR MKWANAZI :   Okay.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Whenever  she  says page 8  o r  page  

whatever  w i thout  ment ion ing  MM you must  know i t ’s  s t i l l  

MM.  

MR MKWANAZI :   Ja  I ’ ve  go t  i t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you Cha i r.   So,  there  are  jus t  

th ree  main  aspec ts  o f  what  Mr  G igaba has sa id  in  response 

to  your  s ta tement  tha t  I ’d  jus t  l i ke  to  pu t  to  you so  you  

have an oppor tun i ty  to  respond Mr  Mkwanaz i .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    The f i rs t  th ing  tha t  Mr  G igaba says is  20 

tha t  he  d id  no t  p rov ide  Mr  Tony Gupta  w i th  your  number,  do  

you have a  comment?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I ’ ve  go t  no  comment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry  jus t  repeat  tha t  Ms A rmst rong I  

d idn ’ t  hear  the  quest ion?  
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ADV ARMSTRONG:    Mr  G igaba says tha t  he  never  

p rov ided Mr  Tony Gupta  w i th  Mr  Mkwanaz i ’s  ce l l  phone 

number.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes I  guess when you say you have no  

comment ,  Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  you mean you ac tua l l y  don ’ t  know 

whethe r  what  Tony Gupta  to ld  you is  t rue  bu t  what  you  

have to ld  me  is ,  you had g iven Mr  G igaba 

your…[ in te rvenes ] .   

MR MKWANAZI :    I  sa id  –  Cha i rman I  sa id  no  comment  

because I  don ’ t  know whether  i t ’s  t rue  o r  no t  t rue .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no ,  tha t ’s  what  I ’m  say ing  tha t ’s  

the  reason why you ’ re  say ing ,  no  comment  bu t  what  you 

have sa id  i s  Mr  G igaba d id  have your  contac t  de ta i l s ,  you 

had g i ven h im them to  h im,  your  contac t  de ta i l s .   Le t  me 

repeat  tha t ,  what  you have sa id  to  me is  tha t  you had g iven  

Mr  G igaba your  contac t  de ta i l s  i s ,  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Oh yes,  man years  ago Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  p r io r  to  th is  –  ja  p r io r  to  th is  ca l l  by  

Tony Gupta .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And the  second main  po in t  there  Mr  

G igaba makes is  he  says tha t  he  was –  tha t  you never  

spoke to  h im  about  the  meet ings  wh ich  accords w i th  your  

tes t imony today but  tha t  he ’s  su rpr ised,  because  i f  you 
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were  no t  comfor tab le  you cou ld  have spoken to  h im about  

the  f i rs t  o r  second meet ing  and you chose not  to ,  do  you 

have any comments  to  tha t  s ta tement?  

MR MKWANAZI :    No comment  s t i l l ,  because I ’m not  the  

type o f  person who repor ts  a lmost  m inor  th ings  to  a  

Min is te r,  to  me tha t  was mino r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay i t  can ’ t  be  no  comment  because 

you do have comment  wh ich  you have jus t  made,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?   You are  prov id ing  a  reason why you wou ld  no t  have  

ra ised the  issue w i th  h im,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  what  I ’m  say ing  is ,  when you 

say,  no  comment  i t  means you have noth ing  to  say about  

h is  vers ion  bu t  f rom what  you have sa id  I  th ink  you do 

have someth ing  to  say and what  you have to  say,  i s  you 

have an exp lanat ion  why you d id  no t  ra ise  the  issue w i th  

h im and tha t  i s ,  you are  no t  the  type o f  person who wou ld  

ra ise  th is  k ind  o f  i ssue w i th  the  Min is te r,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  okay.  20 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you Cha i r  fo r  tha t  and the  f ina l  

po in t  tha t  Mr  G igaba makes tha t  I ’d  l i ke  to  ra ise  w i th  you i s  

tha t  he  says,  he  was not  aware  tha t  Mr  S iyabonga 

Mahlangu,  h is  spec ia l  adv isor,  a t tended the  meet ing  w i th  

you and Mr  Gup ta ,  do  you agree or  d isagree w i th  tha t  
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s ta tement?  

MR MK WANAZI :  I  don ’ t  know but  I  d idn ’ t  te l l  the  Min is te r  

tha t  I ’m tak ing  S iyabonga to  tha t  meet ing  i t  was someth ing  

I  ra ised between myse l f  and S iyabonga.   

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you Cha i r,  Cha i r  I  apo log i se  I  

d idn ’ t  en ter  tha t  as  an  Exh ib i t ,   so  Cha i r  wou ld  i t  be  

poss ib le  to  adm i t  f rom page MM4 to  the  end o f  that  

a f f idav i t  wh ich  is  MM22 as Exh ib i t  MM7B? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Does i t  have Annexures?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    I t  does.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  does?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Yes,  so  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  beg ins  a t  

page 4 ,  MM4 and  the  Annexures end a t  page MM22.  

CHAIRPERSON:  Wel l  te l l  me where  the  Annexures s ta r t  

f i rs t .    

ADV ARMSTRONG:    The Annexures beg in  f rom page 

MM17 –  sor ry  I  beg your  pardon tha t ’s  another  

a f f idav i t…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What ’s  15?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    I t ’s  MM14 is  the  end,  so  MM15 you ’ re  20 

cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  a  conf i rmatory  a f f idav i t  and then  

there  is  Annexure  B  and Annexure  C,  we ’ l l  have to  say the  

s ta tement  by  Mr  Malus i  Knowledge Nkanyez i  G igaba  

appear ing  a t  page four  –  oh  tha t ’s  the  no t ice ,  tha t  a t  page 
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four,  the  ac tua l  s ta tements  s ta r t s  a t  page s ix  bu t  the  no t ice  

and the  s ta tement  w i l l  be  admi t ted  and marked as  Exh ib i t  

MM7 –  what ’s  the  le t te r?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    That  i s  B .  

CHAIRPERSON:    B  and tha t  i s  the  s ta tement  p lus  i t ’s  

Annexures.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Indeed Cha i r,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you Cha i r.   Cha i r  tha t  

conc ludes the  ev idence on Transnet ,  so  Mr  Mkwanaz i  I ’d  10 

jus t  l i ke  to  move to  the  ev idence about  your  t ime a t  Eskom 

on the  Board  wh ich  was –  wh ich  began on June 2011 and  

came to  an  end in  December  2014  and in  par t i cu la r  I ’d  l i ke  

to  ask  you about  tha t  end pa r t  o f  your  tenure  on  the  Board ,  

so  November /December  o f  2014 and in  pa r t i cu la r  I ’d  l i ke  to  

ask  you about  th is  cont rac t  tha t  Eskom had conc luded w i th  

the  New Age and tha t  was a  cont rac t  fo r  R43mi l l ion ,  do  you  

have any memory  o f  tha t  Mr  Mkwanaz i?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  and I ,  in  te rms o f  the  

documenta t ion  is  there  someth ing  I  must  open up? 20 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Not  ye t .  

MR MKWANAZI :    O f  the  th ree  documents?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Not  ye t  Mr  Mkwanaz i .  

MR MKWANAZI :    No we can ta lk  o f f  the  cu f f  ja .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Yes,  yes .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe before  you p roceed Ms 

Armst rong,  f rom what  da te  d id  you become a  D i rec to r,  a  

non-Execut ive  D i rec to r  o f  Eskom to  what  da te?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  th ink  i t  was June 2011 to  December  

2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  go ing  back to  tha t  Bus iness 

Day a r t i c le  you d id  jo in  the  Board  –  you d id  jo in  the  Eskom 

Board  as  a  non-Execut ive  D i rec tor,  the  on ly  d i f fe rence i s  

tha t  you ’ re  no t  removed f rom the  Transnet  Board?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rman.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Indeed,  thank you Cha i r.   So,  the  

R43mi l l ion  rand cont rac t  be tween Eskom for  adver t i s ing  in  

the  New Age –  so  you ind ica te  you were  aware  o f  tha t  

cont rac t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t  Advocate .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And do you  reca l l  tha t  towards the  

end,  in  November  and December  o f  you r  tenure  2014,  on  

the  Eskom Board  you were  cons ider ing  tha t  cont rac t ,  do  

you reca l l  tha t?  20 

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  cor rec t  a f te r  the  peop le  –  the  

fo rens ic  peop le  had f in ished the i r  work ,  yes .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    That ’s  qu i te  r igh t  and tha t  i s  a  repor t  

by  SNG,  the re  was a  fo rens ic  repor t  done on th i s  par t i cu la r  

cont rac t ,  i s  tha t  what  you ’ re  re fe r r ing  to  Mr  Mkwanaz i?  
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MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rman.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Do you reca l l ,  in  genera l  te rms what  

tha t  repor t  conc luded about  the  cont rac t?  

MR MK WANAZI :    A t  the  h igh  leve l  Cha i r  i t  conc luded on  

two issues or  two ind i v idua ls   i t  conc luded tha t  the  

R43mi l l ion  cont rac t  was i r regu lar  and i t  conc luded tha t  the  

c lause –  the  ex i t  c lause tha t  was supposed to  be  there  

wh ich  was removed by  somebody,  tha t  was wrong o f  tha t  

somebody to  do  tha t  and i t  conc luded tha t  the  ac t i ng  CEO 

at  the  t ime d id  no t  have the  au thor i t y  to  conc lude tha t  10 

cont rac t  because  there  was no budget  and they  a lso  –  

there  was not  p roper  approva l  because such cont rac ts ,  

above say R3mi l l ion ,  was supposed to  be  approved  by  the  

EXCO of  Eskom and tha t  was not  done.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you,  so  tha t  Ch ie f  Execut ive  

tha t  was Mr  Co l in  Mat j i la ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r,  ja .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And the  o the r  ind iv idua l  you re fer red  

to  i s  tha t  Mr  Choeu?  

MR MK WANAZI :    Yes,  i t ’s  Chose  Choeu,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  20 

Cha i r.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you Mr  Mkwanaz i  and  so  then  

I ’d  jus t  l i ke  to  move to  –  there  were  th ree  Board  meet ings 

tha t  then took p lace towards the  end o f  tha t  yea r  a t  wh ich  

th is  i ssue was d iscussed.   I ’d  jus t  l i ke  to  take  you,  Mr  
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Mkwanaz i  to  the  very  las t  m inute  and tha t  w i l l  requ i re  us  to  

go  to  f i le  –  to  leave our  f i l e  MM7 and to  move to  Exh ib i t  

MM3 and tha t  was the  Exh ib i t  in  respect  o f  Mr  Mark  

Pamensky ’s  ev idence.    

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  what  page Cha i r.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    I ’ l l  j us t  make sure  tha t  the  Cha i r  has  

tha t  f i l e .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  don ’ t  th ink  he  heard ,  so  you must  te l l  

h im aga in  what  Exh ib i t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Okay tha t ’s  MM3,  Mr  Mark  10 

Pamensky ’s  ev idence,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you go ing  to  come back to  th is  o r  

no t?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    No Cha i r,  thank you.   Then i f  we 

cou ld  jus t  tu rn  to  page 349 o f  th is  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you say 349? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   349 tha t ’s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   349?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    That ’s  r igh t ,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    When you are  look ing  away f rom me I  20 

won ’ t  hear  you proper ly.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    My apo log ies  Cha i r,  tha t ’s  cor rec t ,  

349,  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    So ,  here  are  the  m inutes  o f  a  
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meet ing  o f  the  8 t h  o f  December  2014,  now th is  must  have  

been,  Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  r igh t  be fo re  the  end o f  you r  –  th is  

must  have been  one o f  the  las t  Board  meet ings you  

a t tended,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That ’s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you  and I  conf i rm tha t  you  

were  a t  th is  meet ing ,  i t  says  you were  present ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t  yes .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Okay,  and I  jus t  want  to  move to  page 10 

351 in  the  second  las t  paragraph o f  tha t  page i t  says ,  

“The lawyers  were  o f  the  op in ion  tha t  Mr  Mat j i la ’s  

conduct  const i tu ted  a  w i l fu lness conduct  in  te rms o f  

the  PFMA…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry  where  about  on  351 are  you  

read ing?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Sor ry  Cha i r,  i t ’s  the  second las t  

parag raph.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    The f i rs t  sentence okay so ,  20 

“The lawyers  were  o f  the  op in ion  tha t  Mr  Mat j i la ’s  

conduct  const i tu ted  a  w i l fu lness conduct  in  te rms o f  

the  PFMA.   The Nat iona l  Treasury  Regu la t ions  

s ta ted  tha t  i f  there  were  a  f inanc ia l  m isconduct  by  

an  employee then the  Board  mus t  ensure  tha t  an 
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invest iga t ion  was conducted  and re levant  

d isc ip l ina ry  ac t ion  taken.   Fur the rmore ,  the  Board  

had to  adv i se  the  re levant  Min is te r,  Nat iona l  

Treasury  and Aud i to r  Genera l  thereof .   In  respect  o f  

a  repor tab le  i r regu lar i t y  i s  repor ted  to  ex te rna l  

aud i to rs  and had to  make a  d isc losure ” ,  

 And then,  Mr  Mkwanaz i  you ’ l l  see  the  next  

parag raph says,  

“Wi th  respect  to  the  de f in i t ion  o f  f ru i t less  and 

waste fu l  expend i tu re  i t  was s ta ted  tha t  the  Board  10 

had to  take  a  v iew whether  the  cont rac t  had va lue 

or  no t ” ,  

 So,  le t ’s  s top  there  and d i scuss tha t .   So,  Mr  

Mkwanaz i ,  you ment ioned ear l ie r  tha t  the  fo rens ic  repor t  

had ment ioned two key ac to rs ,  tha t  was Mr  Mat j i la  and  Mr  

Choeu and so  d id  you unders tand tha t…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  g ive  the  spe l l ing  fo r  Mr  Choeu fo r  

the  conven ience o f  the  t ranscr ibers .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    That  i s  C-H-O-E-U.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   20 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you Cha i r.   So,  in  l igh t  o f  th is  

parag raph about  –  tha t  Mr  Mat j i la ’s  conduct  const i tu ted  

m isconduct  in  te rms o f  the  PFMA,  d id  you unders tand tha t  

the  Board  had an  ob l iga t ion  to  ac t  on  tha t  in fo rmat ion ,  Mr  

Mkwanaz i?   
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MR MKWANAZI :    That ’s  my unders tand ing  yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And tha t  co r rec t i ve  ac t ion  had to  be 

taken in  tha t  regard?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  my unders tand ing .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Now,  Mr  Mat j i la ,  a f te r  th is ,  was no  

longer  the  Ch ie f  Executor  o f  the  Board  bu t  do  you s t i l l  

unders tand tha t  the  –  was the  Board  o f  Eskom of  the  v iew 

tha t  ac t ion  s t i l l  had to  be  taken aga ins t  Mr  Mat j i la?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That ’s  my unders tand ing  because  s t i l l  he 

was w i th in  the  scope,  I  th ink  he  rever ted  back to  a  non-10 

Execut ive  D i rec to r  pos i t ion .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And then,  Mr  Choeu,  he  was,  i f  I ’m 

not  m is taken,  s t i l l  an  employee o f  Eskom is  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    So ,  was i t  your  unders tand ing ,  as  a  

member  o f  the  Board  tha t  d isc ip l i nary  ac t ion  was go ing  to  

be  taken aga ins t  these pa r t ies?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That ’s  my unders tand ing  yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    The second  po in t  tha t  I  ment ioned  

was f ru i t less  and waste fu l  expend i tu re ,  what  do  you  20 

unders tand tha t  to  mean? 

MR MKWANAZI :    You need to  go  back to  the  ac tua l  PFMA 

and in  th is  case i t  was i r regu lar  yes  because he exceeded  

the  de legat ion  they d id  no t  fa l l  –  had an ex i t  c lause  

e tce te ra .   Now,  whether  i t  was  f ru i t less  and waste fu l ,  
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somebody e l se  then –  a  spec ia l i s t  in  ana lys is  o f  what  va lue  

d id  the  company  get  ou t  o f  tha t  R43mi l l ion  needs to  be  

done and then based on tha t  then the  Board  can then 

def ine  i t  as  a  f ru i t less  and waste fu l  expend i tu re  un less  

you ’ve  go t  somebody do ing  tha t  ana lys is ,  a t  the  t ime we 

had not  done tha t  ana lys i s  as  a  Board .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  tha t ’s  very  

impor tan t .   So,  a t  th is  t ime there  had been no ana lys is  in to  

commerc ia l  va lue  o f  the  cont rac t .    

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  10 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Bu t  d id  you unders tand tha t ,  tha t  was 

s t i l l  go ing  to  be  done a t  some fu ture  da te?  

MR MKWANAZI :    The i r regu lar i t y  i s  a  g iven and the  wrong  

c lause is  a  g iven they shou ldn ’ t  have done tha t  bu t  

whethe r  then,  as  aud i to rs  and as  an  Aud i t  Commi t tee  how 

do you then def ine  th is ,  you need to  app ly  your  m ind.   Yes,  

i t  wou ld  have been i r regu lar  in  a  pa r t i cu la r  way  un less  

regu lar i sed by  a  Board  bu t  then cond i t iona l  regu lar isa t ion  

on  cond i t ion  tha t  you take  ac t ion  aga ins t  the  two  

Execut ives  invo l ved.  20 

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Okay I…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  waste fu l  

and  f ru i t less  expend i tu re  i s  when an ent i t y ’s  money i s  

spent  in  va in  as  i t  were ,  the  en t i t y  doesn ’ t  der i ve  any 

mater ia l  va lue  f rom tha t  expend i tu re ,  wou ld  tha t  be  your  
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unders tand ing  as  we l l?  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Cha i r  tha t  i s  my unders tand ing ,  be ing  

a  pe rson –  an  Eng ineer,  t yp ica l l y  i f  you  bu i ld  a  br idge and  

then you get  the  fu l l  payment  and the  br idge is  no t  bu i l t  o r  

even one br i ck  i s  la id ,  tha t ’s  f ru i t less  and waste fu l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  o r  the  br idge is  bu i l t  ha l fway  so  tha t  

i t  can ’ t  be  used,  tha t  wou ld  s t i l l  be…[ in tervenes] .   

MR MKWANAZI :    I  agree Cha i r,  yes  tha t ’s  f ru i t less  and 

waste fu l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  so  you ’ re  say ing  tha t  what  10 

you were  sure  about  a t  th is  s tage was tha t  th is  was 

i r regu lar  expend i tu re  because the  necessary  approva ls  had  

not  been obta ined?  

MR MK WANAZI :    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r,  there  was no  

budget .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  whether  i t  was waste fu l  and f ru i t less  

was someth ing  tha t  you cou ld  on l y  a r r i ve  a t  a f te r  a  cer ta in  

exerc ise  had been done and a t  tha t  s tage tha t  exerc ise  had  

not  been done ye t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That ’s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :   Ja  okay.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you Cha i r,  tha t ’s  very  he lp fu l  

fo r  me.   So,  Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  le t ’s  then tu rn  to  the  next  page,  

i t ’s  page 352.   So,  in  the  f i rs t  ma jor  paragraph,  the  f i rs t  

comple te  parag raph,  we see here  tha t  the  d iscuss ion  is  
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about  a  dec is ion  about  Mat j i la ’s  gu i l t  o r  innocence and 

there  was a  d i scuss ion  about  f ru i t less  and waste fu l  

expend i tu re  and then we see the  s ta tement ,  ha l fway down 

the  pa ragraph i t  s ta r ts  w i th  the  sentence –  i t ’s  about  s i x  

l ines  down,  the  sentence s tar t s  w i th ,  

“The Cha i rman s ta ted  tha t  the  Board  had to  be 

conv inced tha t  the  cont rac t  was no t  a  bad one” ,  

 And then i f  you go on to  the  end o f  tha t  paragraph i t  

says ,  

Ms Luthu l i  s ta ted  tha t  the  handover  repor t  had to  10 

re f lec t  the  Board  had cons idered whether  o r  no t  the  

cont rac t  was a  bad one and had conc luded tha t  the  

cont rac t  was not  a  good one a t  th is  t ime” ,   

 Cou ld  you jus t  exp la in ,  what  do  you unders tand by  

a  good or  a  bad cont rac t  mean ing?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  can ’ t  exp la in  tha t ,  a lso  my  

unders tand ing  i t  wou ld  be  d i f f i cu l t  to  –  i t  was i r regu lar  

tha t ’s  i t ,  ja .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Okay,  so  when they ta lk  about  –  when  

the  Board  ta lks  about  the  m inutes  re f lec t  tha t  th is  was not  20 

a  good cont rac t ,  we see i t  in  a  number  o f  p laces,  aga in  in  

tha t  same page on the  second las t  parag raph,  they were  o f  

the  op in ion  tha t  the  cont rac t  was  not  a  good cont rac t ,  so  

are  you say ing ,  you ’ re  no t  su re  what  tha t  means? 

MR MKWANAZI :    To  a  ce r ta in  ex ten t  I  know,  how can you  
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have a  cont rac t  w i th  no  ex i t  c lause ,  tha t ’s  a  bad con t rac t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Okay,  so…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  you…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MKWANAZI :    That ’s  a  bad con t rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You cou ld  have a  cont rac t  w i thout  an  

ex i t  c lause,  I ’m  now ta lk ing  in  genera l ,  le t ’s  leave out  th is  

one p rov ided when you look a t  i t s  en t i re  –  you look  a t  i t  in  

i t s  en t i re ty  and the  va lue  you are  go ing  to  der ive  f rom i t  i s  

a  pa r ty  to  tha t  cont rac t  i s  good,  the  va lue  you der i ve  f rom 

i t  i s  good and you have bu i l t  in to  the  cont rac t  enough 10 

checks and ba lances to  sa feguard  your  in te res ts  i t  

happens a l l  the  t ime,  does i t  no t ,  fo r  example  tha t  you –  an  

employer  has a  f i xed- te rm cont rac t  w i th  an  employee and  

normal ly  what  tha t  k ind  o f  cont rac t  means is  ne i ther  the  

employer  nor  the  employee can  get  ou t  o f  tha t  cont rac t  

be fore  the  exp i ry  o f  the  f i xed  per iod  except  i f  there ’s  a  

breach o f  the  con t rac t .  In  the  case  o f  an  employee,  except  

i f  the  employee conducts  –  m isconducts  h imse l f  o r  herse l f  

bu t  o ther  than tha t  you a re  s tuck  there ,  bo th  o f  you but  i t  

may be tha t  as  an  employer  you say,  th is  employee  has got  20 

very  ra re  sk i l l s  and he or  she is  in  h igh  demand they want  

h im in  o ther  compan ies  so  I  want  to  secure  h im or  her  fo r  

th is  per iod ,  a re  you more  or  less  in  agreement  w i th  tha t ,  

tha t  you can have  tha t  s i tua t ion?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  you are  say ing  in  cer ta in  

c i rcumstances,  you need an ex i t  c lause,  tha t ’s  the  po in t  

you ’ re  mak ing?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cha i r  tha t  i s  co r rec t  bu t  in  th is  ins tance,  

because there  was an ex i t  c lause in  a  pre l im inary  cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .   

MR MKWANAZI :    Then somewhere  a long the  l ine  

somebody dec ided tha t ,  I  don ’ t  l ike  th is  ex i t  c lause then 

you make i t  a  bad  cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   10 

MR MKWANAZI :    And a lso ,  he  fac t  tha t  there  was no 

budget  fo r  th is  th ing  a t  a l l  and a t  tha t  t ime Eskom was 

exper ienc ing  f inanc ia l  p rob lems and then you go out  there  

w i th  no  budget  and you t r y  and spend R43mi l l ion ,  tha t ’s  a  

bad cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  course  even w i th  th is  k ind  o f  cont rac t  

tha t  I  was ta lk ing  about ,  tha t  i s  my put t ing  an  ex i t  c lause 

even though I  normal ly  th ink  i t  doesn ’ t  make sense but  

somet imes they can do tha t  bu t  I  th ink  tha t  f rom your  po in t  

o f  v iew the  po in t  you are  mak ing  is ,  an  ex i t  c lause  in  th is  20 

type o f  cont rac t  wou ld  have g iven  you –  or  gave Eskom in  

the  in  the  one be fore ,  some comfo r t  tha t  they cou ld  ge t  ou t  

o f  i t  i f  there  was a  prob lem.  

MR MKWANAZI :    That ’s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And f rom your  po in t  o f  v iew,  the  moment  
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the  ex i t  c lause wasn ’ t  there  i t  was a  bad cont rac t  apar t  

f rom the  fac t…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A lso ,  because  i t  was conc luded when  

there  was no budget  fo r  i t ,  tha t ’s  another  reason why you  

say i t  was a  bad cont rac t .  

MR MKWANAZI :    That ’s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  a l r igh t .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you  so  much Cha i r  and  Mr  

Mkwanaz i  you a l so  ra ised the  f inanc ia l  pos i t ion  tha t  Eskom 10 

was in  a t  the  t ime,  you say,  so  when i t  conc luded th is  

cont rac t  what  was i t s  f inanc ia l  pos i t ion?  

MR MKWANAZI :    P lease,  was no t  in  a  good pos i t ion  we  

were  beg inn ing  to  make losses i f  I  reca l l  a lso  the  

Regu la tor  was on  our  back about  cu t t ing  down on expenses  

e tce te ra ,  e tce te ra .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And th i s  was R53mi l l ion  cont rac t  fo r  

adver t i s i ng  fo r  a  S ta te-owned ent i t y?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That ’s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    So ,  in  l igh t  o f  the  f inanc ia l  pos i t ion  o f  20 

Eskom at  the  t ime cou ld  tha t  be  another  reason why i t  was 

not  a  good cont rac t  a t  tha t  t ime? 

MR MKWANAZI :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r,  ja .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    And they emphas ise  tha t  Mr  Lu thu l i  

emphas ises here  tha t  i t  must  be  in  a  handover  repor t  to  the  
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new Board ,  i s  tha t  your  reco l lec t ion?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That ’s  my reco l lec t ion  because we were  

prepar ing  to  handover  to  the  new Board  and tha t  i s  why  

she ins i s ted  tha t ,  tha t  be  captured.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    I t  was captured tha t  i t  was  a  bad 

cont rac t ,  i t  was not  a  good cont rac t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That ’s  cor rec t  ja .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Can I  ask  th is ,  you have been  in  the 

Boards o f  a  number  o f  compan ies  and you had been before  10 

your  t ime a t  Transnet  and Eskom based on what  you sa id  

ear l ie r  on  f rom the  mid  1980 ’s  you were  a l ready invo l ved  

. . [ in te rvenes] .   

MR MKWANAZI :    Ja  tha t ’s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now,  do  you know o f  any c i rcumstances  

under  wh ich  a  cont rac t  wh ich  has go t  f inanc ia l  imp l ica t ions 

fo r  a  company wh ich  is  conc luded  when there ’s  no  budget  

fo r  i t  wou ld  s t i l l  be  regarded as  good?   

MR MKWANAZI :    Cha i r,  you need to  have a  budget  fo r  

every  l ine  expend i tu re  in  your  o rgan isa t ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI :    That ’s  why th is ,  f rank ly,  was not  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  i f  there ’s  no  budget  fo r  i t ,  i t  shou ld  

be  regarded as  a  bad cont rac t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That ’s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    Thank you Cha i r.    

ADV MKHWANAZI :    Excuse me Cha i r,  i f  I  can  jus t  come in  

there ,  I ’m  s t i l l  here ,  jus t  to  cor rec t  someth ing  tha t  the  

counse l  sa id  be fo re  you in te rvened  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MKHWANAZI :    The –  Ms Luthu l i  d id  no t  suggest  tha t  

the  Board  shou ld  handover  to  the  new Board  to  say tha t  

the  cont rac t  was bad,  her  recommendat ion ,  ra ther  was tha t  

the  Board  had conceded or  no t  whether  the  cont rac t  was a  10 

bad  one.   I  jus t  wanted to  make sure  tha t  we  cor rec t  tha t  

Cha i r,  so  tha t  you know,  we don ’ t  ge t  confused in  te rms o f  

what  the  recommendat ion  was in  th is  ins tance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Le t ’s  read out  the  fu l l  s ta tement .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  jus t  read out  the  fu l l  s ta tement .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:    So ,  on  page 352 i t  says ,  

“Mr  Lu thu l i  s ta ted  tha t  the  handover  repor t  had to  

re f lec t  tha t  the  Board  had cons idered whethe r  o r  

no t  the  cont rac t  was a  bad one and had conc luded 20 

tha t  the  cont rac t  was not  good a t  th is  t ime” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  leas t  now i t  has  been read in  fu l l ,  I  

th ink  the  next  th ing  wou ld  be  to  jus t  doub le  check  w i th  Mr  

Mkwanaz i ,  the  w i tness,  whether  tha t  changes anyth ing  in  

te rms o f  the  response tha t  he  has g iven.  
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MR MK WANAZI :    Cha i rman i t  does not  change anyth ing  

because th is  i s  a  record  o f  tha t  las t  Board ,  wh ich  then  

wou ld  have been handed over  to  the  new Board  wh ich  

s ta r ted  in  January  2015 and there – in  the resolut ion below 

on that  there are  c lear  s tatements  that  ind icate tha t  there 

are cer ta in  i r regu lar  th ings that  d id  happen.   And whether 

but  the cont ract  was there – yes – but  i t  is  the technica l i ty  

o f  i r regular,  no ex i t  c lause,  no author i ty  e tcetera that  must  

be handed over  to  the new board.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  understand this statement too by Ms 10 

Luthul i  to mean that  she was saying  

1.  Let  us make sure as a board that  the report  ref lects 

that  we as the board did consider th is cont ract .  

2.  Having considered this cont ract  or  the report  must  

ref lect  that  having considered this  cont ract  we 

concluded that  th is contract  is not  good at  th is t ime.  

That  is my understanding of  what she is saying.   Is that  your  

understanding as wel l  Mr Mkwanazi? 

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is my understanding Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight  thank you.  20 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you Chai r.   So then in summary 

Mr Mkwanazi  as a member of  the so-cal led old board before 

the new board had to make i ts  decision you have said that  –  

am I  correct  that  the old board was not  going to determine 

whether to rat i fy the cont ract  or not? 
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MR MKWANAZI:   At  that  part icular meet ing but  do not  forget  

i f  that  old board had had one more meet ing because that  

was an issue of  the audi tors as wel l  put t ing pressure on us 

to f ix th is i r regular expendi ture.   So the old board in my 

interpretat ion having art iculated what we had done would 

have rat i f ied that  contract  condi t ional ly to discipl inary act ion 

being taken against  the two gent lemen who were basical ly 

the authors of  th is document.   But  that  old board did not  get  

the t ime to – to actual ly come to that  point  because now i t  

was handing over.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  th ink Mr Mkwanazi  your  

understanding of  the concept of  ra t i fy ing might  be d i fferent  

f rom Ms Armstrong’s understanding.   Now when you – you 

say the old board i f  i t  had t ime would have rat i f ied the 

contract  by tak ing disc ipl inary act ion against  the two persons 

concerned,  is that  r ight? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chair  yes i t  would have been a condi t ional  

rat i f icat ion because do not  forget  in the external  audi tors 

would have def ined i t  fu l ly as i r regular – i t  has not  been 

rat i f ied.   So you rat i fy i t  that  we understand i t  was i r regular 20 

etcetera and we have taken these steps so we now adopt i t  

as board that  th is contract  can cont inue to i ts terminat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Maybe – maybe I  was wrong to 

th ink you have a di fferent  understanding but  let  me – let  me 

tel l  you what I  understand when you say the board – the old 
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board was going to rat i fy the cont ract  i f  – condi t ional ly i f  i t  

had had t ime.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now for me what that  means is that  you 

were going to approve the contract  and of  course you say 

condi t ional ly.   We can talk about  condi t ional ly in due course.  

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  what you mean?  Is that  what you 

mean that  you would not  approve.  

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct  Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Now how – how can you say the old 

board was going to approve the contract  when you do not  

know or you did not  know what the outcome was going to be 

of  the exercise that  you talked about of  establ ishing whether  

Eskom would get  value out  of  th is or not? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chair  in other words let  me clar i fy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In other words my understanding is you 

would want to f i rs t  f ind out  is th is contract  worth anything to  

Eskom when i t  is worth anyth ing ser ious and i f  you 

concluded or the exercise concluded that  Eskom is going to 20 

get  no value of  th is there is no way you would approve the 

contract .   That  is  what I  th ink but  you must  te l l  me what i t  

means.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Chai r  these types of  cont racts par t icular ly  

in the issue of  market ing and market ing contracts.   The 
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def in i t ion of  value is  qui te  d i ff icu l t  because you – you then 

need to quant i fy  the number of  hours that  you got  on 

exposure through television and you must  quant i fy i t  in  

numbers that  per f l i t t ing of  an ad or  anything and also you – 

at  the t ime i f  you recal l  there was a specia l  messaging that  

Eskom was going to the publ ic wi th – in terms of  t ry ing to  

ta lk about  the load shedding and al l  the other th ings and 

people saving elect r ic i ty.   So there was an element of  va lue 

but  the issue is was that  value worth R43 mi l l ion that  is  the 

exercise that  needed to be done.  But  there was value in 10 

Eskom try ing to have this publ ic i ty in terms of  what they 

were t ry ing to achieve as an organisat ion.   Because they 

were talk ing about the advert isements that  was f l i t ted.   They 

wi l l  ta lk about  i l legal  [ indist inct  00:06:11]  and a l l  the other 

th ings that  are wrong which are happening out  there 

affect ing Eskom infrast ructure.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  let  us assume that  the board undertook 

that  exercise of  establ ishing what  value Eskom was going to 

der ive f rom th is contract  of  R43 mi l l ion and the outcome of  

that  exerc ise was that  the value that  Eskom was going to  20 

der ive f rom this  contract  was R3 mi l l ion.   Is the posi t ion that  

that  therefore the R40 mi l l ion would be v iewed as… 

MR MKWANAZI:   Could have been def ined as 

mismanagement.  

CHAIRPERSON:   As f rui t less and wasteful  expendi ture,  is  
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that  r ight?  You agree? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Ja.   No,  not  f ru i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So my quest ion then is,  how do you 

approve the cont ract  – how was the board going to approve 

the cont ract  before doing that  exercise rather than do that  

exercise f i rst  depending on the outcome you might  approve? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chai r  there are two issues here.   One is 

the i r regular cont ract  that  the board would have rat i f ied.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   But  the f rui t less and wasteful  part  of  i t  10 

would have requi red more work.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   To determine i f  there was any value that  

Eskom got  out  of  that  cont ract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Now i f  you approve the contract  

before you know how much value you are going to der ive 

f rom the contract  and whether i t  commensurates wi th R43 

mi l l ion or even close to i t  what  happens i f  later on you f ind 

that  the value is negl ig ible are you not  in t rouble for  having 

approved i t  a l ready? 20 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chair  there are two issues here maybe you 

are confusing the issues.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja please help me. 

MR MKWANAZI:   There was a board that  ended i ts term in  

December.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   We are talk ing about that  board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   I  was part  of  that  board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Then there – there is  a  new board that  took 

over in January i t  was chaired by Zola.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Tsotsi .  

MR MKWANAZI:   By Zola.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Zola Tsotsi .  10 

MR MKWANAZI:   And the – subsequent to that  there was on 

the board chai red by Doctor Ben Ngubane.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   I t  is those two boards that  then took a 

di fferent  v iew on what to do wi th th is cont ract .   This board 

that  I  was part  of  was st i l l  evaluat ing the opt ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MKWANAZI:   I t  d id not  execute the rat i f icat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  That  I  understand.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink my quest ions ar ise f rom your 

statement ear l ier on that  i f  your – i f  the board of  which you 

were part  had had enough t ime i t  would have approved.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   This cont ract  condi t ional ly.   I  th ink that  is  
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where – that  is where my quest ions come from.  So I  am 

saying.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   How do you – how do you say th is board 

was going to approve condi t ional ly  before that  exercise is  

done? 

MR MKWANAZI:   No there are two approvals Chai r  that  are 

needed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   On a cont ract  l ike this.   The one approval  10 

is the i r regular that  we could have done because then… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is the processional  one.  

MR MKWANAZI:   You avoid … 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the processional  affect .  

MR MKWANAZI:   This board – my board could have done 

that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   But  the approval  of  f ru i t less and wasteful  

even my board would not  have been able to get  i t  unt i l  a  

di fferent  report  would have come out  on what value did you 20 

get  out  of  th is contract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  understand the two issues and 

maybe we – maybe we wi l l  not  go further but  i f  I  was in a 

board such as the one in which you were in December – is i t  

2016? 



17 JULY 2020 – DAY 234 
 

Page 245 of 255 
 

MR MKWANAZI:   2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:   2014 I  would say wel l  before we – we 

approve anything on this contract  I  want to know ful ly about  

i t .   What – why are we get t ing into this cont ract?  What are 

we going to get  as Eskom?  That  is where my quest ions are 

because I  would want to say,  th is board must  have nothing to 

do wi th th is contract  i f  I  am sat isf ied that  there is no value.   I  

would not  even want to – to say I  approve the – I  condone 

the i r regular i ty about  procedure.   I  would want to say,  th is 

board has got  nothing to  do wi th  th is contract .   The person 10 

who entered into i t  w i thout  author i ty must  face the music.   

Do you think I  was going to be too harsh? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chair  you are not  too harsh but  at  the 

t ime… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  must  just  understand certa in th ings.  

MR MKWANAZI:   I  am thinking [ indist inct  00:11:41]  th ings 

the – they get  caught up wi th  the certain  processes.   The 

external  audi tors were put t ing pressure on us because they 

wanted to f ina l ise their  annual  f inancial  statements.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  20 

MR MKWANAZI:   So for that  to f ix the i r regular i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Would have been helpful .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   But  ment ioning that  there is potent ia l  
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f ru i t less and wasteful  expendi ture coming.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   And i t  is normal in companies that  i t  

actual ly comes af ter – almost  at  the conclusion because of  

the project .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   You then say,  ho ld i t  th is project  – th is is 

the value I  was supposed to get  but  I  on ly get  th is va lue.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   So the di fference is that  yes there would 10 

have been a f rui t less and wastefu l  expendi ture.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   In another board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   In another audi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   To say that  matter you f ix the i rregular i ty  

but  f ru i t less and wasteful  expendi ture yes i t  is recognise i t  

because i t  is something careful ly  wants you to art icu late 

would have done that .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.   But  ordinar i ly when say a 

Group CEO approaches the board about a cont ract  that  

might  need to be signed one of  the things that  the board 

would look at  is,  what value wi l l  our ent i ty get  f rom this,  is  

that  r ight?  At  – even at  that  stage.  
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MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay thank you.   Ms Armstrong.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you Chai r.   So then Mr Mkwanazi  

so I  understand then to summarise that  the board at  that  

point  had reserved i ts judgment on rat i f icat ion.   I t  was st i l l  

explor ing opt ions that  was your test imony.  

CHAIRPERSON:   There I  th ink – I  th ink his test imony is on 

the i r regular [ indist inct  00:13:35]  board.  

MR MKWANAZI:   I f  I  – handover board.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja on the i r regular expendi ture he says 

they were going to approve that .  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes.   We could have.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   They could have.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Yes you could have.  

CHAIRPERSON:   They could have i f  they had t ime.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  they did not  because of  t ime.  20 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  the other one was st i l l  going to be 

invest igated about f rui t less and wastefu l  expendi ture.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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MR MKWANAZI:   The f ru i t less and wasteful  would have been 

deal t  wi th fo l lowing that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Okay.   Thank you.   And then f inal ly the 

issue of  the correct ive act ion or  the discipl inary act ion 

against  Mr Cheou and Mr Mat j i la that  is also something you 

expected the new board to deal  wi th .  

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Okay.   And with al l  these very important  

th ings for the new board to consider and an emphasis in the 10 

minutes about at  the very least  the fact  that  th is  was a – not  

a good contract  being conveyed and then also you pointed 

out  Mr Mkwanazi  in the resolut ions that  Ledwaba Mazwai  

At torneys and the company secretary were going to  prepare 

a summary and f inal  resolut ion on the discussions and the 

decisions around the New Age sponsorship cont ract  for 

s igning by the Chai rman of  the board,  Chai rman of  the Audi t  

and Risk Commit tee for inc lusion handover report  to the new 

board.   So al l  of  these d iscussions were now going to be 

passed over in  i ts handover report  was that  your 20 

understanding? 

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   So wi th  al l  of  these important  

considerat ions would – would you have considered i t  good 

corporate governance to convene a l ive board meet ing to 
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d iscuss these issues before the board took further act ion? 

MR MKWANAZI:   We waited – which board now took … 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   The new board.   The new board.  

MR MKWANAZI:   My board or the new board? 

ADV ARMSTRONG:   The new board when they took over  

would you accept  i t  to be good corporate governance for 

them to convene a meet ing to discuss al l  of  these issues.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Chair  i f  I  – i f  I  –  

ADV MKWANAZI:    I f  I  may come in  Chair  and then… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Mr Mkwanazi  the lawyer ja.  10 

ADV MKWANAZI:   I  th ink ar is ing out  of  th is is  that  the – the 

t imel ines between you know the vacat ing of  off ice of  the 

board at  that  t ime and the new incoming board was so sl im 

that  for someone who is not  you know close to the process 

may actual ly th ink they were on the same board at  the same 

t ime.  So i t  is  just  for c lar i ty  for example Chai r.   Mr 

Pamensky was never on the same board wi th Mr Mkwanazi .   

In fact ,  he came in I  th ink two or three months af ter  that  – 

af ter the board that  Mr – the old board as he referred to i t  

had already made the recommendat ions insofar as how the 20 

i rregular i ty and the expendi ture should be deal t  wi th in that  

regard.   So I  th ink i t  would not  be fai r  to you know ask a 

quest ion of  that  nature to Mr Mkwanazi  whose terms at  the 

t ime had already expired.   So I  th ink Chair  i t  is important  

that  we brought that  l ine and make sure that  Mr Mkwanazi  
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only answers for the quest ions you know that  relate to his  

term of  off ice.   So whether or not  i t  is good corporate 

governance for a  board to have a Round Robin etcetera,  

etcetera I  th ink that  depends f rom board to board and 

organisat ions as wel l  as the communicat ions pol icy that  that  

part icular board had in that  instance.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MKWANAZI:   A l l  I  am asking for Chair  is that  let  us – 

let  us speak to  the term of  off ice of  Mr Mkwanazi  and 

anything beyond that  would only be supposi t ion Chai r  and 10 

consequent ly wi th  the [ indist inct  00:17:25]  taking the forum’s 

t ime.  Thank you Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes thank you.   I  th ink one concern I  had 

wi th the quest ion is you did not  lay a basis for asking for Mr 

Mkwanazi ’s opinion on whether  i t  would be a good 

governance pract ice or not  so i f  there is no basis that  is  la id 

there might  be a problem with that .  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed Chai r  and the basis that  I  was 

hoping to point  out  to Mr Mkwanazi  was there were so many 

important  issues that  st i l l  needed to be determined by the 20 

new board wi th  respect  to  a large cont ract  sponsorship of  

the New Age, wi th respect  to discipl inary act ion that  had to 

be taken wi th two of  the employees,  wi th ident i fy ing f ru i t less 

and wasteful  expendi ture and the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe – I  am sorry.   Maybe – maybe your  
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problem is the reference to good corporate governance.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe i f  you just  ask a quest ion.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed Chai r.   What was the – what 

would have been Mr Mkwanazi  your  expectat ion perhaps of  a  

member of  the old board? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Hang on.   Mr Mkwanazi  the lawyer – 

ja I  th ink you understand maybe she is  going to  put  the 

quest ion in a di fferent  way.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Indeed Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   We wi l l  g ive you indulgence Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes okay thank you.  

MR MKWANAZI:    [ ind ist inct ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:    Can I  respond? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:    I t  is an opinion.   Now the old board had 

two reports the Dedoro Muswayo [?]  Report  and the Gomoto 

Report  [?]  and those reports were clear.   Anybody who would 20 

have taken those two reports and read them thoroughly now 

being the new board.   I  am not  sure how they have arr ived at  

a di fferent  conclusion.   I  am real ly  not  sure.   Now even in  

terms of  say can you do this te lecom or Round Robin f i rst ly  

to read the two reports before you can commit  to a telecom 
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or  a  Round Robin on an important  subject  l ike this because i t  

is not  easy to  discipl ine a Chief  Execut ive of  an 

organisat ion.   I t  is qui te a process.   So yes they needed the 

two reports and the two conclus ions before they would have 

taken the decision,  they took in  June 2015 to rat i fy a 

contract  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so you certa inly can say they had an 

obl igat ion to apply thei r  minds to the issues that  you had 

f lagged as the – as the old board? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chair  may I  yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   And of  course,  Mr 

Mkwanazi  you would have expected a handover report  to 

contain a summary of  your  discussions at  these meet ings as 

is included in th is resolut ion,  is that  correct? 

MR MKWANAZI:   I  th ink they were handed over.   That  is  

correct  Chai r.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   So in the – I  asked you ear l ier Mr 

Mkwanazi  about  th is resolut ion and your last  meet ing which 

stated that  there needs to be a summary prepared of  what 20 

had been discussed and that  would be included in the 

handover report .   So what I  am asking you – and you would 

have in addi t ion to the two reports,  the forensic and the legal  

reports would you have also expected that  summary of  your  

discussions in the board meet ings,  the opinion of  the old 
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board to be conveyed to the new board before vot ing on a 

contract? 

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is correct .   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you Mr Mkwanazi .   Chair  thank 

you.   Those are our quest ions about – f rom Eskom and f rom 

our side.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no thank you.   Thank you very much 

Mr Mkwanazi  the wi tness and thank you very much to Mr 

Mkwanazi  the lawyer.    

ADV MKWANAZI:   Thank you Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  appears that  we have reached the end of  

the proceedings for today.   Of  course,  I  am – I  have no doubt 

you wi l l  come back Mr Mkwanazi  to assist  the commission 

further on other matters but  for  now thank you very much to 

both of  you and thank you for being able to stay unt i l  late.   

And thank you to  the commission’s legal  team and everybody 

who has stayed on so that  we could at  least  f inal ise this part 

of  Mr Mkwanazi ’s  evidence.   On Monday just  in case the 

media are st i l l  here or are l istening on Monday the 

commission wi l l  hear the evidence of  a former Minister Ms 20 

Nonvula Mokonyane in regard to al legat ions involving 

Bosasa and dur ing the week we wi l l  a lso hear other persons 

who were impl icated in Mr Agrizzi ’s evidence and some of  

them are Magist rate Naya of  Pretor ia.   I  th ink Mr Linda Mt i  

who was Commissioner of  Correct ional  Serv ices is 
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scheduled also to  come next  week.   There might  be one or 

two others.   Mr Vincent  Smith was meant to come but  

arrangements have been made – he has been released.   He 

wi l l  come some other t ime.  And I  th ink on Fr iday we wi l l  

hear the – I  wi l l  hear evidence f rom Judge Makhubela of  the 

High Court  in  rela t ion to PRASA matters.   So I  thought I  must  

just  indicate that  so that  where we are able to,  we indicate 

which wi tnesses we wi l l  be having and which work st reams 

we wi l l  be deal ing wi th.   Okay.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you Chai r.  Sorry Chai r  could I  10 

just  hand up that  Business Day clear ly of  the art ic le.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you that  our f i les are completed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you.   Mr Mkwanazi  you would 

have had an elect ronic version.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much.  

MR MKWANAZI:   I  have got  an electronic one.  

ADV ARMSTRONG:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Thank you very much I  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much.  Okay we adjourn.  

ADV MKWANAZI:   Thank you Chai r,  thank you col leagues.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   We adjourn.  
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ADV ARMSTRONG:   Thank you Chai r.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 20 JULY 2020 
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